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Enterprise Culture
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Vision
Establish the Group as an
internationally influential
enterprise by
environment-friendly

clean energy
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Missions

. Objectives

Develop business of B RER Create value for our

clean energy HEIEE AKEAL customers
Contribute XPEE - Al EBAE Create future for our

sustainability to society employees

Core Values Create rewards for our
' shareholders
Integrity

Group interest as priority
Customer orientation
Innovation
Teamwork
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Spirits
Passionate Ambitious
Practical Diligent
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Working environment

Respect Righteous
Disciplined Precise
Initiative Positive

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2016



China Oil And Gas Group Limited (the “Company”) (stock code: 603) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in investment
in natural gas and energy related business. Operations of the Group include
piped city gas business, pipeline design and construction; transportation,
distribution and sale of compressed natural gas (“CNG”) and liquefied
natural gas (“LNG"); and development, production and sale of crude oil and
gas and other upstream energy resources.

As a piped city natural gas service provider, the Group supplies city natural
gas through long-distance transmission pipelines. With 70 concession
rights, the Group has built up city pipeline networks which offer stable and
sufficient natural gas resources to local household, industrial, commercial
and other users. As a non-pipeline natural gas provider, the Group has
established 2 LNG plants in Qinghai Province, the PRC. Meanwhile, the
Group has also built certain CNG primary stations to ensure a smooth supply
of natural gas all year round. These facilities support supplies of natural gas
to cities not yet covered by pipeline networks and are treated as emergency
backup gas sources for the Group.

As a major national operator of natural gas stations for automobile natural
gas filling, the Group has built 39 CNG stations, 10 LNG stations and 6 L/
CNG stations across the country. All kinds of automobiles, city buses and
long-distance buses can be converted into natural gas operation system
by paying an affordable fee. Some of the provinces will provide subsidy to
automobile owners who are willing to convert their automobile into natural
gas operating system. With support from the PRC government, the Group
offers inexpensive, clean and environmental friendly natural gas to the
transportation sector.

As an operator of natural gas branch line business, the Group has already
completed 1,055 km branch lines in Qinghai, Hunan, lJiangsu, Jiangxi,
Shanxi, Shandong, Guizhou, Guangdong, Anhui and Hubei Province. Apart
from bringing in stable natural gas transmission revenue, the branch line
constructions will also facilitate the development of projects along the down-
stream.

The Group has well established a large-scale developed natural gas transport
and logistics operation in the PRC, including the set up of LNG and CNG fleets
which have reinforced the mobility and coverage of our natural gas supplies.

As an upstream energy resources producer, the Group engages in the
development, production and sale of crude oil and gas and other resources
in Alberta of Canada. The exploration and production business of the Group
has the proved reserves of approximately 22.9 million barrels of oil equivalent
and the proved plus probable reserves of approximately 33.1 million
barrels of oil equivalent. Its average daily production was 5,001 barrels of
oil equivalent in 2016. Our exploration and production business possesses
energy business in production, a very experienced management team with
proven tracking records, a stable production assets portfolio and strong
profitability with considerable potential for growth.
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Natural Gas Distribution Business in China
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Oil and Gas Production Business in Canada
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, benefiting from the increasing efforts of the Chinese government
in “reducing carbon emission and smog”, the improvement in the
competitiveness of the price of natural gas and supporting policies on the
utilization of natural gas introduced by local governments, the natural gas
consumption reached 205.8 billion cubic meters in China, representing an
increase of 7% year on year. The Group continued to devote itself to the
development of high-quality urban gas projects. It actively developed in the
market, improved the management, optimized the control and management
model on core businesses and fully initiated information-based management.
It effectively streamlined the establishment of institutes, strengthened
performance management and facilitated market expansion and the growth
in the sales volume of gas through complete incentive and restriction
mechanisms. Under the complicated and changing international market
environment and the pressure on the slower economic growth in China, the
Group went forward with its burdens discarded. With its strong users basis
and the advantages on sale network as well as sufficient gas sources, the
Group recorded an increase as expected in the total sales volume of natural
gas in 2016.

Thanks to the continuous improvement in the operation and management,
the effective control over cost and fees, continuous increase in the income
and reduction in the expenditures, the successful completion of the price
adjustment on the natural gas business in China and considerable growth in

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRE

(continued) (#%)

the sales volume of gas as well as the significant recovery of the international
oil price from the bottom, the Group recorded a profit of HK$657.67 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing a significant growth
from a profit of HK$29.33 million for the year ended 31 December 2015.

CITY PIPELINE NATURAL GAS BUSINESS

Sales and distributions of natural gas

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded the sales and
distributions of natural gas income of HK$5,424 million, accounting for 84%
of the total revenue. During the year, the Group's total gas sales volume
reached 2,769 million cubic meters (2015: 2,650 million cubic meters);
external pipeline gas transmission volume reached 340 million cubic meters
(2015: 427 million cubic meters); and the external transportation volume was
11 million cubic meters (2015: 51 million cubic meters).

Gas sales volume of residential users was 808 million cubic meters (2015:
684 million cubic meters); of industrial and commercial users was 1,599
million cubic meters (2015: 1,520 million cubic meters); and of gas stations
was 362 million cubic meters (2015: 447 million cubic meters), representing
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29%, 58% and 13% of the gas sales volume respectively (2015: 26%, 57%
and 17%).

Development of new users

During the year, the Group connected 157,017 new residential users and
934 new industrial & commercial users. The accumulated connections of
residential users were 1,108,397, and for industrial & commercial users,
the accumulated connections were 9,269. With the advancing of the new
type of urbanization and the “Coal to Gas Project” for coal-fired boilers by
the Chinese government, the number of new users is expected to maintain
stable growth. While actively developing new users, the Group will continue
to strengthen the development of medium and old household users in
the existing urban gas projects to maintain a stable total connection of

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

(continued) (4)
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

(continued) (#&)

residential users. The industrial & commercial users have higher demand for
natural gas as compared with residential users. As a result, it is the priority
task of the Group to actively develop industrial & commercial users. With the
increased number of users, the Group will continue to trigger more channels
for the sales of natural gas and provide services to more natural gas end-
users, which will lay a solid foundation for the sales of natural gas by the
Group in the future.

New projects expansion

In 2016, the Group mastered the development opportunities in the
popularization of clean energy and gave full play to the advantages of
sufficient gas sources, wide coverage of the pipeline network, flexible
logistics and transportation services as well as good partnerships with
local governments, state-owned and private capitals. While promoting
organic growth from existing projects, the Group also conducted thorough
inspections on the areas surrounding the natural gas pipelines and the
coastal areas, together with the areas along the Yangtze River which have
good economic basis and huge demand of natural gas. During the year,
the Group has successfully obtained the concession rights for operations of
gas business in four new cities, including Wulie area, Dongtai City, Jiangsu
Province, five towns in Huai'an City, Jiangsu Province, Zhangye Economic
and Technological Development Zone in Gansu Province and Sanfutan
Town, Xiantao City, Hubei Province. As at the end of 2016, the Group has
established a total of 105 natural gas project companies in 15 provinces and
autonomous regions with 70 concession rights in the PRC. In 2016, the total
length of the high-pressure long-distance pipelines reached 1,055 km, which
effectively promoted the development of projects in total downstream.
The total length of the city pipeline network reached 7,530 km, covering a
total population of 12 million. The Group will make use of its advantages in
the wide coverage of its pipeline network and work even harder to obtain
more projects with concession rights in more industrial cities, economic
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

(continued) (4)

Total Connected Users as of December 31
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the market position of the Group in China.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRE

(continued) (#%)

by GLJ Petroleum Consultants for the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group has the proved reserves of 22.9 million barrels of oil equivalent (2015:
20.5 million barrels of oil equivalent), and the proved plus probable reserves
of 33.1 million barrels of oil equivalent (2015: 30.1 million barrels of oil
equivalent), representing an increase of 12% and 10%, respectively. In 2016,
the average daily production was 5,001 barrels of oil equivalent (2015: 5,386
barrels of oil equivalent). The average operating netback was CAD18.78 per
barrel of oil equivalent in 2016 (2015: CAD21.16 per barrel of oil equivalent).

In 2016, the international oil price recovered from the bottom at the
beginning of the year and maintained stable growth in the second half.
Facing the challenges and business opportunities, the Group acted with
caution and monitored closely the international market environment. By
leveraging on the advantages of the low oil price, the Group effectively
controlled the operation cost. The average cost of oil exploitation was
successfully controlled within CAD10 per barrel of oil equivalent, which was
substantially lower than other producers in the same play. The Group took
advantage of the low oil price to seek potential high-quality assets. It offset
the natural decline in output and achieved growth in reserves and output
as planned by ways of acquisition of high-quality oil and gas assets, projects
and land as well as the development of new wells. As of the end of 2016,
the oil and gas exploitation business of the Group totally owns gross land
of approximately 150,000 acres with oil and gas mineral rights which have
huge development potential. With the recovery of oil price, these oil and gas
reserves will bring considerable investment returns to the Group.

Proved Reserve (mmboe)
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BUSINESS PROSPECT

The Chinese government gives unprecedented policy supports to the
development of the natural gas industry. In December 2016, the National
Energy Administration issued the “Opinions on Speeding up in Promoting
the Utilization of Natural Gas”, proposing to fully speed up in advancing the
large-scale utilization of natural gas in urban gas, industrial fuels, gas power
generation and transport fuels and calling for local governments to introduce
specific measures on promoting the utilization of natural gas. Responding to
the calls of the central government, local governments in Shandong, Jiangsu,
Jiangxi, Hunan and Hubei have introduced various measures, including
improving financial and taxation supports to the “Coal to Gas Project”,
conducting the promotion of natural gas in the countryside to ensure the
access to natural in all towns and countries as well as raising the rate of
gasification in urban areas and eliminating coal-fired boilers. The Group
will grasp the opportunities and actively conduct market inspections and
adopt flexible pricing strategies to assist local governments of the operation
areas in formulating implementation plans and obtain policy supports on
the rectification of coal-fired boilers within a certain period. It is expected
that more detailed policies guaranteeing the utilization and development of
natural gas will be introduced in the future, which will greatly benefit various
businesses of the Group in the distribution of natural gas in China. The
Group will actively cooperate with local governments in the implementation
of relevant policies.

The natural gas pricing reform will see substantial progresses. The Chinese
government issued the “Administrative Measure for the Pricing of Natural
Gas Pipeline Transmission (Trial)” and “Supervising Measures for the Cost
Pricing of Natural Gas Pipeline Transmission (Trial)”, which have regulated
that the pipeline transmission price shall be charged based on the principle
of “permitted cost plus reasonable revenue”. The intention is to make
the pricing mechanism of pipeline transmission more open and more
transparent, which will effectively control the supply-sided cost of upstream
natural gas and lower the cost of gas for end users. It will improve the
pricing competitiveness of alternative energy to natural gas, boost the
demand in the downstream market and bring new business opportunities
to the existing core business of the Group. The Group will continue to make
plans based on the industrial and market-based reform and further improve
the distribution and sales volume of natural gas through the opportunities
arising from the competitive advantage of natural gas price.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

(continued) (4)
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

(continued) (#&)

2016 is the first year of the “13th Five-year Plan”. The “13th Five-year
Plan on the Development of Natural Gas” proposes the target that “the
proportion of natural gas consumption in the total consumption of major
energy sources should reach 10%, and the consumption of natural gas will
reach 350 billion cubic meters by 2020". However, the proportion of natural
gas in the total consumption of major energy sources is just less than 6%.
The development of the natural gas industry enjoys a bright future and it is
a trend to focus on the development of the natural gas business. Based on
the economic conditions and the trend in the development of the industry,
the Group formulated the “13th Five-year Plan” of the Group, which sets
development goals, strategic positioning, resources allocation and guarantee
measures to guide and lead the business development of the Group.

For the business of exploitation of oil and gas, leveraging its advantages in
premium light oil assets, highly efficient cost management and above-peer
technology, the Group will continue its reasonable planning for development
under the environment of low oil price and will strategically increase its
reserve and interest in high-valued light oil and gas in order to reinforce the
foundation of the Group’s long-term development. Looking into the future,
the Group will follow the strategic plan on the oil and gas business, expand
the value-added potential, exploit the internal potential, improve capital
efficiency and strengthen the management and control over cost to maintain
growth in reserves and output as planned and make a new step towards to
the target of becoming a medium-sized upper-stream oil and gas enterprise.

It will fully conduct human resources and enterprise cultural construction.
The Group adheres to the introduction of talents and internal promotion
and pays attention to the growth and career development of employees. In
2016, the Group fully conducted the enterprise cultural construction and
fully implemented and practiced the core values of “Integrity, Group interest
as priority, Customer orientation, Innovation and Teamwork”, requiring all
employees of the Group to actively become partners sharing responsibilities
with the Group. Meanwhile, it improved the remuneration system and
the incentive system and formed an orientation mechanism with common
interests of employees and the Company. The Group will continue to try
its best to improve the operation and management and convert the talent
advantages and enterprise culture into the development and competition
advantages of the Group.
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For these 15 years, the Group has been adhering to the missions of
"developing business of clean energy and contributing sustainability to
society” and following the development strategy of “One body, Two
wings”. With the city gas business as the body and the resources production
and energy services as two wings, the Group has integrated upstream
and downstream businesses and has established an industrial structure of
piped natural gas, liquefied natural gas, compressed natural gas, pipeline
construction and operation, logistics transportation, liquefied natural
gas processing plants, natural gas stations for automobiles and vessels,
equipment manufacturing, engineering services, financial lease services.
Looking into the future, the Group is of one mind and strike for optimizing
the business layout and asset structure. At the same time, the Group will
continue to actively strengthen and optimize energy industrial chains which
will improve the brand value of the Group. By carrying forward the spirits of
"Passionate, Ambitious, Practical and Diligent”, the Group will work together
to expand, innovate and build the Group as an influential clean energy
company.

On behalf of the Board
China Oil And Gas Group Limited
Xu Tie-liang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

The following discussions should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group and its notes and other
sections in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a revenue of
HK$6,446 million (2015: HK$7,374 million), representing a decrease of
13%. Such decrease is principally attributable to the exchange differences
arising on translation from the operating currencies to presentation currency
and the city-gate price cut in the PRC during November 2015. Gross profit
amounted to HK$1,128 million (2015: HK$1,036 million), representing an
increase of 9% from last year. Overall gross profit margin has increased to
18% from last year's 14%.

The Group's principal activities are divided into three segments.

(1) Sales and distribution of natural gas and other related products
(“Sales and distribution of natural gas"”)

Sales and distribution of natural gas continued to be the Group’s
major source of revenue and constituted 84% of the total revenue
(2015: 82%). Revenue and cost of sales related to Sales and
distribution of natural gas amounted to HK$5,424 million (2015:
HK$6,052 million) and HK$4,681 million (2015: HK$5,486 million)
respectively. Segment results was HK$513 million (2015: HK$323
million). Gross profit margin and segment profit ratio were 14%
(2015: 9%) and 9% (2015: 5%) respectively.

(2) Gas pipeline construction and connection (“Connection”)

Revenue and cost of sales related to Connection amounted to HK$721
million (2015: HK$892 million) and HK$367 million (2015: HK$450
million) respectively. Considering the Group placed great emphasis
on the effectiveness of cost control and centralised procurement,
Connection’s gross profit margin and segment profit ratio both
remained stable at 49% (2015: 50%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(3) Exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas
("Exploitation and production”)

Revenue and cost of sales related to exploitation and production
amounted to HK$301 million (2015: HK$430 million) and HK$270
million (2015: HK$403 million) respectively. Both gross profit margin
and segment profit ratio reached 10% (2015: both at 6%). The Group
realised crude oil price of CAD49.98 per barrel of oil equivalent in
2016 compared to CAD54.01 per barrel of oil equivalent in 2015 with
a decrease of 7%; while West Texas Intermediate (“WTI") averaging
US$43.37 per barrel of oil equivalent in 2016 compared with
US$48.76 per barrel of oil equivalent in 2015 with a decrease of 11%.
The reduction in WTI in 2016 was partially offset by a decrease in the
price differential for the Group’s crude oil and weakness in the
Canadian dollar in 2016.

The Group's selling and distribution costs decreased 4% from HK$69 million
in 2015 to HK$67 million and administrative expenses decreased 6% from
HK$319 million to HK$302 million. The Group placed great emphasis on
the effectiveness and appropriateness of sales strategies and successfully
controlled the selling and distribution costs at 1% of total revenue in both
years and administrative expenses at below 5% in both years.

Finance costs net of capitalisation has been decreased from last year's
HK$231 million to current year's HK$202 million, which represented a
decrease of 13% by the Group effectively reduced its borrowings by HK$598
million as compared to last year. The Group’s weighted average cost of
all indebtedness (including bank borrowings, other borrowings and senior
notes) as at 31 December 2016 was 5.4% (2015: 5.7%).

Benefiting from the considerable growth in sales volume of gas and
the effective cost control, profit attributable to owners of the Company
increased to HK$312 million in 2016. In 2015, loss attributable to the owners
of the Company was HK$184 million which was mainly due to the one-off
non-cash impairment of HK$507 million resulted of lower prices for crude oil
and a lower price forecast in 2015.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

It is the Group’s policy to adopt conservative financial strategies by using
the cash flow generated from operations as the principal source of fund
to finance its capital expenditures. As at 31 December 2016, the Group's
total indebtedness (including bank borrowings, other borrowings and senior
notes) amounted to HK$5,367 million (2015: HK$5,965 million). Total
available credit facility amounted to HK$4,661 million as of 31 December
2016 (2015: HK$3,972 million) with an utilisation rate of 6% (2015: 17%).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had cash and cash equivalents and
time deposits with maturity over three months of approximately HK$1,859
million (2015: HK$2,520 million). Total assets of HK$13,604 million (2015:
HK$14,088 million), and among which current assets were HK$3,620 million
(2015: HK$4,340 million). Total liabilities of the Group were HK$8,353
million (2015: HK$8,887 million), and among which current liabilities were
HK$2,997 million (2015: HK$3,565 million). The Group’s debt-to-asset ratio,
measured on the basis of total indebtedness divided by total assets was 39%
(2015: 42%). The current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) of
the Group was 1.21 times (2015: 1.22 times).

The Group’s financial and liquidity remain stable, and well prepared for the
Group's development in the future.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At the end of 2016, the Group employed a total of 3,515 (2015: 3,713) full-
time employees, where mostly were stationed in the PRC. Total staff cost for
the year amounted to HK$310 million (2015: HK$343 million). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, working experience
and the prevailing market wage level. The total remuneration of the
employees consisted of basic salary, cash bonus and share-based incentives.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

No assets of the Group have been pledged for the outstanding borrowings
as at 31 December 2016.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

The Group has no material contingent liability as at 31 December 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TREASURY
POLICY

The financial risk management of the Group is the responsibility of the
Group's treasury function at the head office in Hong Kong. One of the
major objectives of the Group’s treasury policies is to manage its exposure
to fluctuation in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. It is the
Group's policy not to engage in speculative activities.

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. The Group’s certain
bank deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
Stated dollars, and the Group’s offshore bank loans and senior notes are
denominated in Renminbi, United Stated dollars and Canadian dollars.

Other than those disclosed, the Group does not have any material exposures
to foreign exchange fluctuations. The Group does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and may, depending on the circumstances and trend of
foreign currencies, consider adopting a significant foreign currency hedging
policy in the future.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has no litigation.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2016, the issued share capital of the Company was
HK$58,256,838 divided into 5,825,683,834 shares with a nominal value of
HK$0.01 each.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board resolved to recommend to the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Thursday, 18 May 2017 (“2017 AGM") the distribution of a final dividend
of HK cent 0.50 (2015: Nil) per share out of the contributed surplus account
of the Company to be paid on Friday, 16 June 2017 to those shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Monday, 29 May 2017. The final dividend will amount to approximately
HK$29,128,000 (2015: Nil).
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CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Xu Tie-liang, aged 53, was appointed as an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board of the Company on 30 August 2006. He was also
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 4 November
2009. Mr. Xu is the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee of
the Company (the “CG Committee”) and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Xu graduated from Xi'an Shiyou University (7% 3
A 2) and University of International Business and Economics (¥f9MEEE 5
KE), he is a certified public accountant and lawyer. Mr. Xu has 28 years’
experiences in management, investments, legal and finance.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhu Yuan, aged 64, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 10 September 2010. He was appointed as the senior vice
president of the Company on 4 November 2009. Mr. Zhu is a member of
the CG Committee. He graduated from China University of Mining And
Technology and is a certified senior accountant. He is engaged in oil and gas
industries for over 40 years, and has deep research and extensive experience
in investment and operation of the usage of natural gas, city gas and
liguefied natural gas projects.

Ms. Guan Yijun, aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 10 September 2010. She was appointed as the vice president
of the Company on 1 September 2006. Ms. Guan is a member of the CG
Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She
graduated from Changchun Normal University and has extensive business
operation management experiences over 20 years.
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Mr. Cheung Shing, aged 64, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 13 January 2006. Mr. Cheung is a member of each of the CG
Committee, the Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”). He worked in China Petroleum Qilu Petrochemical Refinery (4
B A mE &AL EmE), China Petroleum Shengli Oilfield (AR B84 i 5 F1J
M), China Petroleum Zhongyuan Oilfield (B84 EA FEiMM) and has ever
been a management economist of China National Petroleum Corporation
(PFREARRARERAQT) (“CNPC”) during the period between 1969 and
1993. He was the chairman of each of Wah Chung (HK) Limited (ZErR (&
#) AFR/AT), Henan Shenghua Petrochemical Co., Ltd. (AIEG&E B EE A
{E TAHBRAF]) and Liaoning Xinmin Petroleum Company Limited during the
period between 1993 and 2004. Mr. Cheung was the deputy chairman and
an executive director of Yanchang Petroleum International Limited (stock
code: 346), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, from January 2007
to September 2010 and from February 2005 to October 2010 respectively.
He was the chairman and an executive director of Birmingham International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2309), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, from February 2014 to March 2015 and May 2013 to March 2015
respectively. He is also currently a visiting lecturer of Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics, the vice president of Hong Kong General Association
of International Investment (/BRI &) and the vice president of
China Petroleum Business Council (F Bl A HEKIEES).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Yunlong, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 18 April 2008. He is the chairman of each of
the Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Li graduated from the Accounting School of Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law (PRI EBUE R ZE & 52 0r) with a Bachelor Degree in
Economics. Mr. Li is a registered certified public accountant in the PRC and
possesses the qualification of PRC senior auditor. Mr. Li had been working
at the National Audit Office of the PRC for over 16 years in various audit
departments, and he is currently a partner of Hua Wen CPA Ltd GER &5
BME7%FT) in the PRC. He is the financial consultant of various companies in
the PRC, and an independent director of Sichuan Tuopai Shede Wine Co.,
Ltd. (P9) 1B 1S B2 B B MR A A)) which is listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. He is being a national financial expert of The Ministry of Science
and Technology of the PRC. He has extensive experience in legal, accounting,
auditing and finance aspects.
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Mr. Shi Xun-zhi, aged 82, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 30 August 2006. He is a member of the
Audit Committee. He is a deputy minister and a professor senior engineer.
He has been awarded the Youth and Mature Scientist with outstanding
contributions by the State Council. He graduated from Petroleum Institute of
Beijing (L A HEZ2ET) (renamed as China University of Petroleum, Beijing)
(FREAHAZ (4550)) in 1956 in the profession of petroleum geology. He
worked as geology engineer, associate director of the technology division,
director of human resources division, supervisor in the Ministry of Petroleum
Industry, CNPC president’s special assistant and also a member of the
Ninth Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He had been the
chairman of CNPC Sino-Russian Oil & Gas Corporation Committee and
the chairman of China National Oil & Gas Exploration and Development
Corporation (FFEIAH#IEFZEAR]) and the chairman of CNPA Alberta
Petroleum Center (FREIMNE AR BIARAMF L), and the president of
Northeast Asian Gas And Pipeline Forum and the president of Asia Gas
& Pipeline Cooperation Research Center of China, responsible for the oil
and gas works between China and Russia, and worked on the overseas
petroleum exploration and development as well as international cooperation
work.

Mr. Wang Guangtian, aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 4 November 2009. He is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee, and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He holds a master degree
in world economics from the Hebei University and has over 32 years of
experience in financial and administrative management. He is currently the
managing director of Guofu Group and a director and the general manager
of Guofu (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited. He was an independent non-
executive director of ENN Energy Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, from December 2000 to May 2015. He was appointed as
a managing director of Hebei Listed Abroad Equity Funds Co., Ltd on June
2015. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wang did not hold any directorship in
other listed public companies in the past three years.
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The Board is pleased to submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in investments in natural gas and energy related
businesses.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the state of
affairs of the Group as at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 86 to 219.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of the Company’s Business

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 and a discussion on the Group's future business development, and also
the Group’s performance during the year ended 31 December 2016 using
the key financial performance indicators are provided in the “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 21.
No important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
year under review.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Company

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, and business prospects
may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties directly or indirectly
pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The followings are the key risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to be material
in the future.

Natural Gas Price Control Risk

The Group is principally engaged in distribution of natural gas in the PRC,
the city-gate price of natural gas is determined with reference to the
wellhead price and transmission charges. In China, wellhead prices for
residential and fertilizer users are fixed, while wellhead prices for industrial
and commercial users may vary from the benchmark price set by the PRC
National Development and Reform Commission. Piped gas end-user tariffs
are determined by local pricing bureaus. There may be risk that the Group
is unable to obtain approval for passing through any increase in natural gas
price which would deteriorate the Group's profit.
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Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s principal business is located in the PRC and its major
transactions are conducted in Renminbi. Most of its assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi and Canadian dollars.

The Renminbi is not freely convertible. There is a risk that the Chinese
government may take actions affecting exchange rates which may have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s net assets, earnings and any dividends
it declares if such dividend is to be exchanged or converted into foreign
exchange. The Group has not entered into any hedging transactions to
manage the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies. The Group does not
consider that it has any significant exposure to the risk of fluctuation in the
exchange rate between HK$ and RMB.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Group will be unable to meet its
obligations when they fall due because of an inability to obtain adequate
funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, the Group monitors
cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to
ensure the ability to finance the Group’s operations and reduce the effects of
fluctuation in cash flows.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from external events. Responsibility for
managing operational risks basically rests with every function at divisional
and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by their standard operating
procedures, limits of authority and reporting framework. The management
will identify and assess key operational exposures regularly so that
appropriate risk response can be taken.

Environmental Policy and Performance

With increasing concerns of environmental issues, both in governmental
and civilian sectors become hypersensitive, despite certain expensive
environment-friendly measures have been planned and will be implemented,
some more strict requirements could be put into practice.
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Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and therefore the Company is
subject to The Bermuda Act. In addition, the Company is registered as a non-
Hong Kong Company under Part 16 of the Company (Chapter 622, Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”) and therefore is subject to the
relevant provisions under the Companies Ordinance.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) and therefore the Company is subject to the governance
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), including the disclosure requirements and corporate
governance provisions therein. Under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (the”SFO"), the Company is required to
maintain a register of interests in shares and short positions and a register of
directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged to
disclose price sensitive or inside information.

During the year under review, as far as the Board and management are
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on
the businesses and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets. Thus the
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the
employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees
and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners and bank enterprises to achieve its long
term goals. Accordingly, the management have kept good communication,
promptly exchanged ideas and shared business update with them when
appropriate. During the year under review, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its business partners or bank
enterprises.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board resolved to recommend to the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Thursday, 18 May 2017 (“2017 AGM") the distribution of a final dividend
of HK cent 0.50 (2015: Nil) per share out of the contributed surplus account
of the Company to be paid on Friday, 16 June 2017 to those shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Monday, 29 May 2017. The final dividend will amount to approximately
HK$29,128,000 (2015: Nil).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the identity of the shareholders to attend and vote at the
2017 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 12 May 2017 to Thursday, 18 May 2017 (both days inclusive) during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the 2017 AGM, all transfers of shares accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 11 May 2017.

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the proposed
distribution of final dividend, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 29 May 2017 to Wednesday, 31 May 2017
(both days inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 26 May 2017.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 220. This
summary does not form part of the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's revenue and results by operating segments for
the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS
The Group did not make any charitable donations during the year.
SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 32(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any share during the year ended 31 December
2016.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any debenture during the year ended 31
December 2016.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and the restricted share award scheme of
the Group in this Report of the Directors and as set out in note 32(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into by the Group during the year or subsisting at the end of the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) on 31 January 2002 and terminated the same at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 23 November 2011 (“SGM"),
details of the Old Share Option Scheme are set out in note 32(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 23 November 2011 at the SGM, details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 32(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 4 November 2011, the Board adopted a restricted share award scheme
(the “Restricted Share Award Scheme”) as an incentive to recognise the
contributions by employees and to give incentives in order to retain them for
their continuing operation and development and to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group, details of the Restricted Share Award
Scheme are set out in note 32(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-Laws") or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company, through the trustee of the Restricted Share
Award Scheme, purchased from the market 57,340,000 shares for the
purpose of the Restricted Share Award Scheme. Save as aforesaid, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the amount standing to the credit of the
Company’s share premium account in the amount of HK$24,578,000 may
also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares, and the Company'’s
contributed surplus account in the amount of HK$1,520,328,000 may be
distributed under certain circumstances.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers and customers are as follows:
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2016 2015
s —ThF
% %
Purchases EREE
— the largest supplier —RAHIER 35.4 31.9
— five largest suppliers combined —hAREEEEET 79.1 81.3
Turnover EER
— the largest customer —BRAEF 3.7 3.0
— five largest customers combined —hREF&ERT 11.7 7.6

None of the Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules or any shareholders (who, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any beneficial interests in
the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors

XU Tie-liang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
ZHU Yuan

GUAN Yijun

CHEUNG Shing

Independent Non-Executive Directors
LI Yunlong

SHI Xun-zhi

WANG Guangtian

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Xu Tie-liang, Mr. Shi
Xun-zhi and Mr. Wang Guangtian shall retire from office as Directors by
rotation at the 2017 AGM. Mr. Xu Tie-liang and Mr. Wang Guangtian being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. Shi Xun-zhi confirmed that he
will not offer himself for re-election at the 2017 AGM as he would like to
spend time pursuing his own business.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" and
“RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME" above and in notes 32(b) and (c)
to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Xu Tie-liang entered into a service contract with the Company on 10
April 2014 for a term of three years commencing from 10 April 2014. Mr. Xu
is subject to re-election at the 2017 AGM.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2017
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Group
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of SFO), which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provision of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code"), are set out below:
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Interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company

RABZRED - HERORES 2ERE

Approximate
percentage of the

Company's issued

Number of share capital

Long position/ ordinary | Amount of
Name of Director Capacity short position Notes shares held BETEA  debentures held
Esps L) HE/ KR lif3 BFEELEREE BREIL fisEsER
Xu Tie-liang Interest in controlled corporations Long position 1,2 1,427,554,130 24.50% US$1,000,000
FHER XEtEE 2 R e 1,000,000% 7T
Zhu Yuan Beneficial owner Long position 3 2,750,000 0.05% -
K BEEAA e
Cheung Shing Beneficial owner Long position 1,518,000 0.03% -
RAY E5EAA He
Notes: B

1. 353,120,130 ordinary shares and 1,074,434,000 ordinary shares of the
Company (“Shares”) are held through Sino Advance Holdings Limited
(“Sino Advance”) and Sino Vantage Management Limited (“Sino Vantage”)
respectively, both of which were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and are wholly-owned by Sino Best International Group Limited
(“Sino Best”) (a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability) which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang (“Mr.
Xu"). Therefore, Mr. Xu is deemed to be interested in 1,427,554,130 Shares
pursuant to the SFO.

2. An amount of US$1,000,000 of the US$350,000,000 5.25% senior notes of the
Company due 2018 are held through Sino Vantage.

3. These 2,750,000 shares include (1) 2,350,000 ordinary shares of the Company
held by Mr. Zhu Yuan; and (2) 400,000 restricted shares granted to Mr. Zhu
Yuan pursuant to the Restricted Share Award Scheme adopted by the Board on
4 November 2011.

%348 Sino Advance Holdings Limited ([Sino Advance])
JSino Vantage Management Limited([ Sino Vantage )
3 B8 2 R]353,120,130 A E 3% £ 1,074,434,000
BREBR(ZMELARHATEBHB RS
MR AERARTHTREREEERA A
(THHRER]) (ERBHERRESTMRNINE
RAT)2EHE  MPRBERABATSRRLE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2016, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO showed that other
than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors and chief
executives, the following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant
interests in the issued share capital of the Company:

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

Report of the Directors
EEHRES

(continued) (4)

FERR

RIZB-RET-A=+—08 REFFLHE
GPIE 336 IRMARIFE T EMRERAMEA
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@I MTIREREBAMARERA RS EITRA
Rz AR
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Approximate
percentage of the

Company'’s issued

Number of share capital

Name of Long position/ ordinary (PN

shareholder Capacity short position shares held 2RITRE

BRREEEHE 55 R/ KA HEEBRYE BMHABD

Sino Advance Beneficial owner Long position 353,120,130 6.06%
EREEA e

Sino Vantage Beneficial owner Long position 1,074,434,000 18.44%
EREEA e

Sino Best Interest in controlled corporations Long position 1,427,554,130 24.50%

FERER SEEHEE 2 e

Note: Sino Advance and Sino Vantage are wholly-owned by Sino Best which in turn is wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang. Hence, Mr. Xu is deemed to be interested in
353,120,130 ordinary shares and 1,074,434,000 ordinary shares of the Company held

through Sino Advance and Sino Vantage.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as having
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2016.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Director’s
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when the Report of the Board
of the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Exempt continuing connected transaction

The following continuing connected transaction constitutes an exempt
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

Appointment of Trustee for Restricted Share Award Scheme

The Trustee (Note) was appointed by the Company as trustee for the
administration of the Restricted Share Award Scheme adopted by the Board
on 4 November 2011. Service fee will be payable by the Company to the
Trustee according to the share award trust deed entered into between the
Company and the Trustee on 4 November 2011. The payment of the service
fees to the Trustee by the Company constitutes a continuing connected
transaction of the Company, but is exempt from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

HK$200,000 was paid/payable to the Trustee for the financial year ended 31
December 2016.

Note:

Best Thinker Limited (the “Trustee”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang,
an executive Director, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
which is therefore a connected person of the Company.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules during the year and
up to the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 38 to 54 of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in 1998 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting process,
and to review the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Li Yunlong (as chairman), Mr. Shi Xun-zhi and Mr.
Wang Guangtian. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2017 AGM to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

China Oil And Gas Group Limited
Xu Tie-liang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017

Report of the Directors
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The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance standard
and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure
in order to enhance the shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company was in compliance
with the relevant code provisions set out in the CG Code except for the
deviations as explained below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the responsibilities
between chairman and chief executive officer should be divided. Mr. Xu
Tie-liang is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning for the Group. The Board believes that the balance of
power and authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and is
adequately ensured by current Board which comprises experienced and high
caliber individuals with sufficient number thereof being independent non-
executive Directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term,
but they are subject to retirement from office by rotation at least once every
three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws.
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Code provision D.1.4 of the CG Code requires that the Company should
have formal letters of appointment for directors setting out the key terms
and conditions of their appointment. The Company did not have formal
letters of appointment for Directors (except for Mr. Xu Tie-liang). However,
the Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Bye-Laws. In addition, the Directors are required to refer to the guidelines
set out in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry
and “Guidelines for Directors” and “Guide for Independent Non-executive
Directors” (if applicable) published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors
in performing their duties and responsibilities as Directors. Besides, the
Directors are required to comply with the requirements under statute and
common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and
the Company'’s business and governance policies.

Save as the aforesaid and in the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
met the relevant code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company,
and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing
the operation and financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved
for its decision or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results,
approval of major capital transactions and other significant operational
and financial matters. The management was delegated the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the daily management of the Group. In
addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this report.
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The Board currently consists of seven Directors including four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Tie-liang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZHU Yuan

Ms. GUAN Yijun

Mr. CHEUNG Shing

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LI Yunlong

Mr. SHI Xun-zhi

Mr. WANG Guangtian

Save for Ms. Guan Yijun is the spouse of Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Board
members have no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with each other. Such balanced Board composition is formed to
ensure strong independence exists across the Board. The composition of the
Board reflects the balanced skills and experience for effective leadership.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out on pages 22 to 24
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors”.

The Board decides on corporate strategies, approves overall business plans
and evaluates the Group’s financial performance and management. Specific
tasks that the Board delegates to the Group’s management include the
implementation of strategies approved by the Board, the monitoring of
operating budgets, the implementation of internal controls procedures, and
the ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and other
rules and regulations.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board
remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and
provided a record of training they received for the financial year ended 31
December 2016 to the Company.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out below:

Name of Director

EEERBWE

(continued) (#)

HE-Z—R"FTA=+T—HILEFEMEES
EEZERBEYIREEIIMT

Attending or participating in seminars/

in-house briefing or reading materials relevant to

the Group’s business/director’s duties

HERSEEEEFEYE

BEEME ESREARC AL APERSRMAEME
Mr. XU Tie-liang FHKR oA v
Mr. ZHU Yuan K OBEELE v
Ms. GUAN Yijun MAsEL T v
Mr. CHEUNG Shing ¥ REE v
Mr. LI Yunlong FEERE v
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi SEINFLE v
Mr. WANG Guangtian TEHESE v

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company does not have a separate chairman and chief executive officer,
Mr. Xu Tie-liang currently performs these two roles. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group
and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the
Group. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority for the
present arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by
current Board which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with
sufficient number thereof being independent non-executive Directors.

Non-executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high caliber,
with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of accounting,
finance and petroleum. With their experience gained from various sectors,
they provide strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties
and responsibilities of the Board. Each independent non-executive Director
gives an annual confirmation of his independence to the Company, and the
Company considered each of them meets the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is independent. The independent
non-executive Directors are not appointed for specific term, but are subject
to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Bye-Laws.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 26 August 2013 (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board level will
support the attainment of the Company'’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including, but not limited, to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to time in
determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Policy to the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss and review the
measurable objectives for implementing the Policy from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives will be ascertained.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure
its continued effectiveness from time to time.

Board Meetings

The Board has four scheduled meetings a year at quarterly interval and
additional meetings will be held as and when required. The four scheduled
Board meetings for a year are planned in advance. During the regular
meetings of the Board, the Board reviewed the operation and financial
performance and reviewed and approved the annual and interim results.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board held 12 meetings. All
Directors are given an opportunity to include any matters in the agenda for
regular Board meetings, and are given sufficient time to review documents
and information relating to matters to be discussed in Board meetings in
advance.
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Name of Director

EEERBWE
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Number of attendance

BEEHE HESERE
Mr. XU Tie-liang KR oA 12/12
Mr. ZHU Yuan K EEE 12/12
Ms. GUAN Yijun MsEL L 12/12
Mr. CHEUNG Shing & OBEE 12/12
Mr. LI Yunlong FTERERE 12/12
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi SEINEEAE 12/12
Mr. WANG Guangtian FREALE 12/12

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have access to
Board papers and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required.

General Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 1 general meeting of the
Company, being the 2016 AGM, was held on 30 May 2016.

Name of Director
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Number of attendance

EEps HESBERE
Mr. XU Tie-liang FTERR A& 11
Mr. ZHU Yuan K OEBREAE 0/1
Ms. GUAN Yijun BEE Lzt 1/1
Mr. CHEUNG Shing sk RKSEAE 11
Mr. LI Yunlong FEEEAE 11
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi Eallibea 0/1
Mr. WANG Guangtian FREAELE 01

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other general
meetings to communicate with them and encourage their participation. Mr.
Xu Tie-liang, being the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the CG
Committee and Mr. Li Yunlong, being the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee, attended the 2016 AGM to
answer questions and collect views of shareholders.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates, especially their experience in the
natural gas industry and/or other professional area.

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference on 15 March 2006 and currently consists of two independent
nonexecutive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Guangtian (as chairman) and Mr.
Li Yunlong, and one executive Director, namely Mr. Cheung Shing. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee is currently made available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The function of the Nomination Committee are to review and monitor the
structure, size and diversity of the Board and made recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Group’s strategy;
to identify qualified individuals to become members of the Board; to assess
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors; to review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Policy, the
progress on achieving the objectives; and to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting. The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and
diversity of the Board, assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and considered and made recommendation to the Board
on the re-election of Directors.

Name of member
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Number of attendance

REHE HEERAE
Mr. WANG Guangtian TEALE 11
Mr. LI Yunlong FEESEE 1”1

Mr. CHEUNG Shing

11

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2016



Corporate Governance Report

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms
of reference on 13 January 2006 and currently consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Yunlong (as chairman) and Mr. Wang
Guangtian, and one executive Director, namely Mr. Cheung Shing.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is currently made
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 meeting. The Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management and the service contract
of an executive Director.

Name of member

EEERBWE
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Number of attendance

REHE HESERH
Mr. LI Yunlong TERERAE 171
Mr. WANG Guangtian FREASLE 11

Mr. CHEUNG Shing

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 23 November
2011. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Board to
grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Group. The Board has also adopted the Restricted
Share Award Scheme on 4 November 2011 as an incentive to recognise the
contributions by employees and to give incentives in order to retain them for
their continuing operation and development and to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group.

Details of the Share Option Scheme and the Restricted Share Award Scheme
are set out in notes 32(b) and (c) to the consolidated financial statements.
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The emolument payable to Directors and senior management will depend
on their respective contractual terms under the employment agreements, if
any, and is fixed by the Board with reference to the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Group and the prevailing
market conditions. Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in notes 11
and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in 1998. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Li Yunlong (as chairman), Mr. Shi Xun-zhi and Mr. Wang Guangtian.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made available
on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of such
auditor; reviewing the interim and annual reports and financial statements
of the Group; and overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system
including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
in charge of the Company’s financial reporting function and their training
arrangement and budget, and to review the risk management and internal
control systems.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss any area
of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the interim and
annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices
but also on the compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and
the legal requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual
report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings.

Name of member

EEERBWE

(continued) (4)

Number of attendance

REEE HEEERE
Mr. LI Yunlong FEEEE 2/2
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi SERIFELE 2/2
Mr. WANG Guangtian TFRER%E 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual and interim results of the Group, which were in the opinion of
the Audit Committee that the preparation of such results complied with the
applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established the CG Committee, with written terms of
reference, on 20 March 2012. The CG Committee comprises four executive
Directors, namely Mr. Xu Tie-liang (as chairman), Mr. Zhu Yuan, Ms. Guan
Yijun and Mr. Cheung Shing, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
Ms. Law Yin Shan, Jenny and the Company Secretary of the Company, Ms.
Chan Yuen Ying, Stella.

Terms of reference of the CG Committee is aligned with the code provisions
set out in the CG Code.

The functions of the CG Committee are to develop and review the
Company's policies and practices on corporate governance to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements and make
recommendations to the Board; to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and to review the Company’s
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the CG Committee
held 1 meeting. The CG Committee reviewed the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; and also
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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Name of member Number of attendance
o= L] HEERRH
Mr. XU Tie-liang FTERR 11
Mr. ZHU Yuan K OEEAE 171
Ms. GUAN Yijun BEE Lzt 11
Mr. CHEUNG Shing ik AL 11
Ms. LAW Yin Shan, Jenny Fryekiizeenn 11
Ms. CHAN Yuen Ying, Stella PRIEEL 22+ 1”1

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditor is
set out below:—

AT =

REER - BB R EIZEE 2 B2 &5 a0
T~

Services rendered Fee paid/payable
FriR AR %5 Bt EAER
HK$'000

FET

Audit services EIZART 2,300
Non-audit services: HEZRE -
2,300
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services
provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to provide compliance
and full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist
the Group to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit
different commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella (“Ms. Chan"), the representative of Uni-1, was
appointed as the named Company Secretary of the Company.

Ms. Law Yin Shan, Jenny, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, is
the primary point of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.
According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chan
had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual general
meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may
be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual
general meeting, shall be called a special general meeting. The Board may
whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings.

Shareholders to convene a special general meeting

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company
according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the Companies
Act of Bermuda. The procedures shareholders can use to convene a special
general meeting are set out in the document entitled “Procedures for
a Shareholder to Propose a Person for Election as a Director”, which is
currently available on the Company’s website.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board
Shareholders of the Company may send written enquires to the Company for

the attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals by shareholders at
shareholders’ meeting

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward a
proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@  any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights at the date of the requisition; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be deposited,
with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in giving
notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any necessary statement, at
the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong in the case of:—

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six weeks
before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.
The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the
necessary procedures.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the
resolutions to be set out in the notice of 2017 AGM will be voted by poll.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication
and reasonable disclosure of information to its shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the shareholders in the
following manner:

o Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all shareholders;

o Publication of announcements on the annual and interim results on
the Stock Exchange website, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing disclosure
obligations under the Listing Rules; and

o The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.

Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the CG
Committee, attended the 2016 AGM to answer questions of the meeting
and collect views of shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the Group'’s financial
performance and cash flows of the Group for that year. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of the CG Code
by establishing appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of such systems, while the Board oversees management
in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk
management and internal control systems are described in the sections
below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk associated
with its business and operations. The system comprises the following phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives and risks
that could affect the achievement of objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate the
risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2016, no significant risk was
identified.

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is compatible
with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The framework enables the Group
to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. The components of the framework are shown as follow:

o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and structures that
provide the basis for carrying out internal control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying and
analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a basis for
determining how risks should be managed.

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures to
help ensure that management directives to migitgate risks to the
achievement of objectives are carried out.
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o Information and Communication: Internal and external communication
to provide the Group with the information needed to carry out day-to-
day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain whether
each components of internal control is present and functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of
its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an inside
information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been
taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

o The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in possession
of inside information are fully conversant with their obligations to
preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters into
significant negotiations.

o The Executive Directors are designated persons who speak on behalf of
the Company when communicating with external parties such as the
media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2016, no significant
control deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which is consisted
of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily operation
and carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal control
systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating
effectiveness.

An IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the established
plan, review of the risk management and internal control systems is
conducted annually and the results are reported to the Board via Audit
Committee afterwards.
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Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of these
systems has been conducted annually. Several areas have been considered
during the Board's reviews, which include but not limited to (i) the changes
in the nature and extent of significant risks since the last annual review, and
the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the external
environment (ii) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring
of risks and of the internal control systems.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by IA function and
Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and internal control
systems were effective and adequate. Such systems, however, are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. It is also considered that the resources,
staff qualifications and experience of relevant staff were adequate and the
training programs and budget provided were sufficient.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year ended 31 December 2016.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT ESG REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”)
elaborated the various work of China Oil and Gas Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) fully implementing the
concept of sustainable development and performing its corporate social
responsibilities, and its performance of social governance in 2016.

Scope of the Report

The ESG Report focused on the environmental and social performance
of the core business of the Group in mainland China as well as the
subsidiary Baccalieu Energy Inc. (the “Baccalieu Company”) in Canada
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016 (the “Year”). As for the
information of corporate governance, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” on Pages 38 to 54.

Reporting Framework

The ESG Report was prepared based on the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities issued by the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Stakeholder Engagement

The Preparation of the ESG Report, which was supported by staff
from the Group’s different departments, enabled us to have a better
understanding of our current environmental and social development.
The information we gathered were not only the summary of the
environmental and social work carried out by the Group during 2016,
but also the basis for us to make short and long term strategies for
sustainable development.

Information and Feedbacks

For detailed information about the environmental and corporate
governance, please refer to the official website (www.hk603.com) and
the annual reports. Your opinions will be highly valued by the Group. If
you have any advices or suggestions, please email to: info@hk603.com.
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ADHERING TO GREEN DEVELOPMENT

In face of climate change, resource shortage and other global issues,
energy conservation and clean production have become the urgent
tasks of enterprise development. Protecting ecological environment
and tackling climate change is also the responsibility of every
corporate citizen. As a responsible energy enterprise, the Group
understands that only integrating the concept of green development
into every detail of its daily operations management can the Group
sustainably develop, provide better products and services, and make
contribution to the harmonious development of economic growth
and environmental protection. To this end, the Group is mindful of its
mission of “Developing the Clean Energy Business and Ensuring the
Sustainable Development of Mankind”. With the vision of “Building
an Influential Clean Energy Company”, the Group strives to reduce the
environmental impact of its production and business activities while
promoting the use of clean energy.

The Group's operations in mainland China include the supply of piped
city gas, liquefied natural gas (LNG) and compressed natural gas (CNG),
the operation of natural gas stations for automobiles and boats, and
the transmission of LNG and CNG. The Group has strictly abided by the
laws, regulations and industry standards on environmental protection
and pollutant discharge in the country and the regions where it
operates, such as the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China (PRC), the Environmental Impact Assessment Law
of the PRC, the Regulations on the Administration of Construction
Project Environmental Protection, Health, Safety and Environmental
Management System of Petroleum and Natural Gas Industries (SY/
T6276-1997), etc., and established the environmental management
system and procedures based on these provisions. The subsidiaries have
also developed Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) Implementing
Rules for requested projects based on local authorities’ requirements.

The Baccalieu Company’s business is mainly engaged in the exploration
of economical Cardium formation light petroleum resources in the
mid-west of Alberta, Canada. The planning and implementation of all
operations are strictly in accordance with the company’s HSE policies.
The company strives to meet or exceed the requirements of the laws
and regulations concerning oil and gas exploration, environmental
protection and pollutant emissions at the federal and provincial level, as
well as the regulations issued by the Alberta Energy Regulator (AER).
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Waste Treatment

The Group’s daily operations are dominated by the supply and
transportation of gas, and are less involved with construction. For
projects requiring construction, construction contractors will strictly
supervise waste discharge and disposal on construction sites. And the
disposal methods for different wastes are as follows:

—  Wastes must be cleaned up and recycled at any time.
Construction materials should be tidied up and the sites should be
clean when construction ended.

- Wastes shall be classified, stored, and recycled according to local
requirements of waste disposal. Recyclable waste must be kept in
a separate place.

—  The dirt cleared out through pigging operations when a pipeline
comes into service, the waste anti-corrosion materials produced
by the joint coating of a pipeline for anti-corrosion, the waste
sand generated by sandblasting and other wastes, are required
to be recovered and centralized treated. Welding heads, waste
grinding wheels and packaging shall be collected every day and
dumped in places where local industrial wastes are stacked, or
local authorities approve.

—  The construction sites must also place garbage collection bins to
recycle plastic bags, mineral water bottles and other garbage.
Willful discard causing white pollution is prohibited.

— In addition to special requirements, garbage shall be sent to the
designated places near the construction sites. If such places do
not exist, garbage must be buried in the landfill approved by
local authorities with the burial depth exceeding 1 meter. When
burying wastes, it is not allowed to choose a place where it is
susceptible to cause erosion or contaminate groundwater.

- When construction ended, temporary toilets shall be removed.
Landforms shall be restored to its original shape. Toilet feces shall
be drained into local dedicated sewer.
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2.2

In addition to the wastes discharged during the construction process,
the emissions generated from the Group’s business also include a
small amount of exhaust gas and waste oil produced by CNG stations,
exhaust emissions from diesel vehicles, office waste, domestic sewage,
and oil-based drill-cuttings and water-based drill-cuttings from oil
exploration fields, etc., among which the waste oil will be stored in
special recycling devices and transported to special processing plants,
the office waste and drill-cuttings will be collected and disposed
by local municipal departments, and the domestic sewage will be
discharged into local sewage treatment plants.

Environment Protection

For projects requiring construction, the Group and its subsidiaries have
clarified the management responsibilities of each post and taken the
following measures to protect the local ecological environment and
avoid the occurrence of environmental pollution and ecological damage
on construction sites:

—  All construction units shall organize the constructors to participate
in environmental knowledge training. Construction personnel
shall follow the requirements of civilized construction. Polluting
or damaging the surrounding environment is strictly prohibited.
During the construction period, full-time supervisors shall
develop environmental protection measures according to relevant
environmental management regulations and the characteristics of
construction projects to supervise and inspect the sites.

—  Construction sites shall use natural or original lands as much as
possible. Construction paths shall avoid wetlands and aquaculture
areas as far as possible. Constructors shall furthest protect
original trees, shrubs, crops and surface vegetation, and avoid
unnecessary deforestation and destruction. The surface soil of
farmlands shall be protected when mending temporary roads.
Landforms shall be restored to its original state when the work
is completed. The construction season or time in environment
sensitive areas shall be reasonably arranged to reduce the impact
on these areas.

—  Equipment operators shall routinely check the equipment every
day. When gas leak, water oozing out, liquid dropping, liquid leak
and other manifestations are found, such equipment must be
timely repaired, and the polluted soil must be cleaned out.

2.2

BT TARPHRNERY  SEXRA
EBEENTFRYERIECNG IR EE
B ERER A - SOmE RSP
BR - MARRAMAERFK - AmFERE
BELNMEERBITKEEES  Hf
BEHAEALOREEFRLEEEMNE
TR WP ASAR AN B R T AR
WER IR - ATR)SKPEAE 5 KRR

RER R

HRFBERIWER  SERESHERA
AT EEUNEERE  REUATHEG
REZHAERIRE  BRETIRSGELR
BB R RRBUR R

- BEIBUAEKEBERRIAEZM
RERMBIZI > T ABEXHIE
T BEHEABERFERSREME
2 THRHEREE BRIEAR
RREIERTE M TIA B BB HIE
RERERR  EEREERRS -

— TIHEAENABANKRAMNRE
e e TERBEE MR KER
B WHRAREMREREGRA
ER - RIEDMBRER - BET Y
R H) KM RIE ¢ (R IR TR
o ARERLT - SRR
EHR EREFRRETIAGER
PR T FENSRESFE] - IR iE b (&
EZ K

— REREAEBSRYIHEETOHTR
BT8R SHEEH
BRERE WHEISRMTIEET
TBRREEE o

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2016



2.3

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

—  Construction operations shall try to avoid impacting on wildlife
habitats and drinking water sources. During the construction
period, the mechanical noise and vehicle moving speed shall be
controlled. Hunting, killing, purchasing, and scaring wild animals
as well as littering wastes to the environment are prohibited.

— In order to prevent soil erosion, the operating belt shall occupy
farmlands and fruit trees as little as possible. Constructors shall
try to not damage surface vegetation and original soil. Cleaning
work belt shall follow the principle of protecting farmlands, fruit
trees and vegetation, preventing or reducing the soil erosion.
Slope protection measures shall be taken on steep flocks, river
banks and ditch banks where water and soil erosion may occur.
Backfilling shall be carried out at the places approved by relevant
local authorities. Arbitrary soil-filling is prohibited.

In addition, the Group also pays attention to improving the
environmental awareness of all employees’ both in production and
living.

Resource Conservation

Resource shortage has become an important factor restricting the
development of human society. The sustainable use of resources is
the core of sustainable development. While the world is paying more
and more attention to resource conservation, the Group has also
implemented a number of measures to reduce water and electricity
consumption and improve the utilization efficiency of resources,
including using light-emitting diode (LED) lamps and other energy-
saving devices, encouraging employees to shut down computers,
copiers, lights, drinking fountains and other facilities in non-office
hours, maintaining air conditionings’ temperature at 25 degrees
Celsius, implementing office automation system (OA System) to replace
traditional paper-based office as far as possible, avoiding or reducing
unnecessary copying and printing, printing on both sides, reusing
paper, using eco-friendly paper to print publications and flyers, reusing
remaining flyers, refusing to use disposable items like paper cups, using
hand dryers instead of paper towels, placing garbage collection bins
to recycle waste paper, printer cartridges and batteries, donating used
computers, office supplies and furniture to charities, installing water-
saving faucets, urinals and toilets in bathrooms and so on.
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At present, three subsidiaries of the Group have obtained certifications
concerning environmental management system: PHEEFHIARGR
ET/2A] has obtained HSE Management System (Q/SY1002.1-2013)
Certificate, F/EFHH T LERERMLABR AR has obtained HSE
Management System (Q/SY1002.1-2013) Certificate, and EEFE e
WA BB AT has obtained Environmental Management System
(GB/T24001-2004/ISO14001:2004) Certificate. During the Year, the
subsidiary AUEA TR (2R ) BRAE] received the honorary title of
“Advanced Unit for Transportation Energy Conservation and Emission
Reduction”.

2.4 Promoting Clean Energy

China is the world’s largest emitter and the second largest economy.
Over the past few decades, although the economy develops rapidly,
China has paid a huge price in environment and resources: The serious
overcapacity problem in high pollution and high energy consumption
industries that use coal as the main fuel has not only led to a slowdown
in economic growth, but also caused increasingly severe haze and
environmental pollution. Natural gas is a low-carbon clean energy
between traditional fossil fuels and renewable energy sources. It
has various advantages such as being green, affordable, abundant,
easily accessible, safe and reliable. Adjusting the energy structure and
increasing the proportion of natural gas to primary energy sources is
the most realistic way to tackle climate change and improve air quality.

As a natural gas supplier, in 2016, the Group actively responded to
Chinese government’s strategy of “Reducing Carbon Emission and
Smog”, vigorously promoted market development based on high-
quality city gas projects, and participated in “Coal to Gas” project
of coal-fired boilers and “Oil to Gas” project of transport vehicles.
The Group successively obtained the city gas concession rights of
five towns, namely Huaian District in Jiangsu Province (Songji Village,
Shunhe Town, Qingong Town, Jiaoling Village and Suzui Town), Wulie
District in Dongtai City, Jiangsu Province, Zhangye economic and
technological development zone in Zhangye City, Gansu Province,
and Sanfutan Town in Xiantao City, Hubei Province, and is providing
abundant and clean natural gas resources to more and more users.
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By December 31 2016, the Group had obtained the city gas concession
rights of 70 cities in 15 provinces and autonomous regions in China,
and been providing clean and efficient natural gas resources to
over 1,100,000 urban residents and nearly 10,000 industrial and
commercial enterprises. The Group had owned 55 natural gas stations,
1,055 kilometers long high-pressure transmission pipelines, and
7,530 kilometers long pipeline network, which forms a diversified
development pattern with an integration of upstream and downstream,
resources exploration and energy service being the wings, and city gas
projects being the principal part. In the future, the Group will make use
of its powerful user base and sales network as well as the advantage
of abundant gas source to continuously acquire more concession rights
projects. Though these projects, the Group expects to further expand
domestic gas market, provide the economic development of the areas
where it operates with stable clean energy, and promote natural gas to
become the main force of city gas energy structure.

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES' RIGHTS

Employees are the bridge between customers and the Group. The
Group's development and growth arise from a rigorous, pragmatic,
united and dedicated employee team. The Group upholds the concept
of “Combining Ability with Character, Making the Best Use of
Employees’ Ability, and Growing Simultaneously”, pays attention to
the needs of employees, and actively expands employees’ development
channels. The Group is committed to creating a safe and healthy
working environment and a rich and warm cultural life for employees
to realize the interdependence, mutual promotion and common
development between employees and the Group.

Labor Policy

The Group has conscientiously abided by the Labor Law of the PRC,
the Labor Contract Law of the PRC, and the laws and regulations
concerning labor in the regions where it operates. Based on these
provisions, the Group has established a relatively perfect employment
management system.

3.1
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For vacant posts, the Group encourages its subsidiaries to give
priority to internal recommendation and local recruitment, assess
the educational background, work experience and qualifications of
candidates based on the principle of equal competition, and recruit
employees according to personal qualities. The Group also advocates
diverse workforce, and supports employees under different cultural
background to respect each other’s religious beliefs, customs and
hobbies and build friendly relationship. For employees who violate the
rules and regulations of the Group or commit crimes, the Group has
the right to terminate the labor contract. As for employees who are sick
or suffering non-work-related injuries during the prescribed medical
period, or female employees in pregnancy, maternity or lactation, and
the other cases stated in relevant laws and regulations, the Group shall
retain the labor contract in accordance with the provisions.

For the person to be recruited, the Human Resources Department
will verify his or her identity documents to avoid recruiting child labor
and set the salary level according to the position, the subsidiary’s
operating situation and the market price. The Group, regardless of age,
seniority, gender, and race, upholds the principle of fair and equitable
employment, prefers actual ability to educational background,
evaluates performance over seniority instead of qualification, and
promotes and rewards employees according to performance and
contribution. The Group also provides employees with insurances
of retirement, medical care, work injury, career, maternity, housing
provident fund, festival allowance and other benefits in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations in the regions where it operates.

The Group implements three working schedules, namely standard
working hours system, flexible working hours system and
comprehensive working hours system. Approved by the labor and social
security authorities, the Group’s subsidiaries arrange different working
schedules for employees according to business characteristics and job
requirements, and ensure that employees work no more than 40 hours
a week. Employees enjoy sick leave, personal leave, marriage leave,
funeral leave, maternity leave, annual leave and statutory holidays. Each
subsidiary shall arrange compensatory leave or pay overtime premium
to employees who work overtime according to the national regulations
or the Group's regulations.
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During the Year, the total number of employees of the Group is 3,515,
among which 3,493 are from mainland China, 11 are from Hong Kong
and 11 are from Canada. The statistics of the number of employees in
mainland China divided by region and age are shown in Table 1. During
the Year, the Group lost 253 employees who are less than 30 years old,
167 employees between 30 and 50 years old, and 57 employees over
50 years old.

Table 1. Employee Number of the Group in mainland China in
2016 (by December 31 2016)
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3.2 Personnel Training

Personnel’s training is a key factor in the sustainable development
of enterprises. Therefore, the Group pays attention to creating
harmonious and positive cultural atmosphere, strives to build self-
improvement and self-actualization platform for each employee, and
creates greater value for the community so as to achieve simultaneous
growth of employees and the Group.

The Human Resources Department of the Group makes the annual
training plan every year. All departments periodically organize special
trainings and assessments for employees. The employees’ trainings
organized by the Group headquarters are shown in Table 2. The Group
also opens an online distance education platform for the employees
of subsidiaries to log in and study. Using the Group’s training plan as
reference, the subsidiaries also provide special trainings for employees
in different positions according to the actual demands, such as
employee entry or position change training, safety education training,
service etiquette and skills training. During the Year, the Group
provided various training courses for employees with a total time of
118 hours.

Table 2. Employee Training Activities of the Group Headquarters
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3.3 Caring for Employees 3.3 BEET

The success of employees’ career is inseparable from healthy body
and harmonious family. Regarding employees as the greatest wealth,
the Group not only pays attention to the spiritual and cultural needs
of employees and commits itself to helping employees balance work
and life, but also spares no efforts to solve the difficulties employees
encountered so as to enhance employees’ enthusiasm and sense of
belonging.

On June 22, upon learning one employee was sick, Qinghai Gas
Business Division immediately proposed a donation among affiliated
companies. The donation received a total of RMB58,670 from 990
employees in 10 subsidiaries managed by Qinghai Gas Business
Division, and RMB10,000 from the union funds of CCNG Western
Region Trade Union. The donation displayed that the employees
are among a unity and like members of one family. On June 8, the
subsidiary &N A hA R AR E LA 7] organized a team to participate
in the “Fifth Fire-fighting Sports Meeting of Binzhou Economic and
Technological Development Zone”, which enriched employees’ amateur
life and improved employees’ enthusiasm for firefighting and their fire
safety awareness. On December 23, the Group held the fun fitness
games “Burning Passion and Lighting Tomorrow” to welcome the New
Year in its headquarters with 65 employees in total attending games
like kangaroo jump, throw and catch. The activity not only provided
the opportunity for employees to exercise, but also cultivated their
teamwork, mutual aid and friendship.

During the Year, the Group and its subsidiaries also organized
badminton competitions, outdoor expanding trainings, hiking, “Making
Rice-dumplings to Celebrate the Dragon Boat Festival”, social gathering
for welcoming the Spring Festival, speech contest, literary competition
and other various employee activities, which enabled employees to
maintain healthy body and pleasant mental state.
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The Group not only pays attention to the spiritual and cultural needs of employees and commits itself to helping employees balance work and life, but
also spares no efforts to solve the difficulties employees encountered so as to enhance employees’ enthusiasm and sense of belonging.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2016



4.1

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IMPROVING PRODUCTION AND OPERATION

Enterprise is a sophisticated and complex machine, the efficient and
smooth operation of which cannot be separated from the effective
operation of each step. Hence, the Group strictly controls every step
of the production and operation processes, and constantly improves
its management to create greater value for customers and yield more
benefits for community.

Safety Production

Safety production is the most important aspect in natural gas industry.
The safe and stable supply and transmission of natural gas is related
to the social and economic stability of a city as well as the safety of
citizens' life and property. To reduce and prevent security incidents,
based on the Safety Production Law of the PRC, the Administrative
Regulations on City Gas and other laws and regulations, together
with the Safety Technical Regulations on Operation, Maintenance
and Repair of Urban Gas Facilities (CJJ51-2016) and other industry
standards, the Group has developed comprehensive, meticulous safety
management approaches with clear separation of duties. Based on
the above provisions and their own business operations, the Group’s
subsidiaries have developed their own production safety management
systems, including management assessment of safety objectives,
investment guarantee of safety production, safety education and
training, certificate management of special operating personnel,
safety production inspection, rectification of potential safety hazard,
special operating license management, distribution and management
of labor protection articles, safe operation management, fire safety
management, emergency rescue management and so on.

In accordance with the relevant requirements, the Group has assigned
the safety production responsibility to every level, and implemented the
one-ballot veto system for security accident in annual assessment. Every
year the headquarters signs safety objectives responsibility agreement
with each subsidiary, requires the Safety Inspection Department to
organize two safety inspections, rewards individuals or teams who have
performed well during the safety production process, issues rectification
notice to undesirable situations and follows up the rectification. The
subsidiaries also conduct safety checks on a quarterly basis or on a
monthly basis in accordance with their respective regulations. The
Baccalieu Company also holds safety meetings on a quarterly basis.
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411

4.1.2

Occupational Hazard Prevention

The Group has always attached importance to employees’ health
and safety, and strictly complied with the “Occupational Disease
Prevention Law of the PRC"”, the “Management Guidelines on Urban
Gas Transmission and Distribution” and other laws and regulations,
the Group’s safety management approaches, and other provisions
to standardize employees’ behavior and avoid occupational injuries.
The subsidiaries have formulated the Practicing Rules for Practitioners
in accordance with the above provisions and their actual operations,
provided all employees with necessary labor protection articles,
education, training and health checks, and guided employees to wear
and use protective equipment properly, so as to ensure that the labor
safety and hygiene conditions meet the standards of the country or
the regions where the subsidiary operates. Employees are required
to participate in the vocational qualifications and special operations
training organized by the competent departments, and shall not start
to work until receiving qualification certificate. The certificates will
be submitted to relevant departments for review according to their
reviewing period. During the production process, employees must keep
in mind and strictly abide by the operation rules. If any major potential
safety hazard and occupational hazard endangering their lives are
found, the employees have the right to refuse the illegal command and
forced operation; if such refusal is denied, employees have the right to
immediately evacuate the dangerous scene, and inform or report to the
relevant authorities.

Safety Education and Training

The Group has stipulated that the front-line employees who are newly
recruited shall participate in the safety education and training at three
levels: company, department (station), and team. The contents of the
pre-job training at company level include the national safety production
laws and regulations, the company’s safety production situation, basic
knowledge of safety production, the company’s safety production
regulations and labor disciplines, employees’ safety production rights
and duties, accident emergency rescue, emergency response plan
drill, precautionary measures, and accident cases. The contents of
the pre-job training at department (station) level include the working
environment and risk factors, the potential occupational injuries
and casualties in the workplace, safety duties, operational skills and
mandatory standards of the job, self and mutual medical aid, first aid,
evacuation and on-site emergency handling, use and maintenance of
safety equipment and personal protective articles, safety production
status, regulations of the department (station), prevention measures
of accidents and occupational hazards, safety precautions to be
observed, accident cases, and other contents that require training. The
contents of pre-job training at team level include job safety operation
procedures, safety cooperation between posts, occupational health
issues, accident cases, and other contents that require training.
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Pre-job training and education are organized by subsidiaries on their
own. The education time at all levels shall not be less than 24 hours,
and the total education time shall not be less than 72 hours. Only
after mastering the necessary safety knowledge and skills and passing
the assessment, can the employee start to work. When changing
jobs or using new crafts, new technologies, new equipments and
new materials, employees need to participate in specialized safety
education and induction training; without participating in safety
education and training, employees shouldnt start to work. In
addition, the Group also irregularly organizes trainings like safety
knowledge lectures, fireproofing publicity and education, first aid,
and cardiopulmonary resuscitation courses, and arranges operational
procedures and fireproofing safety education based on the working
condition of employees in key places. The subsidiaries have also
developed corresponding safety education and training programs, and
implemented the trainings as planned.

Safe Operation

Standard operation is the prerequisite and guarantee for safety
production. The Group has formulated that, equipment operators must
achieve “Four Understand” (understand the structure, understand
the principle, understand the performance, understand the use), and
“Three Know How" (know how to use, know how to maintain, know
how to remedy troubles), follow the equipment operating procedures,
and never operate equipment under over temperature, overpressure,
and overload conditions. In addition to providing the position operation
procedures training for the operators at the production front line and
the operation site according to the actual demands, the Group and
its subsidiaries also arrange for supervisory personnel to supervise and
inspect whether operators have complied with the labor discipline and
operating procedures during the production process.

For projects that requiring construction, the on-site employees must
comply with the requirements for safety operation. The equipment,
tools and materials on construction sites should be placed in
accordance with design and safety requirements. Operation sites
must set up conspicuous safety warning signs, and keep the ground
smooth and unblocked, easy to access, carry out operations, and
evacuate in case of emergency. At night, construction sites must set
up enough lightings meeting the explosion-proof requirements within
the operating area. In terms of roadside operations, conspicuous safety
warning signs are required to remind pedestrians and passing vehicles.
After dark, the sites should set up signal lights and arrange watch
keepers to prevent people or vehicles falling into operating pits.

4.1.3
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4.1.4 Emergency Rescue

In order to prevent and control potential accidents or emergencies
and minimize the impact of accidents, the Group has stipulated

preparations and response measures for emergency rescue:

Forecast and early warning — Each subsidiary shall establish
forecasting and early warning systems for accidents that may
occur, and carry out hazard source identification, environmental
factor identification and risk assessment. Emergency personnel
should be familiar with the emergency telephone number or other
alarm methods.

Emergency disposal — After the accident occurs, the on-site
personnel and reinforcements shall start contingency plans in
accordance with their duties and authorities, and take response
measures to control the situation timely and effectively.

Recovery and reconstruction — The accident casualties, emergency
personnel and urgently mobilized materials shall be supplemented
in accordance with provisions. The relevant departments shall
carry out post-treatment and environmental pollution elimination
work, investigate and assess the cause, impact and responsibility
of the accident, and the lessons learned, as well as start
rehabilitation work.

Emergency insurance — The preparation of emergency response
and the human resources, financial resources, materials,
transportation, personnel protection and medical security of the
response work shall be strengthened.

Supervision and management — Each subsidiary shall conduct
comprehensive emergency plan drill at least once a year. The
relevant departments shall organize trainings concerning
emergency laws and regulations, hazard prevention, sheltering,
self-help, mutual aid, disaster reduction and other common
senses. The departments shall honor and award the advanced
collective and individuals who make outstanding contributions in
emergency management, and punish those who report belatedly,
misstate, conceal the accident, and conduct other dereliction of
duty to cause casualties or significant economic losses.
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At present, eight subsidiaries of the Group have obtained safety
management system certifications: FAEAFRRRARBEAT], HZ
MRARARRBRETAA, and kP RRRERELAR have
obtained the Second-Class Work Safety Standardization Certificate, 2=
MR EEREEAT and FBINFHBEBAARERAE have
obtained the Third-Class Work Safety Standardization Certificate, &/&
FmHT T EBEEMFARAA] has obtained the HSE Management
System (Q/SY1002.1-2013) Certificate, EEREFRMRRBR ST AT
has obtained the Occupational Health and Safety Management System
(OHSAS18001:2007) Certificate, and # ) F Z= 7 (%8 ) BIR A7) has
obtained the Work Safety Standardization Certificate of Transportation
Enterprise.

During the activity “Safety Production Month” in June, the subsidiaries
carried out 160 activities in total, such as broadcasting education
videos, knowledge study of safety production, post training of safety
production, safety knowledge competition, emergency drills of safety
production accidents, capturing photos on potential safety hazards,
issued more than 70,000 copies of a variety of leaflets and provided
consultation to 12,000 people. The Activities improved the safety
awareness of employees and mobilized their enthusiasm. This year,
the Group has conscientiously implemented the safety management
regulations, no major accidents happened. The subsidiary Y&/
MRBREMLAF was recognized as the “Provincial Benchmarking
Enterprise that Build Up Two Systems: Safety Production Risk
Classification Management and Potential Safety Hazards Investigation
and Management”.

20166 A6H  EEMAEXNEREGUST ERBEF 17 2ETHETEL LG -
On June 6™, 2016, the management team of Qinghai Gas Business Division conducted a 17 km inspection tour on eastern Qinghai regional branch
pipeline.
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4.2 Supply Chain Management 4.2 HEEERE

The materials need to be purchased in the construction and production
operations consist of seven kinds of commonly used materials which
include polyethylene (PE) pipes, PE pipe fittings, steel valves, pressure
regulating equipments, flow meters, gas meters, and steel pipes,
and some non-commonly used materials (such as compressors, CNG
facilities, LNG facilities, etc.). In order to standardize the material
procurement management of the Group and ensure a standard,
clean and efficient procurement process, the Group has formulated
the material procurement management approaches and divided the
material purchase into 4 types, namely catalog procurement, material
bidding and tendering, materials price inquiry and comparison, and
offline purchase.

Catalog procurement is mainly used for PE gas pipes, PE ball valves,
PE pipe fittings, gas meters, flow meters, low-pressure manual ball
valves, copper ball valves, gas meter joints and other materials. The
Group invites a unified public bidding on catalog materials (catalog
materials refer to materials obtained through catalog procurement)
annually, and determines the winning unit and the highest purchase
limit. The materials bidding is mainly applied to construction project
individual contracts and comprehensive purchase contracts that exceed
RMB500,000, or individual contracts for procurement, design, project
supervision, non-destructive testing, and individual purchase contracts
that exceed RMB300,000. The Group and its subsidiaries shall carry out
the bidding in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Bidding
Law of the PRC and the regulations on the administration of project
services and materials procurement formulated by the Group. The price
inquiry and comparison is generally used for non-catalog materials
and materials meeting bidding requirements. And offline purchase is
applied to materials that need to be purchased locally.

In order to establish a market access management system with high
standard, reasonable procedures, and orderly competition, and form
a reliable service provider resources network, the Group developed
the market access management approaches. The main business scope
of market access includes gas special planning, project consultation,
gas engineering survey, design, construction engineering, piped
gas construction, supervision, and nondestructive testing, supply of
gas equipments, pipe fittings, gas instrumentations, valves, station
equipments and other major materials, construction of supervisory
control and data acquisition (SCADA) system, geographic information
system (GIS), and other information system. When choosing a service
provider, the Group mainly considers its achievements in reputation,
credibility, performance scale, service quality, production capacity,
safety management, environmental protection and other aspects.
The market access management approaches clearly propose the
market access conditions that the service providers should satisfy. The

TRERMEEELTRTERBONER
FERLEPE)EM - PEE M - #HIRIPT
HERE - REF  MRER - WMEIEBE
THEBRAEYMEN—LIEBREYE (B
MEHE - CNGHHe - LNGRRIESE ) - AR &
SENYERBEEINFE  REVERE
HE - BRR SRERE SEBETYE
REEERME  XHVMEREN BB HR
B MERKRE MERLENETRE
mEs -

BB I EANPEMEE « PEBRR - PE
B MRRE - RER EEFEIRME -
MM MEREBESVERE  £E8E
FHESME (ARESKENYEREAR
BWE)BTTHR—BIE  BEPEREMER
BRERE VEABRESIZARIRER
ITEEERANGEMERECRGE SRS
FEDSOB T AR £ iR - &5
TiRER  EERABESRMEEYE
REBARGELBAEIETAREN LR
BHE EREMBARBRRB(PEARK
MEBERIZE )R EBIEH TRRBEAM
MEFEBRREERE MM SHEERTE
FRIBIZ - MERALLE—RARKB &Y
EREFNBEZERNME  BHABARA
TIREBRBAETEE - STRBERAR
TEEMRENYE -

RENITRRE BFAE BFEAFH
MHEAEERRR  ERAENKREEE
RABME - EEBIE T MISEABTREE -
BETTHEANTE2EBREEBERAMN
THRAZHEREGE HAZH MR
TEHE - Rt BEIRE BEME
I BREREERA KARE B
MEMS MEEREE B 5HR
BETEWENHRE  BBRERET
(Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition,
SCADA) 4% ~ #I2{5 B &4 (Geographic
Information System, GIS) &5 B/L R4
B SEEERERBEN  TEEREHE
HEEBEREE XERR BRBESE  £E
BN ZERREFENKE - MHAEA

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2016



4.3

4.4

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Group evaluates the service providers who have obtained the access
certification every year to improve the supply chain management and
reduce the environmental and social risks.

Product Quality

The Group has demanded that the quality of the piped natural gas
purchased from upstream gas suppliers shall meet class 1 or class 2
of the national standard Natural Gas (GB17820-2012). Gas suppliers
are required to provide gas quality report. The supply contract signed
between the Group and gas suppliers shall disclose gas components.

The quality of the LNG produced by LNG processing plants of the
Group shall meet the relevant requirements in General Characteristics
of LNG (GB/T19204-2003) and Quality Evaluation Standards of Import
and Export LNG (SN/T2491-2010). The quality of the CNG supplied by
CNG stations shall meet the relevant requirements in CNG for Vehicles
(GB18047-2000) and other standards.

At present, 6 subsidiaries of the Group have obtained quality
management system certification: FAZEHHRTARE T AE], HEF
AHATTERERRTERAR, BMFEPRMREEEERAR], BN
FRPRRREEREAEREAAR, BMNPHPREEBRAH and
EEpER MM A AR E(L/AR] have obtained the Quality Management
System (1SO9001:2008) Certificate.

Customer Service

In order to improve customer service quality and standardize the
handling procedures of customers’ complaints, the Group has
developed the “Customer Complaints Management System”. The
subsidiaries have set up customer service centers locally to provide
customers with installation application, repair application, fee payment,
consultation, installation booking, safety inspection booking, making
complaints and other services. In order to know customers’ concerns
as well as enhance the relationships between the Group and users, the
subsidiaries have set up customer focus groups. The groups regularly
enter communities, schools and enterprises to promote the gas safety
knowledge, listen to customers’ comments, and answer their questions.
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4.5

Customers can lodge complaints about the Group’s products and
services through lobby managers, 24-hour complaints telephone,
fax, opinion boxes, opinion sheets, the company’s website and
other channels. The “Customer Complaints Management System”
provides that after the Customer Service Department receives a
complaint, it should make a record, then initially determine the
level of the complaint based on the complaint contents, and finally
implement the appropriate handling process in accordance with the
requirements and within the prescribed time limit. After the complaint
is handled, the Customer Service Department will record and archive
the investigation results, handling results, responsible department,
responsible person, preventive and corrective measures, and so on. In
order to protect customers’ privacy, the Group has stipulated that the
customer complaint registration forms filled in by the Customer Service
Department shall be collected by month and bound for safekeeping.
And the relevant personnel involved in customer complaint handling
procedures shall be responsible for the confidentiality of the customer’s
information and the complaint contents.

In order to supervise the handling of complaints, the Group has
requested the leaders in charge of customer service to conduct regular
and irregular inspections. If the following situations happen, such
as neglecting customers’ complaints, unduly delaying the time limit
for handling, concealing customers’ complaints, fabricating false
information, and failing to timely report and take measures to handle
major events, the employee in charge shall be punished in accordance
with provisions.

Advertising and Intellectual Property

The Group has strictly abided by the laws and regulations concerning
advertising and intellectual property rights in the regions where it
operates, such as the Advertising Law of the PRC, the Trademark Law
of the PRC, the Intellectual Property Law of the PRC, and the Patent
Law of the PRC. The Group uses TV and propagandist handbooks to
advertise its products and services, and promises never to use false
advertisement and description to mislead consumers. The Group also
prevents infringement of others’ intellectual property rights, patents,
copyright and other rights and interests. If any infringement of the
Group’s rights and interests causing economic losses occurs, the
Group will claim for reimbursement according to relevant laws and
regulations.
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4.6 Privacy Protection

4.7

In order to protect the privacy of the Group and customers, the
Group has formulated certain confidentiality policies to restrict
current employees and separated employees to prevent the leakage
of business secrets. Current employees cannot lend out or otherwise
disclose customers’ information, including the price of the agreement
signed with customers, dealings record, important information, special
strategies, etc. Neither current employees can disclose customers’
information in private contact and communication, nor talk about the
Group's secrets in public places. Confidential statistical data must be
treated as strictly confidential by relevant personnel, timely backed up,
properly stored to prevent loss, and provided according to the Group’s
provisions.

If the employee who applies for resignation had signed a confidentiality
agreement, the Group will assign other task for him and not
terminate the labor contract before the expiration of the four-month
confidentiality term. Within the two years after the expiration of the
confidentiality term and labor contract, the employee may not work
for employers who have a competitive relationship with the Group,
produce similar products or operate similar business on his or her own.
The Group will give employees economic compensation on a monthly
basis within the non-competition period. If the employee leaks business
secrets and causes economic losses to the Group and customers, the
Group will punish him according to relevant regulations.

Incorruptible Employment

Resisting corruption and advocating integrity and self-discipline is the
consistent principle of the Group. The Group attaches great importance
to anti-corruption work and pursues strict supervision and punishment
mechanisms. The subsidiaries have formulated rules and regulations
to prevent corruption and bribery. When signing the labor contract
with employees, the subsidiaries clearly notified them not to violate
financial discipline, embezzle public funds, graft or commit bribery. The
executives are required to sign the “Anti-Fraud Commitment Letter”,
participate in the training of the Executive Award System, and comply
with the relevant provisions to avoid bribery. The Baccalieu Company
has also formulated the “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics” to
regulate the behavior of all employees.

During the year, the Group strictly abided by the Criminal Law of the
PRC, the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the PRC, and the relevant
laws and regulations in the regions where it operates. No cases of
irregularity or corruption were observed.

4.6

4.7
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CONTRIBUTION TO COMMUNITY

Undergoing fifteen years of development and entrepreneurship, China
Oil and Gas Group Limited has been attaching great importance to
nurture and carry forward the corporate social responsibility. Not
only has the Group integrated it into the corporate culture concept,
but also firmly acted to combine the basic value of society with daily
business practices, operations and policies and to gradually figure out
the public charity culture with the Group’s characteristics. Over the
past fifteen years, the subsidiaries have taken root in local development
and construction, regarded the regions where they operate as the
second hometown and cared for the people by bringing benefits to
them. The Group have already donated multi-million RMB, and been
actively engaged in specific poverty alleviation and donation money for
education.

During the Year, the Group continued to practice its social responsibility
as a corporate citizen, and always closely linked the development
trend of the Group with the community’s interests. On June 1, the
subsidiary EEFRMRRAR Z LA F] organized “Gas Safety Publicity
in Schools” publicity campaign at primary and secondary schools in
Qingyun County in conjunction with local authorities. The company
arranged safety inspectors to check out key places such as school
cafeteria restaurants and boiler rooms as well as provided on-site
instructional training for canteen chefs and restaurant employees
to enhance their gas safety awareness and eliminate unsafe factors.
On June 24, the Party branch of the subsidiary &/&~ B FEMA
FilTRa3$ B2 7] went to Datong County Xianghua Tibetan Town
Sanjiao village to carry out poverty alleviation research, condoled
with the people in need and learned about their income sources and
living conditions, which laid the foundation for the implementation
of the poverty alleviation project. On June 30, the subsidiary Z7&
AR BBR A R] participated in the Guangdong Poverty Relief Day
organized by the Charity Association and Poverty Alleviation Office of
Yingde City, and donated RMB 3,000 to the charity. On September
1, the community committee of Rugao Port Area in Jiangsu Province
presented the silk banner to the subsidiary FEEFMARERETA
7] to express their thanks for saving time to install the gas pipe for the
High School in Port Area and solving the problem of natural gas supply
for more than 2,000 teachers and students’ meals. From October 27 to
November 25, under the environment of minus ten degrees Celsius, the
subsidiary S8 ZFMAEBLETIEARET AT worked overtime
and to complete the heating renovation in No.45 Yard on Menyuan
Road in Chengbei District of Xining City, and solved the heating
problem of the local elderly in winter. Therefore, the company won
the appreciation and recognition of the masses, and received the silk
banner presented by the residents.
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In addition, the Group has also encouraged employees to participate in Rtz EBRESFEE T2 MEKE
volunteer blood donation, condoled with veterans, and carried out gas safety m - #MEMhEE BEREERRLESE
activities in schools. The Baccalieu Company also encouraged employees JEE) ' Baccalieu AR MBI E TMAET
to join volunteer organizations, and actively supported community charity 404 - FEIR S Calgary & Fl E (b 27 Py
activities in Calgary area and other regions where the company operates. In ML RESEE - KK SEGEE
the future, the Group will continue to carry forward the spirit of “Bringing BE [ ZHREREZRN ZHMREZE OB
More Benefits to People and Solving More Problems for People”, accumulate B R ETRMAE  ESEEEMA
small good conduct into great love, and make great contributions to the Ko

society and the people.

2016 F - REBEBRITHER—LEEARNMSER  BABCEBERELSF R ETAE -
In 2016, the Group continued to practice its social responsibility as a corporate citizen, and always closely linked the development trend of the Group with
the community’s interests.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil and Gas Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Qil and Gas Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to
219, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

e  the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil and Gas Group Limited (Continued)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of

Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Impairment of assessment of goodwill

e Impairment of assessments of loan receivable from and interest in an
associate
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To the Shareholders of China Oil and Gas Group Limited (Continued)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
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B aRREEERARARR (&)
(REFZEZMHK L2 BRAF])

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed FEgitsE KW EF T EE
the Key Audit Matter BEEEE
Impairment assessment of goodwill BB E

Refer to note 5 (a) critical accounting
estimates and judgements and note
19 to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The Group carried goodwill of
approximately HK$971,746,000
as at 31 December 2016, which
was allocated to a group of cash
generating units (“CGUs") relating
to the sales and distribution of
natural gas and other related
products business (“Natural Gas
Business”) CGUs.

Management estimated the
recoverable amount of the Natural
Gas Business CGUs based on value-
in-use calculations that applied the
key assumptions and inputs set out
in notes 5(a) and 19 to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
Based on value-in-use calculations,
management has concluded there
was no impairment of the goodwill
as at 31 December 2016.

We focused on this area due to the
magnitude of the goodwill balance
and the significant judgements made
by management in estimating the
recoverable amount of the goodwill.

Our procedures in relation to testing
management’s goodwill impairment
assessment of the Natural Gas
Business CGUs included the
evaluation of the appropriateness
of valuation methodology and
reasonableness of the key
assumptions used with assistance of
our valuation experts.

We challenged management on the
estimated growth rate, expected
changes to selling prices and direct
costs assumptions and compared
cash flows generated during the year
ended 31 December 2016 with prior
years' performance. We evaluated
the reasonableness of the discount
rate applied by benchmarking
management’s assumptions with
those applied by comparable
companies and industry forecasts.
Furthermore, we evaluated the
terminal growth rate with reference
to the long term inflation rate.

We found the management’s
judgements and assumptions used
in the impairment assessment of
goodwill were supported by the
available evidence.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil and Gas Group Limited (Continued)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessments of loan
receivable from and interest in
an associate

Refer to note 5 (b) critical accounting
estimates and judgements and
note 20 and 23(c) to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

The Group had loan receivable
from an associate of approximately
HK$479,062,000 and interest in
this associate of approximately
HK$257,250,000 as at 31 December
2016.

Management concluded that no
provision was required as the
associate has the ability to repay the
loan and the recoverable amount of
the associate’s business exceeded its
carrying value.

Management assessed the
recoverability of interest in the
associate based on the recoverable
amount of the associate’s business
valuation applying the value-in-
use valuation method. The key
underlying assumptions were set out
in notes 5(b) and 20 to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Our procedures in relation to
management’s impairment
assessments of interest in this
associate included the evaluation
of the appropriateness of valuation
methodology and reasonableness
of the key assumptions used with
assistance of our valuation expert.

Our procedures in relation to
management’s impairment
assessments of loan receivable from
the associate included reviewing
the financial statements, business
plan and forecast of the associate
to identify whether there are
indications the associate cannot
repay its debt when they fall due.

We evaluated management’s
estimated commodity price growth
rate by challenging management’s
rationale to support their projections.
We researched the most up-to-date
commodity price and performed
independent market research on the
commodity price growth that was in
line with management’s forecasts.
We evaluated the reasonableness
of the discount rate applied by
benchmarking management’s
assumptions with those applied by
comparable companies and industry
forecasts.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil and Gas Group Limited (Continued)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matter

Key Audit Matter
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(REFZEZMHK L2 BRAF])

Impairment assessments of loan
receivable from and interest in
an associate (continued)

We focused on this area due to the We found the management’s
magnitude of the loan receivable judgements and assumptions used
from and interest in this associate. in the impairment assessments of
Moreover, significant judgements loan receivable from and interest in
and estimates were involved in an associate were supported by the
estimating the recoverable amount available evidence.

of the interest in the associate and

the loan receivable.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil and Gas Group Limited (Continued)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil and Gas Group Limited (Continued)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e
pwc

To the Shareholders of China Oil and Gas Group Limited (Continued)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Wilson Chan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meZHEBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_T—XRF+-_A=+—HILLFE

2016 2015
—E—XRF —T—hEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BasE FET FBT
Revenue S 6 6,446,452 7,373,902
Cost of sales HEKA (5,318,367) (6,338,364)
Gross profit EA 1,128,085 1,035,538
Other income E Al A 7 26,735 31,167
Other gains, net Hiblhas - F58 8 137,780 2,828
Selling and distribution costs HERDIHER (66,537) (68,982)
Administrative expenses T2 (301,650) (319,357)
Reversal/(recognition) of impairment M - BERREET
losses on oil and gas properties MR EERERE
under property, plant and equipment Bl (FER) 16 52,003 (507,441)
Operating profit g 9 976,416 173,753
Finance income B 10 83,310 111,562
Finance costs W% 10 (201,946) (230,782)
Share of losses of investments DIGEAEREAR
accounted for using the equity method KR & g8 20 (15,651) (4,343)
Profit before taxation BR A% A& A 842,129 50,190
Taxation i1 13 (184,461) (20,857)
Profit for the year FR=N 657,668 29333
Other comprehensive loss: H b 218 -
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss A] E#7 73482 18 a #9786 H
Release of exchange reserve upon R EHT B AR EIAE N
disposal of subsidiary it 4,456 =
Currency translation differences B =% (401,693) (660,561)
Change in value of available-for-sale A E B E
financial assets BEEEE 1,820 8,594
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FREAMEEEE @ HBRTIE
netoftax (395417) (651,967)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRZHEBA(FEB) B8
for the year 262,251 (622,634)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FEfRs=FI(B518)
Owners of the Company NCIEZ PN 311,791 (183,831)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 2 345,877 213,164
657,668 29,333
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FANREEERAS
for the year attributable to: (518) 1258
Owners of the Company REEAA 80,003 (696,168)
Non-controlling interests IR A 2 182,248 73,534
262,251 (622,634)
Earnings/(losses) per share attributable to NEEB N FRNEEERR
owners of the Company for the year B, (E8) 15
— Basic (HK cents) — IR (B 5.981 (3.609)
— Diluted (HK cents) — 58 (B(L) 5.963 (3.609)
The notes on pages 94 to 219 are an integral part of these consolidated F94E2198 ZBEM M R AL S Bk 2 A

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B EEAR &

As at 31 December 2016
RZB—RF+-—A=+—H

2016 2015
ZB—XREF —T—hF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
MI5E FET FHET
Assets BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E Y] 16 6,624,992 6,535,541
Exploration and evaluation assets R R EE 17 213,548 249,139
Land use rights T e R 18 393,344 314,013
Intangible assets | EE 19 1,002,291 1,055,676
Investments accounted for FRAEREARCIRE
using the equity method 20 300,065 316,854
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ETEEE 21 638,262 354,947
Other non-current assets Hipme & E 23 792,258 904,806
Deferred tax assets RETHEEE 30 19,510 16,735
9,984,270 9,747,711
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 22 190,573 201,470
Deposits, trade and other receivables e« BH5REMBEKEIA 23 1,516,892 1,562,686
Financial assets at fair value BAFELEEARZ
through profit or loss MIEEE 24 47,448 50,271
Current tax recoverable & B AT U O] F 18 6,003 5,796
Time deposits with maturity R =1E A &
over three months TEBITE R 25 25,170 216,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRALEFMEIER 25 1,833,483 2,303,704
3,619,569 4,339,927
Total assets wEE 13,603,839 14,087,638
Liabilities aE
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMFERFRIE 26 1,327,747 1,376,420
Receipt in advance TEURFRIA 27 1,156,195 1,089,707
Short-term borrowings EHEEE 28 360,907 972,774
Current tax payable E B FLIR 152,095 126,288
2,996,944 3,565,189
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma MR RER
As at 31 December 2016
R=F—AF+=A=+—8

(continued) (#)

2016 2015
—Z—RF —E—AF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
MIsE FET FHET
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Senior notes BEZR 29 5,006,417 4,992,169
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIE S F 30 240,801 231,700
Assets retirement obligation B R R 31 108,723 98,326
5,355,941 5,322,195
Total liabilities BmEE 8,352,885 8,887,384
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners DREE AELER
of the Company
Share capital &N 32 58,257 58,257
Reserves ] 2,772,174 2,718,807
2,830,431 2,777,064
Non-controlling interests FEIZERR fE = 2,420,523 2,423,190
Total equity R 5,250,954 5,200,254
Total equity and liabilities ERREEAR 13,603,839 14,087,638

The notes on pages 94 to 219 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 86 to 219 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 29 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf.

Xu Tie-liang
Director

Guan Yijun
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NN
Shares
held for
share (Note) ~ Exchange  Share-based Non-
Share Share award Other ~fluctuation compensation  Retained controling Total
capital  premium scheme  Tesenves reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
=10 Wi

e (D) EiE3 ERebe
B BEE  ARED  AER FilR R R 2% IRED  RREE
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HK$O00  HK$000  HKS'000
TRT  TEn  TRn  TAn 0 TEn T TEr TR TET  TEn

At 1 January 2015

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Exchange differences on translating

foreign operations
Changes in value of available-
for-sale financial assets

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

Bonus issue of shares (Note 32 (a))
Equity-settled share-based payments

Shares purchased for share award scheme
Repurchase of shares (Note 32 (a))

Capital injection by non-controlling interests
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests

At 31 December 2015

W-2-1£-F-A 599 2960 (150875 1526112 149809 - 1990105 3601107 2491642 6,092,749
R (58) /&7 - - - - - - (13%1)  (183831) 213164 293
B2 (F8) /WA
AEENEBNEL 8

- = - - (0% - - (0931 (139630 (660,561)
TEENBAEREEY

= = = 8,504 = = = 8,504 = 8,504
ER2E(BE)/WALE - - - 8504 (520931) - (1%3831)  (69,168) 73534 (622634)
iR (5320 5,29 (4878) 8 - = = = = = -
ESEENRA BRRAAR - - 1887 - - - - 1887 - 1880
BROEEHEEERD - - (183183 - - - - (113183 - (113163
ERRH (3 320) (3 (350 - 3 - - 3 3539 - B35
SRR A - - - - - - - - 193 19353
RRETHERER - - - - - - - - (161339 (1613%9)
R-E-EFt-A=t-A 58257 4578 (75629) 1534741 (371.122) - 1806239 2777064 2423190 520054
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

IIV_\é\*Eﬁ_ﬁ%Evb%

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_T—XRF+-_A=+—HILLFE

(continued) (#)

Attributable to owners of the Company

DR AR
Shares
held for
share (Note)  Exchange Share-based Non-
Share Share  award Other ~fluctuation compensation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  scheme  reserves  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
RRf HRHA
REHE (W) EXR® ERNME
Bx  ROEE fRRE  HiER i B REEH BE FERER  ERUE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thn  FEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEr  TEn  TEr TR TEn
At 1 January 2016 RZZ-~E-f-H 58,257 1578 (275629 1534741 (311122) - 1806239 2777064 2423190 5200254
Profit for the year ERiEH - - - - - -39 3791 345877 657,668
Other comprehensive (loss)/income; BH27 (68) /WA
Release of exchange resenve Upon N E-FHBARRE
dlsposal o a subsidiary (Note 34) 53l (M 34) - - - - 2673 - - 2673 1783 4,456
Exchange differences on translating RENEHNEL £
foreign operations - - - - (236281) - - (236281)  (165412)  (401,693)
Changes in value of available- TR EERESY
for-sale financial assets - - - 1820 - - - 1820 - 1820
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ~ £R2ARA /() 45 - - - 1820 (233,608) -39 80003 182248 260251
Equity-settled share-based payments WEREE RN BERIAH - - 1,798 - - - - 1798 = 1798
Shares purchased for share award scheme RO REREBERD - - (318m) - - - - (318m) - (31879)
Value of employee services [EERBER - - - - - 344 - 344 - 344
Capital injection by non-controlling interests FERERTE - - - - - - - -1 1R
Disposal of a subsilary (Note 34) HE-THEAR (M) - - - - - - - - (86841 (86,841)
Dividend paid to non-controling interests THRETHERER - - - - - - - - (109,225 (109,205)
At 31 December 2016 R-Z-AE+ZA=1-A 58,257 24578 (305,706) 1536561  (604,730) 3441 2118030 2830431 2420523 5,250,954
Note: B

R=ZFE—R"E+-_A=+—HB HMHFHEETER
¥EE K K H b % 45 65,985,000 T ( — T — A F :
64,165,000/87T) KRB AZ#:1,470,576,0008 (= F
—H % :1,470,576,0007&7T) °

As at 31 December 2016, other reserves mainly comprise capital and other reserve
amounting to HK65,985,000 (2015: HK$64,165,000) and contribution surplus
amounting to HK$1,470,576,000 (2015: HK$1,470,576,000).

FIAE219H MM ERARA M BRR 2E
FXERS ©

The notes on pages 94 to 219 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HLFE

2016 2015
ZE-RE —Z-1%
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i TER TAT
Cash flows from operating activities REEPHeRE
Profit for the year FRHA 657,668 29,333
Adjustments for: AT RIAM TR
Taxation B 184,461 20,857
Finance costs BsER 201,946 230,782
Finance income B (83,310) (111,562)
Share of losses of investments accounted AEEREREARNEREEE
for using the equity method 15,651 4,343
Equity-settled share-based payments AR A AR (D AR A 3R 5,239 18,827
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 2,685 1,666
Depreciation and depletion of property, W% - BERRETERER
plant and equipment 415,992 455,670
Amortisation of land use rights i fE R 8,587 7,161
(Reversal)/recognition of impairment on oil and WE  BEKEEETHR
gas properties under property, BERE(ER)/ B
plant and equipment (52,003) 507,441
Losses on disposals of property, HEME « BiE K& ENER
plant and equipment 4,698 5,847
Losses on exploration and evaluation assets BRI EESR 1,909 -
Fair value (gains)/losses on financial assets BATECESARNTHEEE
at fair value through profit or loss AFE (Was) /B8 (902) 1,876
Losses/(gain) on disposal of financial assets at HERRTELER AR
fair value through profit or loss B EERE/ (W) 3 (10)
(Gains)/losses on disposals of HETHE B ERBEEN (W), B
available-for-sale financial assets (1,879) 1,434
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary kit NG o (124,199) -
Gain on bargain purchase HENE R (10,803) (5,551)
Written off of exploration and evaluation assets BR R B 11,745 =
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATELEE KNI HEE 3,722 1,722
Asset retirement obligations BEREAE 8,844 (14,309)
1,250,054 1,155,527
Changes in working capital: EEESE
Inventories F& (25.787) (16,644)
Deposits, trade and other receivables %e  BHREMEKIE 3,919 (126,436)
Trade and other payables B 5 REMETHIE 51,307 44,873
Receipt in advance WA 154,780 (53,364)
Cash generated from operations REEERS 1,434,273 1,003,956
Taxation paid [REREI2E] (144,740) (147,635)
Net cash generated from operating activities REEHEENH TR 1,289,533 856,321

FOHRREBERLDE 20165 F ;]




92

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= =B
meERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—R"Ft+_A=t+—HILFE

(continued) (#)

2016 2015
—E-RF “Z-AhF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
(i THET FAT
Cash flows from investing activities REEBLSNE
Interest received BWFIE 46,797 77,800
Purchases of property, plant and equipment, BEWME  BEREE - T
land use rights and prepaid construction costs b AR A R TR R AR AR (797,776) (819,835)
Proceeds from disposal of exploration and HEMR R EEMETE
evaluation assets 1,023 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, LENE - BEREE
plant and equipment FfS3IE 62,966 30,276
Net cash inflow as a result of disposal of subsidiary RHE-FHNBARARERAFE 34 232,780 =
Purchases of and prepayments for other intangible BEEMENEERILBATBARS
assets and prepaid of intangible assets B EERNTE (473) (6,108)
Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets BEUHHNENBTEE (400,797) (276,400)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HE Rt EM B A EPE TR
financial assets 121,181 26,574
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash Wi kEe 33 (44,079) (469,560)
Loans to third parties ERTE=H (19,780) (49,569)
Loan repayments from third parties E=HERER 22,599 19,569
Loan to an associate ERT—REEAR (33,198) (98,190)
Decrease in time deposits with maturity FEaA =AM
over three months BHRD 190,830 757,739
Site restoration expenditure Tiir{Es i (8,207) -
Net cash used in investing activities REROMAREFE (626,134) (807,704)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEDHLTE
Repurchase of shares ARl - (3,539)
Interest paid ERFIE (291,988) (343,305)
New borrowings raised HEEE 78,076 1,031,760
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (678,791) (806,032)
Capital injection by non-controlling interests JFERERTE 11,151 19,353
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests ARE T IR ER (109,225) (67,032)
Purchase of own shares for share award scheme B RERTEIBE A SR (31,875) (143,163)
Dividends paid ERRE - -
Net cash used in financing activities RE AR LFE (1,022,652) (311,958)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘l_\éiﬁﬁﬁié‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HLFE

(continued) (#)

2016 2015

—E-XE —E-AE

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

i TER THET

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BeRREFEBERRD TR (359,253) (263,341)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—RAzHRekRLEEER 2,303,704 2,691,557

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExEE) e (110,968) (124,512)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RTZA=+—BzH&kRe

EfEER 25 1,833,483 2,303,704

The notes on pages 94 to 219 are an integral part of these consolidated $94%219E Y BEMI M ARG A B EHRE v 48
financial statements. AKEE5 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR M

1

General information

China Oil And Gas Group Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered office is at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The address of its
principal place of business is at Suite 2805, 28th Floor, Sino Plaza, 255-
257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaging in
investment in energy related business in various regions in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"”) and West Central Alberta, Canada, including
but not limited to 1) piped city gas business, pipeline design and
construction; 2) transportation, distribution and sales of compressed
natural gas (“CNG”) and liquefied natural gas (“LNG”); and 3)
development, production and sale of oil and gas and other upstream
energy resources. The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to the “Group”.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of certain available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(@) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has adopted the following new and amended

standards which are relevant to the Group’s operations and are
mandatory for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January

2016:
Amendment to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable
and HKAS 38 methods of depreciation
and amortisation
Amendment to HKAS 27 Equity method in separate
financial statements
Amendment to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts
Amendments to annual Annual improvements
improvements project 2012-2014 cycle

The adoption of above new and amended standards did not
have any material impacts on the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

e PR R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The following are new standards, amendments to standards and

interpretation that have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2016 and have not been early

adopted.
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
Amendment to HKAS 7 Statement of cash flows 1 January 2017
Amendment to HKAS 12 Income taxes 1 January 2017

Amendments to HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets ~ To be determined
and HKFRS 10 between an investor and
its associate or joint venture

Amendment to HKFRS 2 Share-based payment 1 January 2018

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts 1 January 2018
with customers

HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

2

mREZE (1F)
(b) MRRMNHTEARRE

TR - $IRAERNER] Rk
BERMERARAR T —RF—H—
B Rtz R FE AR A S E W &R
FERA o

RENTAS
SHKERR
B 5
R
BB ETE RERER “E+tf
7% (B3T8) =f=F
BiBeTE FifeH ZE3—+tF
EAVEACHES! -f-H
EEeEZ 8% KABEE fFE
REENBRE BENA
ERIZ10% VA
(B3T7) HEINREE
BGOSR R AERE “3-N\F
£2%:(B3T8) KR —-B-H
BAOBAREEL  MBIA “3N\E
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CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New standards and
(Continued)

interpretations not yet adopted

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 has three financial asset classification categories for
investments in debt instruments: amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“OCI”) and fair value
through profit or loss. Classification is driven by the entity's
business model for managing the debt instruments and their
contractual cash flow characteristics. Investments in equity
instruments are always measured at fair value. However,
management can make an irrevocable election to present changes
in fair value in OCI, provided the instrument is not held for
trading. If the equity instrument is held for trading, changes in fair
value are presented in profit or loss. For financial liabilities there
are two classification categories: amortized cost and fair value
through profit or loss. Where non-derivative financial liabilities
are designated at fair value through profit or loss, the changes
in the fair value due to changes in the liability’s own credit risk
are recognized in OCI, unless such changes in fair value would
create an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case, all
fair value movements are recognized in profit or loss. There is no
subsequent recycling of the amounts in OCI to profit or loss. For
financial liabilities held for trading (including derivative financial
liabilities), all changes in fair value are presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 introduces a new model for the recognition of
impairment losses — the expected credit losses “ECL” model,
which constitutes a change from the incurred loss model in
HKAS 39. HKFRS 9 contains a ‘three stage’ approach, which is
based on the change in credit quality of financial assets since
initial recognition. Assets move through the three stages as credit
quality changes and the stages dictate how an entity measures
impairment losses and applies the effective interest rate method.
The new rules mean that on initial recognition of a non-credit
impaired financial asset carried at amortized cost a day-1 loss
equal to the 12-month ECL is recognized in profit or loss. In the
case of accounts receivables this day-1 loss will be equal to their
lifetime ECL. Where there is a significant increase in credit risk,
impairment is measured using lifetime ECL rather than 12-month
ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (#&)

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

HKFRS 9 applies to all hedging relationships, with the exception of
portfolio fair value hedges of interest rate risk. The new guidance
better aligns hedge accounting with the risk management

activities of an entity and provides relief from the more “rule-
based” approach of HKAS39.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are expected to
change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about its
financial instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of the
new standard.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
when to recognize revenue and how much revenue to recognize
through a 5-step approach:

(1) Identify the contract(s) with customer;

(2) Identify separate performance obligations in a contract

(3) Determine the transaction price

(4)  Allocate transaction price to performance obligations

(5) Recognize revenue when performance obligation is satisfied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(Continued)
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

The core principle is that a company should recognize revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the customer
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. It moves away from a revenue recognition model based
on an ‘earnings processes to an ‘asset-liability’ approach based on
transfer of control.

HKFRS 15 provides specific guidance on capitalization of contract
cost and license arrangements. It also includes a cohesive set of
disclosure requirements about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s
contracts with customers.

Management is currently assessing the impact of applying HKFRS
15 on the Group's financial statements by identifying the separate
performance obligations in the contracts with customers and
allocating the transactions price, which could affect the timing of
the revenue recognition. In light of the Group’s global operations
and different laws and regulations in place, the directors of the
Company is currently in the process of evaluating the full impact
of HKFRS 15 on the Group’s financial statements. Management
will make more detailed assessments of the impact over the next
twelve months.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (#&)

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New standards and
(Continued)

interpretations not yet adopted

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’ addresses the definition of a lease, recognition
and measurement of leases and establishes principles for
reporting useful information to users of financial statements
about the leasing activities of both lessees and lessors. A key
change arising from HKFRS 16 is that most operating leases will
be accounted for on balance sheet for lessees. The standard
replaces HKAS 17 ‘Leases’, and related interpretations.

Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased
item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognized.
The only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases. The
accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for Group's
operating leases. As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of HK$74,422,000
(Note 36 (a)). Some of the commitments may be covered by
the exception for short-term and low value leases and some
commitments may relate to arrangements that will not qualify
as leases under HKFRS 16. The Group has not yet determined
to what extent these commitments will result in the recognition
of an asset and a liability for future payments and how this will
affect the Group’s profit and classification of cash flows.

Apart from aforementioned HKFRS9, HKFRS15 and HKFRS16,
the directors of the Company are in the process of assessing the
financial impact of the adoption of the above new standards,
amendments to standards. The directors of the Company will
adopt the new standards and amendments to standards when
they become effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Subsidiaries
(i) Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

(1) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the
present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Consolidation (Continued)

(1) Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwvill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R AR

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i) Consolidation (Continued)

()

(3)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
(ii) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets including
goodwill.

(b) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's investment
in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon
the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the Group's
share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised
in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to share of profit of investments accounted for using
equity method in the profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)

Joint arrangement

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are classified
as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangement and determined it to
be joint venture. Joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses and movements in other comprehensive income. The
Group's investment in joint venture include goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a
joint venture, any difference between the cost of the joint venture
and the Group's share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
When the Group’s share of losses in joint venture equals or
exceeds its interest in the joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the joint venture. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint venture have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the interest in the joint venture is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the joint venture and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to share of profit of investment accounted for using
equity method in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(d) Segment reporting

(e)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and
the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated profit or loss within ‘other gains/(losses)’.

(d)

(e)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available-for-
sale are analysed between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

— income and expenses for each profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange fluctuation
reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the year
end closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(f)

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly buildings, plant
and machinery, oil and gas properties, pipelines and construction
in progress. Accounting policies for oil and gas properties are
set out in Note 3(g). All other property, plant and equipment is
stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the profit or
loss during the year in which they are incurred. Except for oil
and gas properties and construction in progress, depreciation on
property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

12.5 to 40 years or remaining lease
period of the land where applicable

Buildings

Plant and machinery
Pipelines
Others

3 to 20 years
20 years
3 to 20 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each date of the statement of financial
position. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 3(j)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“administrative expenses” in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents pipelines under construction
and is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Costs comprise direct and indirect
incremental costs of acquisition or construction. Completed items
are transferred from construction in progress to proper categories
of property, plant and equipment when they are ready for their
intended use.

Oil and gas properties

Expenditure on the construction, installation or completion
of infrastructure facilities such as platforms, pipelines and the
drilling of commercially proven development wells, is capitalised
within construction in progress under property, plant and
equipment. When development is completed on a specific field, it
is transferred to oil and gas properties under property, plant and
equipment. No depreciation and depletion is charged during the
development phase.

Oil and gas properties are aggregated exploration and evaluation
assets and development expenditures associated with the
production of proved reserves.

Oil and gas properties are depreciated and depleted using
the unit-of-production method. Unit-of-production rates are
based on total proved plus probable reserves, which are oil,
gas and other mineral reserves estimated to be recovered using
current operating methods and taking into account estimated
future development costs necessary to bring those reserves into
production. Future development costs are estimated taking into
account the level of development required to produce the reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Oil and gas properties (Continued)

Proven oil and gas properties are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Oil and gas exploration and evaluation expenditures are
accounted for using the successful efforts method of accounting.
Costs are accumulated on a field-by-field basis. Geological,
geophysical costs and pre-licence costs are expensed as incurred.
Costs directly associated with an exploration well, and exploration
and property leasehold acquisition costs, are capitalised within
exploration and evaluation assets until the determination of
reserves is evaluated. If it is determined that commercial discovery
has not been achieved, these costs are charged to expense.

Once commercial reserves are found, exploration and evaluation
assets are tested for impairment and transferred to construction
in progress under property, plant and equipment. No depreciation
and depletion is charged during the exploration and evaluation
phase.

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment
when reclassified to construction in progress, or whenever
facts and circumstances indicate impairment. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the exploration and
evaluation assets’ carrying amount exceeds their recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the exploration
and evaluation assets’ fair value less costs of disposal and their
value in use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of businesses represents
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets

acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash
generating units (“CGUs"”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment

level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
and more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of the
CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less cost of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(ii) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets comprise mainly operating rights,
club membership and computer operating system.

Operating rights are shown at historical cost. Operating
rights have definite useful lives and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of operating
rights over their estimated useful lives ranging from 30 to 48

years for natural gas supply services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

0]

()

(k)

Intangible assets (Continued)
(i) Other intangible assets (Continued)

Investment in club membership is shown at historical cost.
Investment in club membership has indefinite useful life and
is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses and is not amortised.

Computer operating system is shown at historical cost.
Computer operating system has definite useful lives and is
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of computer operating system over its estimated useful
lives of 10 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill
or intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Land use rights

Land use rights are lump sum upfront payments to acquire
long-term interest in lessee-occupied properties. Land use
rights relating to buildings of the Group under operating lease
arrangements are stated at cost and are amortised over the period
of the lease on the straight-line basis to the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

)

Financial assets

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available for sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(1)

(2)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. These are classified as
non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables
comprise deposits, trade and other receivables, time
deposits with maturity over three months and cash and
cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
trE SRR M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESTBEBE (&)

(Continued)
() Financial assets (Continued) () MBEEGE)
(i)  Classification (Continued) () ##E(#E)

(3) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date-the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated profit or loss.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value, except for those
investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market, and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, which are measured at cost.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category
are presented in the profit or loss within “Other (losses)/
gains, net” in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is recognised in the profit or loss as part of “other
income” when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

(3) UHHEMBEE

AHHEMKEERIITE
TA - HRIEEFI R
EDBEREMEMER - bR
FREIMERBAREA
BEHR T —_EARLEEZ
HRE  BRILEEESE
FERBEEN °

(i) HERRE

FTEEECEECMBEENRRIS
AHER  X5EBHAEEAR
ERLEEEZHH - KEY
TRAFENRAB LR AFE
KBS ARZMBEEZRSK
AR - MAFELBEARZ
MEEEVNTRAFERR X
SRR E SRR - 8
BEERKEZ AR SR ZERN
[EmskE g BMEEZMA
RV B % [B] ) 2, K B o B 5 Bh A
R AEHEMBEERIEAF
ﬁﬁ%éﬁ%Z%%ﬁéﬁ&E
NEEME - RAERMS EET
BHRERAFEREASETEZ
B TRAZRERIRRAGE o
B R ENE ﬁﬁéuamﬂ
VTR SH K AN B BR

BAFELBERARZUBE
EZAVEESMELEZER
TREABBR B [ HE (&
18),WaFEE] R - BATF
BERBBEARIMBEEZRE
WA TR 5= B 2 Wk )3 7 B
ERENER S [ ka2 —
o e

FOHRREBERLDE 20165 F ;]




116

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

)

Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the profit or loss. As “gains or
losses from investment securities”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the profit or loss
as part of “other income”. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the profit or loss as
part of “other income” when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets

(i)  Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

e  Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

o A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

e The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the
borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

o It becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

e The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

o Observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the
portfolio, including:

(1) adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio;
(2) national or local economic conditions that

correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the profit or
loss. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis
of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the profit or loss.

3 *

EETHREE (&)

Z =0

(m) MBEEERME(HF

(i) HUBEAFSREE (&)

s HEEMENBRIREEM
B aVRREREK - HAFR
KEERER I EHR
Lo BEZRD W AREERZ
MRl BB EENE
E - BREREeR

ZAR A R A
FHRHATHIED

(1

2 H%x

B
o>
>
=
W
B
2

i 77 BB

EEE AT ERTFERETS
B -

SRERREUFBRERINE - B
BB DREERTERRME
EEREBEMNERIERNMER
XReRERE(TRBEHKRE
FHRKREERER) BB EEa
B BEREES TUABR M
BiREoEENERTER - N8
REAFEHHAREFEZHT
X At EEMBREBERNRLE
KIRBENEENRITERRF
Ko wERENFL KEARER
RABRNTISERRETAN
NFEFERE °

EEEREE  RESENERE
A TR R ] R i LA
RBRERELENEMHBBE]
MEBAEEFNEHRE) Az
A FE R YR B A B B B SRR
PR o

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(n)

(ii)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the cumulative
loss-measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss-
is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. If,
in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the profit or loss.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence
that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists
the cumulative loss-measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss-is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through
the profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less all costs to completion and all direct costs
to be incurred in selling and distribution.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for sales and
distribution of oil and natural gas and other related products or
gas pipeline construction and connection services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. The Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that trade and other receivables are impaired.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated
statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and the costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sales and distribution of natural gas

Sales and distribution of natural gas are recognised when
the gas is used by the customers. Payments received in
advance on pre-paid I/C cards that are related to sales of
natural gas not yet delivered are deferred in the consolidated
statements of financial position. Revenue is recognised when
goods are delivered to the customers.

(ii) Gas pipeline construction and connection fee income

Gas pipeline construction and connection fee income is
recognised using the percentage of completion method, but
when the period of construction works is short, the revenue
is recognised when the relevant construction works are
completed and connection services are rendered.

(iii) Revenue from exploitation and production of crude oil
and natural gas

The sales of crude oil is recorded when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the product is transferred to
the buyer which is usually when legal title passes to the
external party and this is generally at the time product enters
the pipeline.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Sales of equipment

The equipment sold are mainly the gas meter. Sales of
equipment are recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the equipment sold.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
tenant lease.

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognised on an accruals basis in
accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(v)

Employee benefits

(i)

Retirement benefit costs

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
the relevant municipal and provincial governments in the
PRC under which the Group and the PRC based employees
are required to make monthly contributions to these plans
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions,
the Group has no further obligation for the payment
of retirement and other post retirement benefits of its
employees. The assets of these plans are held separately
from those of the Group in independently administrated
funds managed by the provincial governments.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme")
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for those qualifying employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance,
and who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, contributions to the
scheme by the Group and the employees are calculated as a
percentage of employee’s relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. The retirement
benefit scheme costs charged to consolidated profit or
loss represent contributions payable by the Group in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(v) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
payment are recognised when they accrue to the employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service payment as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the statement of financial
position date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of share options or restricted
shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options or restricted shares granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specified period of time).

e IR R R

(continued) (#)

3 FESHBEHE(E)

(v) EEEF (&)

(ii)

(iii)

ESEERER

BEEGBZFRERARE SN
e TRER R - REEMH
IR B B 8 B 12 (AR5 M e
BzFEBREEHRES - BbE
ERBEMELRYE -

BERGZRBREERMRIIFE
EREZIERES TH#R °

RGO BEEZ (15

RAEZBENESEE LD
RERORMETE - RIFZFFT
2 ERWEUEBOIRFEAES
SERZTANKE - BERK
HRPE 1% 7 P s v o PR A1) M B £ T
RHUBRBEHATFEERRER -
BTFHENASBER2ERLE
PR SR BIE R D VA FEREE

= .
E :

o  BREMMSHRE G ()
e BRZEE)

o  TEEEARSRIFEMER
BRI (AR
HERRBREARREE
HEADAERESR) 2
g:;

s BREIMNERBHRUEZEE
(Pl HEEZE2RFHE
R ERRFERN) -

FHRREBEERAT 2016FFHR




126

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(v)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Share-based payments (Continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options or restricted shares that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end
of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options or restricted shares that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

Share option scheme

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(v) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Share-based payments (Continued)
Share award scheme

When restricted shares are granted, the fair value of
restricted shares are recongised as expense with a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the vesting period.

Where the Group purchases the Company’s shares from
the market, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as “shares held
for award scheme” and deducted from total equity.

The social security contributions payable in connection
with the grant of the share options and restricted shares
is considered an integral part of the grant itself, and the
charge will be treated as a cash-settled transaction.

(w) Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs
and legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(x) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the countries
where the Group, its associates and joint ventures operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(x) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the date of the statement of
financial position and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
(x) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(i) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liability is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, joint
venture and associates, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in
the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(y)

(2)

(aa)

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payment made under operating leases, net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the expected lives of the related assets.

Exceptional item

Exceptional items are disclosed and described separately in the
financial statements where it is necessary to do so to provide
further understanding of the financial performance of the
Group. They are material items of income or expense that have
been shown separately due to the significance of their nature or
amount.

e IR R R

(continued) (#)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management 4 BIFEEMmEIE

4.1 Financial instruments by categories 4.1 RERESZEHMIA

Available- Financial Financial
for-sale assets at fair liabilities at
financial value through Loans and amortised
assets  profit or loss receivables cost
BRAYE REBHER A
AHHE  KEZAR BXK HEZ
BKEE ZHBEE W RIE g =i
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FisE FAET FAT FAT FHAT
As at 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF
+-A=+—-H
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AJtHEHKEE 21 638,262 = = =
Deposits, trade and Ze BHREM
other receivables FEWRIE - - 1,726,189 =
Financial assets at fair value BATFESER AR
through profit or loss ZHBEE 24 - 47,448 - -
Time deposits, bank balances TEHER - RITEHS
and cash &k 25 - - 1,858,653 -
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M ERTRIR - - - 1,302,258
Borrowings B8 28 - - - 360,907
Senior notes BERE 29 - - - 5,006,417
638,262 47,448 3,584,842 6,669,582
As at 31 December 2015 RZZ—h%F
+=-A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets A BT FSEE 21 354,947 = = =
Deposits, trade and we  BHRHEM
other receivables [EW IR - = 1,708,262 =
Financial assets at fair value BAFELERAR
through profit or loss ZHBEE 24 - 50,271 = =
Time deposits, bank balances EHER - RITEH
and cash KB e 25 - - 2,519,704 -
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERTIE - - = 1,342,114
Borrowings aE 28 = = - 972,774
Senior notes BEZER 29 = = = 4,992,169
354,947 50,271 4,227,966 7,307,057
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising in the normal course of
its business and financial instruments. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(@) Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to United States dollars (“US$”), Canadian dollars
(“CAD") and Renminbi. Currency risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.
In addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. This currency exposure is managed
primarily through sourcing supplies denominated in the
same currency.

Management has set up a policy to require group
companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against functional currency. It mainly includes
managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases
made by the relevant group companies in currencies
other than their own functional currencies. The Group
also manages its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular reviews of the Group's net foreign exchange
exposures. The Group has not used any forward
foreign exchange contracts to hedge its exposure.

e R R R M

(continued) (4&)
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4.2
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U 78 4 2 SN 5 1L AR Rl R
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e M RAR M

(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Prices for oil and natural gas in Canada are determined
in global markets and generally denominated in US$.
Qil prices obtained by the Group are influenced by
both United States and Canadian demand and the
corresponding North American supply. The exchange
rate effect cannot be quantified but generally an
increase in the value of CAD as compared to US$
will reduce the prices received by the Group for its
petroleum and natural gas sales.

As US$ is pegged with HK$ under the Linked Exchange
Rate System, the Group has minimal exposure to
currency risk arising from US$. Accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis is performed. As at 31 December
2016, if Renminbi had weakened/strengthened
by 5% against HK$, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$95,266,000 (2015: HK$10,816,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Renminbi denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

4

MR REREE (&

4.2 BHSEIREE (&

(a) WEmEE (E)

()

B Rk (&)

MEXRABRRARBRR
EHMIHHEE B —RIAE
TLHIE - EEESENLIRE
REFXE R INEAFRIAK
MBI RHENTE - EX
FETARENL BN
TLRERTTHE R R R E B
HAm R RAREEFIREG
#ETE -

E AR R B ' R EE T
BB TEN  MEEES
HELTEAZEERBR
Do Bt 0 I E RN E
DT R_E—RNE+=
A=+—8 tEtEZXR
BTAEMBERT  WARE
R EFHES% - F
Wk R 18 5 RIS R 38 o0
95,266,000/8L (= E— A
% :10,816,000/87T) * £
THNBEAAREEZ
e MASEEEEHWER
B8 WA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
trE SRR M

(continued) (#)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 BIBREERE (&)
4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.2 HEEBEZE (A

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THERE ()

(ii) Price risk (i) EEEE

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Other than unlisted debt and
equity securities held for strategic purposes, all of
these investments are listed. Most of the Group's
listed investments are listed on the stock exchanges of
Hong Kong and other countries. Decisions to buy or
sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring of
the performance of the individual securities compared
to that of the index and other industry indicators, as
well as the Group'’s liquidity needs. Listed investments
held in the available-for-sale portfolio have been
chosen based on their longer term growth potential
and are monitored regularly for performance against
expectations. The portfolio is diversified in terms of
industry distribution, in accordance with the limits set
by the Group.

As at 31 December 2016, debt and equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss amounted to HK$47,448,000 (2015:
HK$50,271,000). Price risk arises on account of debt
and equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is not material to the
Group as a whole.

Commodity price risk is the risk that fair value or
future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes
in commodity prices. Commodity prices for oil and
natural gas in Canada are impacted by the relationship
between CAD and US$ as well as world economic
events that dictate the levels of supply and demand.

SE O BRRR ST
BERRBRAFELBRZA
U BEEZRAKRE
(BRFAZREMEIFELD
B RIRAESFIN) 285
EHRE) B ERE
HEkE - KEAHS LHER
BHEARBBRMREMBER
Ei e REBASEBELEER
ERNER ISR ERES
78 7 B B N E AT IR
RS R - AREBEHR
HESHNFR - ERAIHH
ERBHEAKANLMERE
TIREHEREIE - X
EHERERRELNATE
H - ZIRBERACDIRREE
HERRBIFEITED M7 E
HaDERA -

RZE—R"EF+-_A=+—
B 2EARAFELES
AR BA TS B E R ETS K AR
AN % & 47,448,000 TT
(ZZ— R4 50,271,000
BIL) o DERRAFEL
BREARNTBEENEX
EERRAEERBEE 2
ERERAEN S HEEN
REKX °
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XE2REREmERE
TR EN R E R © INEA A H
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets, except for short-term bank deposits, loan to
an associate and loans to third parties, the Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
Management does not anticipate significant impact
on interest-bearing assets resulted from changes
in interest rates because the interest rates of bank
deposits are not expected to change significantly.

The Group'’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings
and senior notes. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk.

Details of the Group’s borrowings and senior notes are
set out in Notes 28 and 29 respectively.

4

BHERERE (&)
42 PBEREE ()
(a) FAEmESE (4

(i) F=EB

BN EERERRTER
ERT—MEE R RER
TE=75 » WEEBRFE
BE SERARKERS
MERED NS R
P E - ANTAHRITER
MEWJEBRES - EIEE
BN REHHTBEEL
BEAYE -

SEFEERHEE @5‘6
RBREL - REEE f&
Efﬁﬁgﬁﬁiﬁﬁmiaﬂl%
Rk - EEEERGEEER
RAFENERRRE -

SEEEREBEZEZFFE
2 BIEFA BT E 28 K2 29 o
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk as the interest
rate risk exposure is not significant. In order to manage
the cash flow interest rate risk, the Group will repay
the corresponding borrowings when it has surplus
funds.

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates on floating rate borrowings, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group's post tax profit for the year by approximately
HK$1,683,000 (2015: HK$6,679,000). The above
sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the date
of the statement of financial position and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis
points increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the year until the next annual statement of
financial position date. The analysis was performed on
the same basis for 2015.

e IR R R

(continued) (#)

BB EREE (&)
MEBREE (4
(a) FEEE ()

(i) FIRER (4)

B R ERIETERX -
IEE%EHMTE%ﬂ
REMERRERARE - REE
BERENEEAR - SEHE
BERESREEERRE
= o
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CEEIEEEE A E
& £ F sk 100 @ &
% i BT A E fh & SR
N AEBFERKREE
i A HE 5 BRL A 1 A4
1,683,000 L(=ZF—H
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e M RAR M

(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

4

SERERE (&)

4.2 BEEBEE (&)

(b) Credit risk (b) EEREE
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and EEZEERBREZERESRE
other receivables, the debt instruments under available-for- fth FE WK IE ~ SR R AT AL Bt
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through BEERBEATFELEZARZ
profit or loss with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying WK EAENGERES  FTEYZ
amounts of these financial instruments. Management has a SeRBEERZEsmIAY
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks REE - EEEEHERKZE
are monitored on an ongoing basis. BER - WHZESEERRISE
BT o
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, all of the Group’s RZZE—RERZZE—HF+=
bank deposits are deposited in major financial institutions A=+—8  SEMRBRITER
located in the PRC, Canada and Hong Kong, which the HEAMRFAER - NIEXEE
management believes are of high credit quality without BLEEEHMEE  EEERA
significant credit risk. The Group’s bank deposits as at 31 .&%%Tﬁf,\,\ SAWEER
December 2016 and 2015 were as follows: sERB - RZT—AFRZT
*ﬁ¢+_ﬂ:+*5'%52
RITERA T

2016 2015

— A ZT—hF

HK$000 HK$'000

THERT T

State-owned and BB & _ETiRTT

listed banks 1,590,103 2,448,262

Other banks HAtb3RTT 265,264 69,796

1,855,367 2,518,058

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with
banks and excludes cash on hand of HK$3,286,000
and HK$1,646,000, as at 31 December 2016 and 2015
respectively. Credit risk also arises from outstanding trade
and other receivables from customers and a number of

counter parties.

CERREEEEAEERE - 28
ERREREe RS EEEE -
RITER TRERZZE—RF
R=ZT—hE+=-_A=+—H%
31173,286,0007% 7T & 1,646,000
B2 FEES - FEERB IR
Eﬁwzﬁ&;%%iﬁmﬁg
BB 5 Kk H A EUGRIA -
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trE SRR M

(continued) (#)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 HIBREMBERE(E
4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 42 BERBEE (&
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEERE (&)

The management considers the credit risk on loans to an
associate and third parties after considering the financial
conditions of the counter parties. Management has
performed assessment over the recoverability of the balances
and management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these counter parties.

The Group generally requests advances from customers.
In circumstances of credit sales, to manage the credit risk
in respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the Group performs
credit evaluations of its customers, and generally does not
require collateral from the customers on the outstanding
balances. Based on the expected recoverability and timing
for collection of the outstanding balances, the Group
maintains a provision for impairment of receivables and
actual losses incurred have been within management'’s
expectation.

Debt instruments held by the Group are normally only in
liquid securities quoted on a recognised stock exchange,
except where entered into for long-term strategic purposes.
Given their high credit standing, management does not
expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

LEREF 7 Z2HBMRR - B
BRAERT HMBERARRESE
=HZEERBREN - BEEER
BLRZ S A fR 2 AT IR B M 1 R
G BEEEBEHTeRZEY
F B A EEEAEE o

SE-—REREFEAMBK - &
BRENEBERLT  RERESHRHE
EKFBREENEERR - &
EERTBBE  ARBHE A
BERBEEERARHNERIEL R
SEHEFETERERTME
—RBARFPRARBEGHRIEMR
iR - RIERBEEHRNTREA
CELE AT S =
FEWGRIRE LB ER YR - 1B
EIEFEEEERY -

SEBAENEBTIA-—RERRK
ERAESFZZAEEEENR
BRES ERARERBMEED
METERIN - ENREHF
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SHREEMNREHF I EEETA
o
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e M RAR M

(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company's Board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at date of the statement of financial position
of the Group's financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the statement of financial position
date) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

4

MR REREE (&

4.2 BiEBEE (&)

(c)

B E LA

SEAERNKLERAARER
SNEESEE  BRASAHKN
MR EREEEFARAEAS
ReFHk EEEBREETERE
RERKTE - AEAREERBI
ETAEE - REBRATERE
TRBLEMRBESH R - U
TREERTT B IR B 58 1 e B ey 2
BHEBEANLRTRZEFES
BB ARESHEE  UFa
MR ERNRSESTE

TRFHMEEN A ERM BN
MRAHHRBENINHA - T
BRESHATRRERE(EE
EAA ORI REFTEF SR
WEE R MR B A
BITHERFAE) REEA AN
B &RE BB AKE
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trE SRR M

(continued) (#)

Financial risk management (Continued) 4 HIBREMBERE(E
4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 42 BERBEE (&
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) HEELERE (&)
Total Less than
Total  contractual ~ Repayable 1year Between Between
carrying undiscounted on oron 1t02 2t05
amount  cash flow demand demand years years
RRARR  ARER 16R
REAE ReRsmst B8 BRERXA 122% 235F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Group TAT TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
Asat31December 2016 RZZT—1 %
TZA=t-H
Trade and other payables B 5 REAENFE 1,321,741 132,741 1,327,747 - - -
Borrowings - 360,907 373,829 - 373,829 - -
Senior notes (Note) BrRRE (Wit 5006417 5,037,500 - - 2712500 2,325,000

6,695,071 6,739,076 1,327,747 373829 2,712,500 2,325,000

As at 31 Decmber 2015 R=Z-1%

tZA=t-H

Trade and other payables B 5 REAENFE 1376420 1376420 1,376,420 = = -

Borrowings fE& 972,774 1,017,653 - 1,017,653 = =

Senior notes (Note) BAERE (M) 4,992,169 5918426 - 272,904 273701 5371821

7341363 8312499 1376420 1,290,557 273701 5371821

Note: MisE -
The Group complied with senior notes covenant and did not trigger SEETEAERBRRO R EEERE
the callable terms. FF 378 ANE R RN o
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns, taking into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and projected
profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditure and projected strategic investment opportunities. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, repurchase
the Company’s shares, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of available cash and
cash equivalents and current ratio as shown in and derived from
the consolidated statement of financial position. The table below
analyses the Group's capital structure:

4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R R M
(continued) (4&)

R REE (&

4.3 EXRERER

SEEAERTIRERARESRE
BSEERERQEZ8N  URERK
REREFRBEMESRPE TR
MaE o URFREEARARBUARDE
EIND N

SHEERE RN REEERRRE
VREBEBZARESELRER
M~ BRI RBHANE N RIEHE
BRERE  FAHMERHX MIEHR
BEREREMERBICEARERK
RO - SRFAFHBEARARE &
BRERBEXNTRRZIBESHE
BEARRD  ARREBREARS - &
TR EBEENR D ET o

SERBHEAMBIRRIRRFTE
ez ARERIREFEER KR
B RERER TRAKEERKE
BZo

2016 2015
ZE-RF ZTAhF
Cash and cash Re kRS EFEEE
equivalents (HK$'000) (F%7T) 1,833,483 2,303,704
Current ratio (Current assets mMENLLEE (R B & ERR
divided by current liabilities) LORBI & &) 1.21 1.22

The Group's strategy is to maintain the current ratio above 1.00
and sufficient cash and cash equivalents to support the operations
and development of its business in the long term.

S B2 R R A ME L RRFFF 1.00
Nt WEEFRAZAESIAESE
BHEE  UXKEEBHNRELER
R e
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e IR R R

(continued) (#)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 HIBREMBERE(E
4.4 Fair value estimation 4.4 NFEMGE
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (i) URFEIRzE@MTA

The following table presents the carrying value of the TREJNRUBARALKRBEES

financial instruments measured at fair value at the statement BB HREENETR /T

of financial position date across the three levels of the fair B BEIMAEZATFE={

value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: BRH - LAAFEIEzEHMT

Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial instruments AERHEE MEEMIAEZA

categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input FEAHZAFEAZEBERNZ

that is significant to that fair value measurement. =RERMABIRMEE DL -

The levels are defined as follows: FRAREZ BRI ¢

e Llevel 1 (highest level): fair values measured using o F—EXEEENRX): NUA
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for Al @ T EE BTSSR
identical financial instruments. BE(RERAR)FEATF

(=8

e Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in o FoRENR:EMUemTA
active market for similar financial instruments, or using ERBTISHRE - HAGER
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are fiir (B B B K8 A BUE
directly or indirectly based on observable data. Th B B ok B DA ] B R U

RA)HERFE-

e level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using e FZER(HZEREBKX): MK

valuation techniques in which any significant input is HERN (KR EKRE AR

not based on observable market data. B IER BRI EIE A
R)FFEATFE -
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e MR MR

(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.4 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

4 BIEEEEE(

=]

4.4

D EMbE

V=1

(i) HUR-FEIFRZZHTA (E)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-BR FBR E=BR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET B FET FHT
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—R"E+-A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets: A HEMKEEE :
— Listed equity investments — EmRARE 2 - - 2
— Listed debt instruments —FmEBTIA 637,878 - - 637,878
~ Unlisted debt instruments —FLEmEFIA - 382 - 382
Financial assets at fair value BEATELES AR TBEE
through profit or loss:
— Listed debt instruments —EmEBTA 20,029 - - 20,029
— Unlisted debt instruments —FLMEEIA - 27,419 - 27,419
657,909 27,801 - 685,710
As at 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+=A=1+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets: At H & KERE
— Listed equity investments — ERARE 2 - - 2
— Listed debt instruments - EmEKIA 354,495 - - 354,495
~ Unlisted debt instruments —FEHERIA - 450 - 450
Financial assets at fair value BEATELEBE AR IBEAE
through profit or loss:
— Listed equity investments — ERARE 2,945 = = 2,945
— Listed debt instruments - EmEKIA 21,045 - - 21,045
— Unlisted debt instruments —JFEmEBIA - 26,281 - 26,281
378,487 26,731 - 405,218
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e IR R M

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.4 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

During the year, there were no transfers between
instruments in level 1 and level 2.

(a

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the date
of the statement of financial position. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1. Instruments
included in level 1 comprise primarily Hong Kong and
Dow Jones equity and debt investments classified as
trading securities or available-for-sale.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
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(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.4 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(ii) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other

than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments,
including non-current assets carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair values as at 31

December 2016 and 2015.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities)
is based on quoted market prices at the date of the
statement of financial position. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price (i.e. level 1-highest level). The fair value of financial
instruments that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by

using valuation techniques.

The Group uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing
at each statement of financial position date. Quoted market
prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for
long-term borrowings. Other techniques, such as estimated
discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for

the remaining financial instruments.

The carrying values less allowance for impairment of
current receivables and of current payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. Estimated discounted
cash flows at the current market interest rate are used to
determine fair value for these financial instruments (i.e. level

3-lowest level).
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5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group’s management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS.
The assumptions, estimates and judgements are based on historical
experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. While the management reviews their judgements,
estimates and assumptions continuously, the actual results will seldom
equal to the estimates.

Estimates and judgements are regularly evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The matters described below are considered to be the most critical
in understanding the estimates and judgements that are involved in
preparing the Group's consolidated financial statements.

(a) Estimation of impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment. Property, plant and equipment and goodwill
are also reviewed for possible impairments whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Determination as to whether and how
much an asset is impaired involves management estimates and
judgements such as future prices of natural gas and crude oil.
However, the impairment reviews and calculations are based on
assumptions that are consistent with the Group'’s business plans.
Favourable changes to some assumptions may allow the Group
to avoid the need to impair any assets in these years, whereas
unfavourable changes may cause the assets to become impaired.

The Group relied on experts to assess the geological prospects for
the discovery of oil in the oilfield and estimated the value of oil to
be produced in the future at a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. For drilling costs and other exploration
and evaluation assets, the Group determined whether the related
well costs are expensed if it is determined that such economic
viability is not attained after performing further feasibility studies.
Judgement is required by the Board to determine key assumptions
adopted in the cash flow projections and changes to key
assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow projections
and therefore the results of the impairment reviews.

5
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(continued) (#&)

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b) Estimate of impairment of loan receivable from and interest

(9]

in an associate

The Group tests at least annually whether loan receivable from
and interest in an associate suffered any impairment. Business
valuation was performed and management reviewed for possible
impairments whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Determination as to whether and how much an asset is
impaired involves management estimates and judgements such
as commodity prices. However, the impairment reviews and
calculations are based on assumptions that are consistent with the
Group's business plans. Favourable changes to some assumptions
may allow the Group to avoid the need to impair any assets in
these years, whereas unfavourable changes may cause the assets
to become impaired.

Specific assumptions and estimates involved in the cash flow
projections are set out in Note 20.

Estimation of useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment under the segment of “sales and
distribution of natural gas and other related products”

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and residual values for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment in the segment of “Sales and distribution of natural
gas and other related products”. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual values
of property, plant and equipment and land use right of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technological advancement and innovations in the natural gas
industry. Management will adjust the depreciation charge where
residual values vary with previously estimated, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Actual residual values may differ
from estimated residual values. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore
depreciation in the future periods.
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5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 5 BEARESFHHFTRHE (&)

(Continued)

(d) TFRREERBRXAR] 2 EHEH

(d) Estimate of petroleum reserve under the segment of

“exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas”

Estimates of petroleum reserves are key elements in the Group's
investment decision-making process. They are also an important
element in testing for impairment. Changes in total proved
plus probable petroleum reserves will affect unit-of-production
depreciation and depletion recorded in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for property, plant and equipment related
to oil and gas production activities. A reduction in proved plus
probable reserves will increase depreciation and depletion
charges. Petroleum reserve estimates are subject to revision, either
upward or downward, based on new information, such as from
development drilling and production activities or from changes
in economic factors, including product prices, contract terms or
development plans.
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6 Revenue and segment information 6 EXTRIBER
The Group’s principal activities are the sales and distribution of SEFERFHERSHERAR - RAR
natural gas, crude oil and other related products and provision of EMAEERMRPREEAREERE
construction and connection services of gas pipelines in the PRC, and FEEBRE  UERENEAFEELEEER
the exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas in Canada. HRRAR - FALEBERIEATSIE

Revenue for the year comprises the following:

2016 2015
—E-XRE —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Sales and distribution of natural SHE MR KA R M EMABREE R
gas and other related products 5,424,144 6,052,178
Gas pipeline connection and MRRE B R SR E RIS U
construction services income 721,041 892,133
Revenue from exploitation and REREREERBR
production of crude oil and RANR &5
natural gas 301,267 429,591
6,446,452 7,373,902
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6 Revenue and segment information (Continued)

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance focuses more specifically on sales of natural
gas, gas pipeline construction and connection; and exploitation and
production of crude oil and natural gas.

The Group has presented the following three reportable segments for
the year ended 31 December 2016:

—  sales and distribution of natural gas and other related products
—  gas pipeline construction and connection
—  exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above
reportable segments.

The executive directors assess the performance of the business
segments based on profit before taxation without allocation of other
gains, net, interest income, finance costs, share of losses of investments
accounted for using the equity method, reversal/recognition of
impairment losses on oil and gas properties under property, plant and
equipment, written off of exploration and evaluation assets, losses on
disposals of exploration and evaluation assets and other unallocated
corporate expenses, which is consistent with these in the consolidated
financial statements. Meanwhile, the Group does not allocate assets
and liabilities to its segments, as the executive directors do not use this
information to allocate resources to or evaluate the performance of
operating segment. Therefore, the Group does not report a measure of
segment assets and liabilities for each reportable segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
to the executive directors for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015 is set out below.
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6 Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6 EXEFERIHER (EF)
For the year ended 31 December 2016: HE-_Z—"FT+-A=1+—HIFE:
Sales and
distribution
of natural Gas pipeline  Exploitation and
gas and construction production of
other related and crude oil and
products connection natural gas Group
HEREZ® BB R
RARREA RREE EERA
HEER BERER REAR %8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FER TET TET FER
Segment revenue and results DTHBRAREE
Sales to external customers INBEPIEERE 5,424,144 721,041 301,267 6,446,452
Segment results NEEE 512,863 353,804 31,108 897,775
Interest income g N 83,310
Other gains, net Hitzs - 558 137,780
Finance costs BB (201,946)
Reversal of impairment losses M - BERFEET
on oil and gas properties under HREER AR
property, plant and equipment - - 52,003 52,003
Written off of exploration MR R B E R
and evaluation assets - - (11,745) (11,745)
Losses on disposals of exploration HERRERHEEERNEE
and evaluation assets - - (1,909) (1,909)
Share of losses of investments AMEEREREARZ
accounted for using the KEEE
equity method (15,651)
Unallocated corporate expenses ADBEEHRS (97,488)
Profit before taxation iyl 842,129
Taxation Ha (184,461)
Profit for the year FREA 657,668

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R R

(continued) (#)

Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

6 Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6 EXEHERIHER (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2015: HE-_Z—RAF+-A=1t—HIFE:
Sales and
distribution
of natural Gas pipeline  Exploitation and
gas and construction production of
other related and crude oil and
products connection natural gas Group
THE R#mix R
RARKEA MREE EERM
M Em BERER RAAR £H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FHT THT
Segment revenue and results P ONSE
Sales to external customers HINBEPHERE 6,052,178 892,133 429,591 7,373,902
Segment results DEERE 323,492 441,958 26,129 791,579
Interest income g S UN 111,562
Other gains, net Hitlzs - 55 2,828
Finance costs HSER (230,782)
Recognition of impairment losses W - BERFEBET
on oil and gas properties under HRERRERBERER
property, plant and equipment - - (507,441) (507,441)
Share of losses of investments AMaEREREANR
accounted for using the ZHEER
equity method (4,343)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROMEERT (113,213)
Profit before taxation BB AR A 50,190
Taxation A (20,857)
Profit for the year FREA 29,333
No external customers of the Group contributed over 10.0% of the HE-_T-—R"FRk-FE—HF+=H

=t HIEFE SELEIIFEFRE
B2 WAFERERE10.0% °
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3

SRR DEER ()

H

6 Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6

E-ET-AFR-F-HFT A
+—BLEFE  REZMETEES 2
BEZHHRIIMT

Analysis of the Group’s assets by geographical market for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is set out below:

[ 2

2016 2015
“E-RE —T-hfF
Additions to Additions to
Total non-current Total non-current
assets assets assets assets
B NE
BEE FREEE BEE FERBEE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER THET THET
Hong Kong BE 371,483 - 726,579 408
Mainland China FEI A 10,000,284 910,722 10,529,668 1,099,445
Canada mEX 2,226,787 130,598 2,092,584 687,545
Total agt 12,598,554 1,041,320 13,348,831 1,787,398
Unallocated AP
Investments accounted for FREREAREZ
using the equity method ®E 300,065 316,854
Deferred tax assets BRI TAEE 19,510 16,735
Available-for-sale AR ENEEE
financial assets 638,262 354,947
Financial assets at fair value BRATELERAR
through profit and loss ZIBEE 47,448 50,271
Total assets BEE 13,603,839 14,087,638
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Other income HAgr A
2016 2015
—EB—XREF —ZE—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Government subsidies AT AR RN 13,183 11,738
Service income BRASUTA 4,880 5,408
Rental income FHEUWA 3,875 5,543
Others Eith 4,797 8,478
26,735 31,167
Other gains, net Hiblhzs - F5E
2016 2015
—EB—XRE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Fair value gains/(losses) on BT ELER ARG
financial assets at fair value BENATE W), EE
through profit or loss 902 (1,876)
(Losses)/gains on disposals of financial — H&EEAFELEZ ARL
assets at fair value through B EE (Bi8) ke
profit or loss 3) 10
Gains/(losses) on disposals of HERHENEEERR (E8)
available-for-sale assets 1,879 (1,434)
Gain on disposal of a o — TR B A E s (P EE34)
subsidiary (Note 34) 124,199 -
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 33) EBUEE S (B EE33) 10,803 5,551
Others EAh - 577
137,780 2,828

FHRREEER AT 20165FF3f




156

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (#&)

9 &KREHR

9 Operating profit

Operating profit has been arrived after charging the following items: RN EHBRIATFIA ¢

2016 2015
—E-XF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FT
Employee benefit expenses (Note 11) {2 ER@FIFISZ (BisE11) 310,230 343,380
Minimum lease payments under HE T REFHRELERERNRK
operating leases for leasehold
land and buildings 16,883 17,208
Cost of inventories recognised RIHFZ ) B AR
as expense
— Purchase of inventories —EEEF 4,461,966 5,228,827
— Change of inventories during —FRNEFELE)
the year (10,897) 5,867
Auditor’s remuneration =% EREMEN & 2,300 2,300
Depreciation and depletion M - B KRBT E RIEFE (MiFE16)
of property, plant and
equipment (Note 16) 415,992 455,670
Drilling cost of exploration BNER ATt B E WS AR
and evaluation assets 270,159 402,042
Amortisation of land use b {55 AR A 8 (P93 18)
rights (Note 18) 8,587 7,161
Amortisation of intangible R (s 19)
assets (Note 19) 2,685 1,666
Losses on disposals of property, HEWZ - RE RERERNERE
plant and equipment 4,698 5,847
Losses on disposals of exploration & R MM B E R E TR
and evaluation assets 1,909 -
Net exchange (gains)/losses [EH (M) 18 iFa (448) 1,279
Written off of exploration and R R AT E AR (e 17)
evaluation assets (Note 17) 11,745 -
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10 Finance income and costs

11

10 HBBRAREH

(continued) (#)

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—HRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Finance income from: B ARE :
Interest income on bank deposits RITIFR B WA 43,493 76,950
Loan to an associate (Note 23(c)) BT = AR (MEE23() 36,513 33,406
Loans to third parties (Note 23(d)) BT E =7 (KizE23(d) 3,304 1,206
83,310 111,562
Finance costs from: WIEERRE :
Interest expense on: FEEM :
Bank borrowings RITIEE (19,686) (68,084)
Other borrowings HiEE (13,645) (2,287)
Senior notes BREEE (272,904) (272,150)
Accretion of assets retirement B E AN (FIEE31)
obligation (Note 31) (2,295) (1,977)
Less: Amounts capitalised (Note 16(ii)) & : EAMb& R (KT 16(ii) 106,584 113,716
(201,946) (230,782)
Net finance costs B 75 & R 58 (118,636) (119,220)

Employee benefit expenses, including directors’

emoluments

11 BEERARX  BRESME

2016 2015

—E—REF —T—h%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FHIT

Salaries, wages and bonuses e IERES 266,015 285,987

Share awards A 1n 228D 1,798 18,827
Pension costs — defined RS

contribution plans — REHRETE 38,976 38,469

Share option e 3,441 =

Other benefits H bz = 97

310,230 343,380
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11 Employee benefit expenses, including directors’
emoluments (Continued)

(a)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include 1 (2015: 1) director whose
emolument is are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 12(a).
The emoluments paid or payable to the remaining 4 (2015: 4)

11 BEERARX  BRESEHE

/Ig
(a) EHRBEHFHAL

SEFALERSMEZ ALEE 1S
BEE(CZ—HF:1%) HB&E
FNHIFE12(2) 2D - FAER
FENTEBAR(CZE—RF : 45)

individuals during the year are as follows: ATHBESHT :
2016 2015
—E-NE —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Salaries, allowances and e R REYR
benefits in kind 8,686 6,721
Equity-settled share-based VAR 2= 45 E DA ) BT ER
payments 6,133 8,652
Retirement benefits scheme RRRRAIFEI R
contributions - 18
14,819 15,391
The number of employees whose remuneration fell within the BUATHeEE 2 EEAEMNT :
following band was as follows:
Number of employees
EEAH
2016 2015
—E-NE —E—hF
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 %8 7CZ 3,000,000 /57T = =
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 & L% 4,000,000 /87T 4 3

HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 #7T% 5,000,000 #7T

No emoluments were paid or payable to the directors and above
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the financial years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015.

HE-_Z—XFER-_ZT—AF+=A
=+—BHLVBEE  SEWESA
FEMEMNNETFESR LS E%E
MriEE  ERAIBERSMESEEN
1EBHE SRR 2 /e -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 Employee benefit expenses, including directors’

emoluments (Continued)

(b) Senior management’s emoluments

Details of remuneration paid to members of senior management

fell within the following bands:

e MR HRAR M

(continued) (#)

11 BERANRX  BRESHE
(#4&)

(b)

BATHEBENESNEREREX
BHBNFS

Number of employees

EEAK
2016 2015
—E-AREF —E-RF
HK$0 to HK$ 1,000,000 0/#7C% 1,000,000 7T 7 10
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T 2 2,000,000 /57T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 /7T % 3,000,000 /7T 1 =
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 7T % 4,000,000 /7T 7 7

HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000

4,000,001 % 7T Z 5,000,000 7 7T
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

12 Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures 12 EEFNERER (FEQERA
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong (5£622F) %3831k ~ AR (K
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies BEENRER) HAI (622G
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BE)REBLMHRAUERKE)

Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=M=
Details of remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 HE-_Z—X"F+-_A=+—HItHF
December 2016 were as follows: BEZEEMSFBNOT
Salaries, Employer’s Equity-
allowances contribution to settled
and benefits a retirement share-based
Fees inkind benefit scheme payments Total
e =E ] DEREE
ERR RINER R 5
e ByFE STEINAR Bl 2% Fot ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR TR THEx TR
Executive directors: HTES:
Xu Tie-liang (Chief KR
Executive Officer) (Gize:t9) 120 9,617 18 - 9,755
Cheung Shing "R 120 - - - 120
Guan Yijun BEA 120 1,170 18 - 1,308
Zhu Yuan 5 B 120 - - - 120
Independent non- BYFHTES:
executive directors:
Shi Xun-zhi L& 120 - - - 120
Li Yun-long FEY 120 - - - 120
Wang Guang-tian TEH 120 - - - 120
Total Bt 840 10,787 36 - 11,663
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trE SRR M

(continued) (#)

12 Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures 12 ESM R RER (BB D BEG
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong (56622F) %3831k ~ AR (K
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies BEENRER) HA (622G
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BE)REBLHRAUERIKE)
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK (#&)

Listing Rules) (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) ==& (£E)
Details of remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 HE—_Z—RAF+_-_A=+—HItHF
December 2015 were as follows: EZEEMSFHBOT ¢
Salaries, Employer's Equity-
allowances  contribution to settled
and benefits a retirement share-based
Fees inkind  benefit scheme payments Total
2 EEH PMEREE
IR RIKEEH UG A
e -tpilia STEIRHR B AT o]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TAT AT THET
Executive directors: HTES:
Xu Tie-liang (Chief KR
Executive Officer) (1THE#) 120 6,370 18 13,200 19,708
Cheung Shing KK 120 - - - 120
Guan Yijun HHE 120 1,125 18 - 1,263
Zhu Yuan K B 120 68 - 372 560
Independent non- BYEHTES:
executive directors:
Shi Xun-zhi £3l% 120 - - - 120
Li Yun-long TEE 120 - - - 120
Wang Guang-tian TR 120 - - - 120
Total FeH 840 7,563 36 13,572 22,011
No directors of the Company waived any emoluments and no BMEAREEFHRETMME - SET
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors of the EREAAREEINNE - FR#E
Company as an accepting office as director or as a compensation REEMMN 2 RBSABEESRA 2
for loss of office as director. M o

FHRREEER AT 20165FF3f
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

12 Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures

required by section 383 of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary

undertaking (2015: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as compensation for the early
termination of the appointment during the year (2015: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making available

directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of directors
for making available the services of them as a director of the

Company (2015: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and

connected entities with such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities

with such directors during the year (2015: Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements

or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year (2015: Nil).

12 EERH

& Nt (BB ERA

(a% 622 %) 25383 fF ~ AR (K

BEEENZER) REI (622G
B)REBLITRAERKFE)

/15)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

ESZRAKEF

EEVEREAHERARNENE
DR BTS2 ELA AR TS 0 S A SR R
KEM(—ZF—HF &) -

ESBRBEN

FA- UBAESFHRAKLES
MEE(CE—hE: &) -

RERESRBEE=FIFHRE

VERERES /AR EFREMN
REMAREAMEEFEHREIR(ZF—H
FE) -

FRUES  ZEESNIEGZEE
RBEEREBAZEANER EERX
REMZ ZHNER

FA BENESE IRFEEZR

ZHZEENAEERATEAZE
R EEFRREMRS (ZF—0F :
&)

EERRS  ZHREHNNERES

AEMERFRAFAEAEHEGTH
EAAREENETERAMEES
EREARGEEREXE AR CE

ARG ZRHFEREH(ZFE—HF:
&)
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13 Taxation

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax for
the year (2015: Nil).

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws,
regulations and implementation guidance note, subsidiaries in
Mainland China are subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate at
25% (2015: 25%). Certain subsidiaries are entitled to tax concessions
and tax relief whereby the profits of those subsidiaries are taxed at a
preferential income tax rate of 15% (2015: 15%).

Taxation on overseas (other than Hong Kong and PRC) profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

e IR R R

(continued) (#)

13 18

HREERAFEYERNETAALANE
BNEHRERVEHN - B EBEEF
SRERBEER (2 —1F  |) -

RIEAEPBESERERE - GO REE
A R E AR B A RE25% (=
T—AF : 25%) 2R ERBPNPEPERS
- BETHBARZEMNBEERES
Bl ZEMBRARZHEFAERMEH
FRE15% (ZZF—HF : 15%) 75 ©

5N (B e 5N 3 FI T A S g
BT AE R B A 3R 4T B4 6 S 9 i 31 A
RBORFIR HBIA -

2016 2015
—E—RF —T—hEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Current tax: EHITIE ¢
PRC corporate income tax HR Bl S FTS R 176,172 166,803
Overseas taxation BN IR 1,009 3,379
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFERETR,(BEEE) 9,432 (5,376)
186,613 164,806
Deferred tax (Note 30) RIERIA (M52 30) (2,152) (143,949)
Taxation FIE 184,461 20,857

There is no tax impact relating to components of other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

RE-T—AF+-A=t+—ALFE
i A B b 2 R B AR B 2 B B
(-T—HF ) -

FHRREBEERAT 2016FFHR
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e M RAR MR

(continued) (#&)

13 Taxation (Continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

13 HE (&)

8 BRR B AN F) 2 B0 TR B4 A O A o i
MZMEFOREEEZ RS RERD

rate applicable to profits of the Group as follows: T
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit before taxation BRA% A& A 842,129 50,190
Tax calculated at the applicable rates & AR 5 AR 2 @A
in the tax jurisdictions concerned BEFTERTIA 203,865 =
Tax effect of income not BERMBARNB R E
subject to taxation (56,758) (20,156)
Tax effect of expenses not TR R RS E
deductible for tax purpose 43,816 41,417
Tax effect on change in tax rate %RK%EUE’J%RE‘%E’@ = 26,675
Tax effect of tax concessions TR 2 BT T R 2 (15,894) (21,703)
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFERETR,(BEEREE) 9,432 (5,376)
Taxation I8 184,461 20,857

The weighted average applicable tax rate is 21.9% (2015: 41.6%).
The decrease is caused by a change in the profitability of the Group’s

subsidiaries in the respective jurisdictions.

FRAMEFHREE21.9% (=ZF— £¢

41.6%)  TET

%QWﬂi%%EZ&ﬂ@

BREHREEMER
BPAE

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2016



'_rl

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tr e SRR M

(continued) (#)

14 Dividend 14 BRE

2016 2015

ZB—REF —T-REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET T

Proposed final dividend of HK cent 0.50 ##/& A HANE S &M RAL0.50

(2015: Nil) per ordinary share BIN(ZE—RF : &) 29,128 =
A distribution of dividend out of contributed surplus account in respect AR -_ZT—tFRATN\BRITHATA
of the year ended 31 December 2016 of HK cent 0.50 (2015: Nil) per EERFERFARE L BEZREE=
share, amounting to a total dividend out of contributed surplus account T RETZA=+—"HLEFEUEH
of approximately HK$29,128,000 is to be proposed at the forthcoming BHEDIKKEESRS0EW(ZE—H
annual general meeting of the Company on 18 May 2017. F:E) LNEBERRBRESEREBEOR

29,128,000 7T °

These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. R IEWMEARMZSZENARE -

FHRREBER AT 2016FF3f
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e SRR M

(continued) (#&)

15 Earnings/(losses) per share

(a)

(b)

Basic

The calculation of basic earnings/losses per share is based on
the Group’s profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$311,791,000 (2015: loss of HK$183,831,000)
and weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue less
shares held under share award scheme during the year of
approximately 5,212,795,000 shares (2015: 5,093,724,000
shares).

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2016 is calculated based on the profit attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$311,791,000, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of approximately
5,228,843,000 shares which is the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue less shares held under share award
scheme during the year plus the weighted average number of
dilutive potential ordinary shares in respect of share options of
approximately 14,903,000 shares and the effect of awarded
shares of approximately 1,145,000 shares deemed to be issued
at no consideration if all outstanding share options granted had
been exercised.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts
presented for the year ended 31 December 2015 in respect of
a dilution as the impact of the shares held under share award
scheme outstanding during the years had an anti-dilutive effect
on the basic loss per share amounts presented.

15 BRER(FE)

(a)

(b)

=9

R BEERERNREFRN EHIEET
ERQRBEAE ARMEEERZF L
311,791,000 8L (ZF—HF : FE
183,831,000/ 7L) R FANE FHITL B
AR n#E T 8 O = F RB IR AR (D 28
Bhat &I FTHER% D) £95,212,795,000 A%
(ZZ—FA% :5,093,724,000 %) °

#g

REE-_T—A"F+=-_A=+—HL
FE - RTESREERANETER
RNEIHEA AEALEF 311,791,000
B RFRNE BT BRINE T
#95,228,843,000/% BN 2 217 & BAR AN
W BUR AR IR IR ) SREN AT &I TS
A& N EBRERFT B R IT{E B AR 1T
FEMEEABASTREEITTZ BEHE
3 A% INAE T35 804 14,903,000 % &
SEEAL (D49 1,145,000 I 2 22 -

BREBEZE_F-—AFt-_A=1t—8H
L E AR ARITE AR ER I 2R &+
B P AR (0 1 P 251 0 T IR E A E 1R
SRAEREEYE AUYHERE
AERSEERELRE
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trE SRR M

(continued) (#)

16 Property, plant and equipment

16 ¥% - BMERRME

(Note (iif))
(Note (v) ~ Plantand  Oiland gas (Note (i)  Construction
Buildings  machinery  properties Pipelines Others in progress Total
(M) BhRR (FsE@m)  (hrssk(i)
BF FRRES XRANF 3l iy ERIR 1z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TATL TATL TAL TATL TAL TAL
As at 1 January 2015 R=E-%E-A-H
Cost AR 610,854 915,039 3,040,408 2,251,294 441580  1,395873 8,655,048
Accumulated depreciation ZETERER
and depletion (103,338) (255,793) (722,728) (462,732) (226,926) - (1,771,517)
Net book value REFE 507,516 659,246 2,317,680 1,788,562 214,654 1395873 6,883,531
Year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ-E-1E+-R
St-HLFE
At 1 January 2015 R=E-RF—-f—H 507,516 659,246 2,317,680 1,788,562 214654 1395873 6,883,531
Currency realignment BB (30,206) (36,362)  (363,736)  (110,483) (11,393) (65,185 (617,365)
Acquisition of businesses (Note 33b) W& 27 (Mi3E33(b)) - - 8178 = = - B
Additions AE 14,448 4,827 185,113 7,858 15,285 603,305 830,836
Transfers 5 86,768 77,839 — 477,785 20,535 (662,927) -
Disposals e (1,561) (30,968) - (1,656) (1,938) - (36,123)
Depreciation and depletion ERERER (M)
for the year (Note (ii)) (30,409) (50,916)  (225,944)  (102,250) (46,151) - (455,670)
Recognition of impairment TR R ERR (i v)
losses (Note (iv)) - - (507,441) - - - (507,441)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+=A=1—H 546,556 623,606 1,843,445 2,059,816 190,992 1,271,066 6,535,541
As at 31 December 2015 R=2-R%+=A=t-H
Cost AR 671,133 913,644 3,123,650 2,564,223 440,124 1,271,066 8,983,840
Accumulated depreciation, depletion 2547 + BERHE
and impairment (124,577) (289,978)  (1,280,205) (504,407) (249,132) - (2,448,299
Net book value REFE 546,556 623,606 1,843,445 2,059,816 190,992 1,271,066 6,535,541

FHRREBEERAT 2016FFHR
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e PR R M

(continued) (4&)

16 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

16 M=% MENRME (&)

(Note (iii)
(Note (v))  Plantand Oil and gas (Note (i)) Construction
Buildings  machinery  properties  Pipelines Others i progress Total
(M) va):i) (MEEG)  (FREGi))
BY BEREE XARNE B Hft  #EIR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TR TR THER TR TR
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE-E-RE
TZA=t+-HLEE
At 1 January 2016 RZE—E—A—-A 546,556 623,666 1,843,445 2,059,816 190,992 1,271,066 6,535,541
Currency realignment ERAR (41,133) (43,049) 64,881 (140,368) (10,378) (73,479)  (243,526)
Acquisition of businesses (Note 33(a))  MKEEZH (Hi&F33(a) - - 58,947 - - - 58,947
Additions NE 79,255 10,208 86,377 1,340 7,692 606,661 791,533
Transfers et 58,019 86,662 - 326,060 2504 (473,245) -
Transfer from exploration and ERRMRRTREE
evaluation assets (Note 17) (BtzE17) = = 30,579 = = = 30,579
Disposals HE (1,089) (1,945) - (50,884) (13,746) - (67,664)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 34) HE—BRBAR (f7E34) (13,230) (7.677) - (86,369) (1,654) (7499)  (116,429)
Depreciation and depletion ERTE RIRFE (ML (i)
for the year (Note (ii) (30,601) (58,280)  (171,530)  (116,668) (38,913) - (415,992)
Reversal of impairment losses (Note (i) Rl{E/EE B (FizE (iv) - - 52,003 = - = 52,003
At 31 December 2016 RZE—F+-A=1+—H 597,777 609,585 1,964,702 1,992,927 136,497 1,323,504 6,624,992
As at 31 December 2016 R=Z-"E+=A=t-A
Cost A 741,328 921,251 3,407,931 2,559,323 333958 1,323,504 9,287,295
Accumulated depreciation, ZEHTE - BRERAE
depletion and impairment (143,551)  (311,666) (1,443,229)  (566,396)  (197,461) - (2,662,303)
Net book value FEFE 597,777 609,585 1,964,702 1,992,927 136,497 1,323,504 6,624,992
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16 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Others mainly represent motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures and equipment,
and tool and moulds with net book values amounting to approximately
HK$57,947,000 (2015: HK$86,102,000), HK$39,675,000 (2015:
HK$58,029,000) and HK$38,875,000 (2015: HK$46,861,000) respectively.

Depreciation and depletion of approximately HK$384,086,000 (2015:
HK$432,182,000), HK$13,131,000 (2015: HK$2,399,000) and
HK$18,775,000 (2015: HK$21,089,000) have been charged in cost
of sales, selling and distribution costs and administrative expenses
respectively.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs amounting to
HK$106,584,000 (2015: HK$113,716,000) on qualifying assets. Borrowing
costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate of its general
borrowings of 5.4% (2015: 5.7 %).

As a result of the decrease in forward benchmark crude oil prices in 2015,
an impairment test on the Group's oil and gas properties was performed.

The recoverable amount of oil and gas properties is determined at the fair
value less costs of disposal using a discounted cash flow method and is
assessed at CGUs level.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group determined that the carrying amounts
of the cash generating units (“CGUs”) amounting to approximately
HK$2,421,267,000 exceeded their fair value less costs of disposal
amounting to approximately HK$1,913,826,000. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of HK$507,441,000 was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2015.

The Group regularly assesses market commodity prices, costs to carry out
planned drilling programs, drilling results, and reservoir performance to
determine if there are any indicators of impairment of the Group’s assets.
Forward benchmark commodity prices in 2016 were relatively consistent
with prices in 2015, and the Group reserves increased from 2015 to
2016 due to both drilling success and positive well performance. Capital
expenditures to carry out the Group's drilling program were generally
lower in 2016 due to reduced levels of industry activity. As at 31 December
2016, the Group determined that there were no indicators of impairment
2 out of 3 CGUs. Due to significant oil and gas reserve additions in the
remaining CGU in 2016, there were indicators of a reversal of impairment
so an impairment test of that CGU was performed at 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group determined that the value in use
of the CGU amounting to approximately HK$1,454,308,000 exceeded
its carrying amount amounting to approximately HK$1,402,305,000.
Accordingly, an impairment reversal of HK$52,003,000 was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

e IR R R

(continued) (4&)

16 M=% BENRME (&)

FeE -

0)

(if)

(iii)

HMEEHTHE KM KERR

HERIENUNERERE EARFED A
#) /57,947,000 T( = T — A F:

86,102,000 #7T) * 39,675,000 8 L (=F
— 71 % : 58,029,000 JT ) X 38,875,000
BT (ZZE—FRE : 46,861,000 L) °

& 18547 384,086,000 80 (—E—H
£ : 432,182,000 #7T) ~ 13,131,000 T
(ZZE—H%:2,399,0008 L)1
18,775,000/ 7T ( —Z—A 4 21,089,000
BIT) DRI SHERA © S REEK AR
THFAZHHE -

FR KEERCEREEAALEER
K7 106,584,0008 c(=F—H4&:
113,716,000 7T) - EEXNARIZE —K
EERMEFHL K5 4% (T — R F:
5.7%) BAML °

MR _F-AFERHEERBETK
SEGMRRARYZEEST TRERR °

AMERARYENT Y E S BERAEIR
REeRBEARATERNEEREE ¥
RS ELE BN ERAETTAE

W-_Z—R&E+-_B=+—8 £EET
BeELBEN((REELEN ) WEEE
#92,421,267,0007% 7 + BHEAFER
EBM4741,913,826,000/87T ° Eitt + B
HE-_Z-AF+-_A=+—HILEER
R R(EEE 507,441,000 BT ©

AETEENEERS FETMARBER
S SEETHEMBERER - REEH
By BHERRGHEEMEEETTG =
T AFRAREFRREE-_T—RAFR
HEE - mEENBEBREFX
NEBHRAETEMR =T —RFE=T
—NFEEN - ERARREEFEF
K& AN 7 R 2 3 0E Bk B (R T 48 BE 8
RKeR—_ZE—A"E+-_A=+—8  £H
HEIERSELEMNT A 2EILEEM
BEDTR -BHREBRBECELABENR =T
—ANEAREHRF[ER  FTEREZED D
R HR-ZZE—A"E+=-A=1+—HBi#
REELBMRERR -

R-ZTB—RE+-_A=+—0 £EET
REeEEBMAEAEELR1,454,308,000
& or - B H BR A E 491,402,305,000
B At RBE-FT—X"F+=
A=+ —BLFEARABRRER K
52,003,000/ 7T °
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e M RAR M

(continued) (#&)

16 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

The fair value measurement of the Group’s oil and gas properties is
designated Level 3 on the fair value hierarchy.

The key assumptions for the calculation are those regarding the discount
rates and expected changes in future oil prices. The expected future oil
prices for the next five years ranged from US$55.0 to US$71.0 per barrel
(2015: US$44.0 to US$70.0 per barrel). Forecast benchmark crude oil
price assumptions tended to be stable because short-term increases or
decreases in prices were not considered indicative of long-term price
levels, but were nonetheless subject to change. The Group used a pre-tax
discount rates ranging from 8% to 20% (2015: 8% to 20%) to discount
future cash flows from the Group’s CGU(s). These rates differed based
upon classification of reserve type, commodity type, timing of future
development expenditures and operating burdens.

Since the carrying amount of the CGU is not sensitive to the changes in
assumption, no sensitivity analysis is disclosed.

(v)  The estimated useful lives of buildings ranged from 12.5 to 25 years.
During 2016, the Group acquired a building amounted to approximately
HK$72,945,000 with lease terms of 40 years. The estimated useful lives of
buildings changed from 25 years to 40 years as mentioned in Note 3(f).

17 Exploration and evaluation assets

16 M% -~ BMENRE (&

BieE - ()

(v)

SENEHRRARMEN R FETEHE
ERAFERBRNE=FE -

ZETE R AN EERIABTE R BEH
BEBAE(L - REXEENBEBEHEN
TERBAEE55.0FTE271.0ET (=%
—HF: BRAEE440ETET0.0E
T0) e MAIEEFRHEBRET  BRE
R E A e TR AR AR B E R KTE
WIEZE BHe2s - SEEANT8%
F20% (ZZ—HF : 8% £20%) MKRFH
AITIRRTBEBMIR S EAEMAARRE
SRE ZEMNRENFEEHEL  BHRE
Al RRFAESTHOGREREESEENS
1t o

HRESELEMMNERESRRESHT
TEUR - R ERBEGEE N -

BFERNEIERAERN T 1255255 -
R-TE—RF SEKE-BSEHE
72,945,000 T 21EF - HEIAR40F - 18
FHY G T AT E F G PR AN B s 3(F) it f 25 4F
A& A0 G o

17 BERHMEEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cost B AR
At 1 January Kn—A—H 249,139 222,655
Currency realignment Bk 9,665 (38,175)
Acquisition of businesses (Note 33) W, HIB AR (FizE33) = 46,262
Additions NE - 18,397
Disposals HE (2,932) =
Written off (Note 9) e (FIEE9) (11,745) =
Transfer to oil and gas properties EEEYE  BEMEREET
under property, plant Bif MRARE (FizE16)
and equipment (Note 16) (30,579) -
At 31 December W+—A=+—H 213,548 249,139
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets represent the Group’s costs of
acquiring licenses and interests in undeveloped lands in West Central
Alberta, Canada, which are pending the determination of proved or
probable oil and gas reserves. The costs are accumulated in cost centers
by well, field, or exploration area pending determination of technical
feasibility and commercial viability.

The technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting mineral
resource is considered to be determined when proved reserves are
determined to exist. A review of each exploration license or field is
carried out, at least annually, to ascertain whether proved reserves have
been discovered.

Land use rights

e IR R R

(continued) (#)

17 RN LEE (&)

HREFEEERSERNEANBBE
A PP ED R P B Db RO R AT R M s R
A AfFEECRB &R A R
B ARERAEEME mARBRRE
RRARLRE  FEERMEREEAT
o

EETFERARER  RARBEEERD
RMEAFRATERRRCEE - 248
FURYRFAE OB BETRE - R
ERDEREAMHE -

18 L ih{E FAHE

2016 2015
ZB—XRE ZE—RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Net book value REFE
At 1 January m—A—8 314,013 253,663
Currency realignment B (23,792) (16,042)
Additions NE 113,708 83,553
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 34) HE—fETE AR (FE34) (1,998) =
Amortisation for the year FNEEH (8,587) (7,161)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 393,344 314,013
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e IR AR M

(continued) (4&)

19 Intangible assets

19 B EE

Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
Hith
e BREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T3t FET BT
As at 1 January 2015 R=-ZE-—FF—H—H
Cost PR AR 1,043,478 32,496 1,075,974
Accumulated amortisation RET - (4,062) (4,062)
Net book value BREFE 1,043,478 28,434 1,071,912
Year ended 31 December 2015 #HBE=-Z—HF
+TZA=+—HLFE
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—RF—HA—H 1,043,478 28,434 1,071,912
Currency realignment BT (23,825) (1,665) (25,490)
Additions NE - 10,920 10,920
Amortisation for the year FANEH - (1,666) (1,666)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+=-A=+—H 1,019,653 36,023 1,055,676
As at 31 December 2015 REZB—HF+=A=+—H
Cost D% 1,019,653 41,751 1,061,404
Accumulated amortisation RETEESH - (5,728) (5,728)
Net book value BREFE 1,019,653 36,023 1,055,676
Year ended 31 December 2016 BHE=-T— 5
+TZA=1+—HLFE
At 1 January 2016 R-T—X"F—HF—A 1,019,653 36,023 1,055,676
Currency realignment B R (25,753) (3,947) (29,700)
Additions = - 1,154 1,154
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 34)  H&—RHIE AR (H7E34) (22,154) - (22,154)
Amortisation for the year R - (2,685) (2,685)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+=ZA=+—H 971,746 30,545 1,002,291
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZZE—XRFE+=ZA=+—H
Cost PR AR 971,746 38,958 1,010,704
Accumulated amortisation RET R 5H - (8.413) (8,413)
Net book value BREEE 971,746 30,545

1,002,291
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19 Intangible assets (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to a group of CGUs identified for sales and
distribution of natural gas and other related products business, which
is also an operating segment, representing the lowest level within
the Group at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes.

The recoverable amount of the group of CGUs is determined from
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the year.
Management estimates a discount rate of 11.5% (2015: 11.2%) using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to this group of CGUs. The growth rate
of 3.0% (2015: 3.0%) for the next five years are based on industry
growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based
on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

The value in use calculations is derived from cash flow projections
based on the most recent financial budgets for the next 5 years
approved by management. Cash flows beyond 5-year period have been
extrapolated using growth rates of 3.0% (2015: 3.0%) per annum,
which is based on industry growth forecasts. The Board considered no
impairment loss is necessary as at 31 December 2016.

In sales and distribution of natural gas and other related products
business, the recoverable amount calculated based on value in use
exceeded carrying value by HK$1,431,395,000.

Since the carrying amounts of the CGUs are not sensitive to the
changes in assumption, no sensitivity analysis is disclosed.

e PR R AR

(continued) (#)

9 BILEE (&

B S BB & R xR AR R E b 47
BEREBAERN— RS EESMN (R
E—AKESI AEEARNBEREEN
ME BB EENRERER) o

—

ZHEBSEEBEN 2 AT KBS TIRRE
BEEmME - FREEZEREBRI R
FAFEER EREREERABEKAZ
TEEAEE) - SR EFRARES AT ST E
EEEREERZARSEEEMB TR
B MBI REFHITEE115% (ZF—h
F:i112%)c RERAF3.0%(ZF—H
F:30%) 2 BEEDERTIEERTE
Ao EBREERAZEH HEREMHER
REE) 2 BABHIRTELR -

FREBEFEDNREEEEETNARARE
FAROZHMEBEMELNRES RETE
BIPTEMR - BBASFHHRSREEHAET
F3.0%(ZF—RHF :3.0%) NIEREXHE
B WHERIEEREN - EZRRR
R-FE—R"E+-_A=+—8 TEHLE
KR EEE °

EHERBERARREMEEERES
B RIEFEREEFTE A IRE S 5ER
HEREEREEE A 1,431,395,000 87T ©

HRESELAEUNREEHRREDY
TEUR - A B A BURE AT o
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

20 Investments accounted for using the equity
method

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position are as follows:

20 EAEREARZIRE

R RMBHANKRERZ FEMAT

2016 2015

—Z—RF —E—AF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FH&T FHET

Associates /NG| 273,444 274,008
Joint venture SEE 26,621 42,846
At 31 December Rt+t=-—A=+—H 300,065 316,854

The amounts recognised in the consolidated profit or loss are as

RiFABERERZSBMT ¢

follows:
2016 2015
—Z—RF —E—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Associates il /NE] 139 794
Joint venture B (15,790) (5,137)
For the year ended 31 December BHE+_A=+—HILFE (15,651) (4,343)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

method (Continued)

Interests in associates

20 Investments accounted for using the equity

Nature of investments in associates, which are unlisted limited liability
companies, as at 31 December 2016:

e MR HRAR M

(continued) (#)

20 EREREARCIRE ()

REEE D B

R=B—AET=A=+—0 RBEA
A (B LTARAR) A 2 -

Percentage of

Country of Principal interest held
Name Registered capital establishment activities indirectly
BEEEEs
=L EfER ML ZBR ETEEK ERad
FA A A B B AR RMB20,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 30%
RARBRAA AER# 20,000,000 7T R RARER
(TEmELRED)
5EHHRIEEEIR RMB20,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 49%
BRAA] AR¥ 20,000,000 a2l ARREE
(MR¥REIR 1)
Sino Director Limited US$10,000 BVI Investment holding 25%
(Note) 10,0002 7T RBERRES BB
(PffE)
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e RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

20 Investments accounted for using the equity 20 ERAERZEARZRE (/&)

method (Continued)

REE N BER (&)

al

Interests in associates (Continued)

TXEIEREREARZBERRNHY

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the

associates which are accounted for using the equity method. BERE -
2016 2015
—Z—RF —T—AEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Assets: BEE
— Non-current assets —IERBEE 1,505,344 1,502,572
— Current assets —mEEE 30,271 23,359
1,535,615 1,525,931
Liabilities: BfE:
— Non-current liabilities —IERBBE 10,192 8,400
— Current liabilities —nBaE 17,180 4,622
Net assets BEFE 1,508,243 1,512,909
Revenue EHERE 61,616 50,459
Expenses Fx (63,629) (48,209)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrEi AT (E51R), & (2,013) 2,250
Income tax credit/(expense) FrEfiERR () 615 661)
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive R (&518) /& F &
(loss)/income for the year 2H (E518),Wasiaza (1,398) 1,589
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20 Investments accounted for using the equity

method (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Set out below are the reconciliation of the summarised financial

e PR R AR

(continued) (#)

20 ERAEREARZIIRE (&)

R N RS ()

AT B 2 3B 75 B R 2 B L OB

information presented to the carrying amount of its interest in AR REE YR
associates.

2016 2015
ZB-XE —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Net assets as at 1 January R—A—BZEEFE 1,512,909 1,513,774
(Loss)/profit for the year FA(ER), (1,398) 1,589
Currency translation differences BEMMEERE (3,268) (2,454)
Net assets as at 31 December Rt+-—A=+—HB28EFE 1,508,243 1,512,909
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+=—RA=+—RZKEE 273,444 274,008

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in
the associates.

Note:

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has invested HK$257,250,000 in Sino
Director Limited with 25% equity interests as an associate.

A business valuation was performed for the underlying assets of Sino Director
Limited. The recoverable amount is determined from value in use calculations.
The key assumptions for the value in use calculation are discount rates and
forecasted commodity prices. Management estimates a discount rate of 12.8%
(2015: 11.2%) using a pre-tax rates that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money.

The commodity price growth rate of 3.0% (2015: 3.0%) used in the calculations
is based on inflation growth forecasts. The Board considered no impairment loss
on the Group's investment in associate is necessary as at 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group determined that the fair value less costs of
disposal of Sino Director Limited amounting to approximately HK$593,775,000
exceeded its carrying value amounting to approximately HK$257,250,000.

Since the carrying amount of the interest in Sino Director Limited is not sensitive
to the changes in assumption, no sensitivity analysis is disclosed.

WHEEEENBHE AREREHEZHAR

& o

=
A

i}

R-ZE—ARE+_-_A=+—8 ' £EEMSino
Director Limited & 257,250,000/8 7T * B %
Bis & AR A9 25% BRAE o

2.5t Sino Director Limited M EE R B EHEITEE
HE - AIESEAEABEFEEERE - £
AEEFEZERBRRANBREBENERE
1% o BB EE A RBRE AT 5 R (G & R E
BZBAAERETTIRE128% (ZE—AF -
11.2%) °

AERRANEMESEREIN(ZE—HA
F:3.0%) NERBIRERTER - R=T—XF
+=ZA=+—H8 EEZRREEERBLAAN
WEWENEHRERIE -

R-BE—RNE+-_A=+—HB £@ETF
Sino Director Limited®) 2 F & H & & A
#) /593,775,000 T m R HEE @ E L
257,250,000 7T °

FRFA 7 Sino Director Limited & 25 &) BR E{E #H R
SR B R ¢ B R TR E AT e
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

20 Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

20 EMEREARCIRE (F)

Interest in a joint venture REELERER
2016 2015
—E-RF —ThEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT

Share of net assets: EIREEFE

At 1 January N—H—H 42,846 50,459
Currency realignment R (435) (2,476)
Share of loss of a joint venture Eh—EEEtEEE (15,790) (5,137)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 26,621 42,846

Nature of investment in a joint venture, which is a private limited
company, as at 31 December 2016:

RZBE-—RFE+-R=+—H" ' RE¥d
Z(BILERRAR)REZIEE ¢

Percentage of

Country of interest held
Name Registered capital establishment Principal Activities indirectly
BESEES
=L HEfEAR AL ZBR FEXEHK BOL
1L 7a B L B SR i B RMB100,000,000 PRC Trading of coalbed methane 35%
BRAT AR 100,000,000 7T R E KEREE
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tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

20 Investments accounted for using the equity 20 ERAEREARZRE (&)
method (Continued)

The following amounts represent the Group’s 35% share of the assets NTEEARE S NER-_E—hF
and liabilities, and revenue and results of the joint venture for the year +-A=+—"BHLFEEERERMLELELE
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015: ZEBRERAE  EFBEREHEZ35% :
2016 2015
—E-RF ZT—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Assets: BEE
— Non-current assets —ERBEE 391,096 393,243
— Current assets —MBEE 54,618 56,257
445,714 449,500
Liabilities: afE:

— Current liabilities —nEafE 369,654 327,083
Net assets BEFE 76,060 122,417
Revenue X 131,818 392,763
Expenses sz (176,932) (406,200)
Loss before taxation BRETAIES 1R (45,114) (13,437)
Income tax credit FriS RS - 303
Loss and total comprehensive loss FABEREHEEEERE

for the year (45,114) (13,134)
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the WEEEENRAECEERBAZIAR
joint venture. f& °
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e M RAR MR

(continued) (#&)

21 Available-for-sale financial assets

21 T[EHENKEE

2016 2015
ZE-RF ZT—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Equity securities: RARFES
— listed outside Hong Kong —HBINET 2 2
— listed in Hong Kong — BB LM 916 =
Debt securities: BESES -
— listed in Hong Kong — BB LW 576,713 325,604
— listed outside Hong Kong — BB BT 60,249 28,891
— unlisted —JEET 382 450
638,262 354,947

RAFBMRRRBE - B ETRARE
BEFG AR AT -

At the date of the statement of financial position, all the listed equity
and debt securities are stated at fair values.

The carrying amounts of the available-for-sale financial assets are AEHEN B EEREBENUATE®EEE -
denominated in the following currencies:

2016 2015

—E—XRE —T—hHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FH&T

Us$ ET 555,743 354,945
Others EHih 82,519 2
638,262 354,947

RUBHARRBEMZEREERRASDE
AAHHEERESZREE -

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial
position date is the carrying value of the debt securities classified as
available-for-sale.

At 31 December 2016, the available-for-sale financial assets are RZZE—RNFE+_A=+—H  qJ#HHE
pledged as a security for the Group’s unutilised banking facilities (Note MBEETUER EREBEKRBART
35). RbE K (FIFE35) ©
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tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

22 Inventories 22 &
2016 2015
ZE-RF ZT—AhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAIT
Raw materials JRE 36,376 40,985
Work-in-progress fERETR 90,521 77,951
Finished goods and natural gas B RRIAR 63,676 82,534
190,573 201,470
23 Deposits, trade and other receivables 23 & - BZRHEMBWRIE
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—AhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade receivables (Note (b)) B FREWER K (HT7E (b)) 796,330 803,503
Loan to an associate (Note (c)) ERTEE AR (M) 479,062 445,864
Loans to third parties (Note (d)) ERTE=7 (K ) 53,852 54,000
1,329,244 1,303,367
Prepaid construction costs SN I 158,625 101,202
Prepayment for acquisition of Wik s R AETR T 3R
land use rights 61,524 175,232
Prepayment for acquisition Stk ESEINEA
of properties - 74,239
Prepaid natural gas costs BRI RARKA 145,413 171,869
Prepaid material and equipment costs  FBH 1L K SR A AR 127,159 97,415
Interest receivables JEUF E 183,345 147,121
Other prepayments HA BN 90,240 108,588
Other receivables H AR 213,600 288,459
2,309,150 2,467,492
Less: Non-current portion R, - IEREE D (792,258) (904,806)
Current portion mEER D 1,516,892 1,562,686
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e SRR M

(continued) (#&)

23 Deposits, trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Board considers that the carrying amounts of deposits, trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

At each date of the statement of financial position, the Group’s allowance
for impairment of trade receivables will individually be determined based
on the credit history of its customers, such as financial difficulties or
default in payments, and current market conditions. Consequently, specific
impairment allowance will be recognised.

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 60 to 90 days to
its trade customers and keeps monitoring its outstanding trade receivables.
Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior management of the
Group.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

23 B - B REMEWIR
(&)

GEE

(@) HARFEFEASEN BEFERAH &
il é’%&ﬁﬁﬂﬂgl& IR FREEEE R
FERE

(b) RNEEHBRAXRAH SEBZEEE
FREREHREETPHOERESL (MY
f%l%ﬁiﬁﬁkﬁt ) RERATTH 5 (A B 5 &

o Bt - HERERREREE -

SRR TESRFPZEHEEHNT60H
F0HZMH  WEATEEITE M AREEZ
EoRKER SERATERETHERM
BEARIE 2 A o

RIFBRAHNE S RURTHZ Rk DT

I

2016 2015

—RE —E-RE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Up to 3 months =18 HLAR 712,716 722,367
3 to 6 months =@EAZENEA 25,333 31,031
Over 6 months NEA A E 58,281 50,105
Total a5t 796,330 803,503

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of approximately
HK$83,614,000 (2015: HK$81,136,000) that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent customers for whom there
is no recent history of default. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in their credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

On 23 September 2011, the Group entered into a loan agreement for
the construction of assets with Sino Director Limited, an associate, with
interest bearing at 6.2% per annum. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
loan to Sino Director Limited amounted to approximately HK$479,062,000
(2015: HK$445,864,000). The outstanding interest amounted to
approximately HK$157,815,000 (2015: HK$121,302,000) with interest
bearing at 6.8% per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the interest income arising from
this arrangement amounting to HK$36,513,000 (2015: HK$33,406,000)
(Note 10).

R=ZZ—A"E+=-A=+—H8 ' BE@HE
RIBERE 5 EUER 3K 483,614,000 7T
(ZZ—FH4F : 81,136,000 7T ) LT HA I
ﬁ@m%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁjgﬁﬁ@ isS) $ic]
R BEERE RASEHRIEN
gﬁﬁ@%ﬁ~ﬁmﬁﬁfgilﬁix
BE)RESRDE B 2EUE o & B &
BETMERRKEMCBBRSESHRZE
B%E -

(00 M-ZZT——FhhA-+=0 £EEKZ
A@]Sino Director Limited 537 B 5175 (73
REERR)  R62% Z2EMERHE - B
—E—A"E+=ZA=+—H ' £@M@ESino
Dlrector Limited & 3X 49479,062,000 % J©
(Z—Z — A : 445,864,000/ 7T ) » K&
B %) 5157,8150008 (=T — A F :
121,302,00087T) * FHIEA6.8% °

HE-_ZE—XRE+ZA=1+—BHILEE -
I IEZ BER FI S A 536,513,000 70 (=
T—F 4 : 33,406,000 7T) (£ 10) °
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23 Deposits, trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Loans to third parties comprised of the followings:

On 1 December 2015, the Group entered into a three year loan agreement
with a third party. If is unsecured, interest bearing at 8.0% per annum.
As at 31 December 2016, the loan balance amounted to approximately
HK$31,452,000 (2015: HK$30,000,000).

The remaining balance represented a loan to another third party to support
the third party’s acquisition of natural gas friendly vehicles. The loan to
the third party is unsecured, interest bearing at 4.0% per annum and
repayable annually in three equal installments by 31 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the interest income arising from
these loans to third parties amounted to approximately HK$3,304,000
(2015: HK$1,206,000) (Note 10).

The carrying amounts of the deposits, trade and other receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

e PR R AR

(continued) (#)

23 B - EFREMEWIR

(&

BeE « (%)

(d)

BERTE=FEETIIER:

R_ZB—RE+-_A—H S£EHE—FF
=HAMN=FHERRE o WEER %
8.0% ZEFRFE - R=—T—RE+_-A
=+—H  BEXR&FEAAR31,452,000% 7T
(ZZ—F4 :30,000,000/87T) °

BRTEBRBERT A BT UXEZS
ZEHBERARER - ZBBEFE=FER
THEER BEFENEL0%HELR-F
—NE+ZA=1+—HRABF—H 2
—HEE -

BHE_Z—R"F+-_A=+—HILEFE 5
= HEREERFBIRAL A 3,304,000 %
TT(ZZE—F : 1,206,000/87T) (tzE10) °

o B 5 A AR HOE 2 BT A DA
TEHE -

2016 2015

—EB—RF —E-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHETT

Renminbi NG 2,201,565 2,356,836
CAD hnT 42,088 43,641
Others A 65,497 67,015
2,309,150 2,467,492
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

24 Financial assets at fair value through profit or

24 AV EEBERARZHBE

loss =3
2016 2015
ZE-REF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Equity securities: R A EH
— listed in Hong Kong —&BLm - 2,945
Debt securities: EBES
— listed outside Hong Kong — BB ET 20,029 21,045
— unlisted —LEH 27,419 26,281
47,448 50,271

The carrying amounts of the financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss are denominated in the following currencies:

BRAVTELBEEARZMBEE ZREE

RATHIEREEHE

2016 2015

—E—XRE —ET—hF

HK$000 HK$'000

FHET FET

US$ E 47,448 47,325
Others Hib - 2,946
47,448 50,271

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial
position date is the carrying value of debt securities classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are pledged as a
security for the Group's unutilised banking facilities (Note 35).

RUBHRREKRBBMOSEAEERRSDE
REAFELEEARNERESNER

1B -

BAVTERBESARNPBEETNE
/o EREERTRE R (HEE35) -
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25 Time deposits, bank balances and cash

e PR R AR

(continued) (4&)

25 EMIER - RITEHRRE

2016 2015
—E—RF —T—AHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERSE 1,787,576 2,106,904
Short-term bank deposits 5 HIRITIE R 71,077 412,800
1,858,653 2,519,704

Less: Time deposits with maturity W E AR B ={E AR
over three months TEHFR (25,170) (216,000)
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEEEE 1,833,483 2,303,704

The interest rates for short-term bank deposits was approximately from
1.1% to 3.9% (2015: 2.8% to 4.2%) per annum. The deposits have a
maturity of ranging from 90 to 365 days.

Included in bank deposits, bank balances and cash are amounts of
approximately HK$1,558,078,000 or RMB1,391,141,000 (2015:
HK$1,824,940,000 or RMB1,520,783,000) denominated in Renminbi
which are deposited with banks in Mainland China. The conversion
of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign currencies and
the remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
Government.

The carrying amounts of the time deposits, bank balances and cash are
denominated in the following currencies:

EHBETEFTNFFRNENTH11%E
39%(ZZ—FF :28%E4.2%) ° 70
HINF 90 HE365H o

RITIER ~ IRITHERKRIE© XY 1,558,078,000
BT AREE 1,391,141,000 T ( —F—FH4F ¢
1,842,940,0007% 7T =k A R ¥ 1,520,783,000
) HAAREEE - WFEAP R A AR
17 - RZEARETHEG S LR INE REF
B (A b B Y <R 7838 ST AR B R AT AR A A SNE
BIRHEHIE -

EREFR  ROTEHRRBEEZREAENRT
FIEHEHE

2016 2015

—E—REF —T—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Renminbi ARE 1,560,786 2,041,320
us$ X 174,993 324,001
HK$ BT 122,337 56,360
Others Hith 537 98,023
1,858,653 2,519,704
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26 Trade and other payables 26 B RHEMENRIE
2016 2015
—E-RE ZT—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT
Trade payables B F RN 570,343 670,774
Consideration payables ERRE 18,000 18,400
Construction cost payables e R A 286,823 201,167
Interest payable FERTFIR 47,284 46,135
Dividends payable to FERTIEIERR
non-controlling interests S 114,387 128,159
Salaries payables 3 12,819 5,834
Other taxes payable H A fEHiI8 48,510 28,472
Other payables and accruals H A e FRIE R ERT & A 229,581 277,479
1,327,747 1,376,420
The Board considers that the carrying amounts of trade and other EEZRRA BEZRHMENREBZER
payables approximate their fair values. EEREQNFERS -
The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as BIEEZHHNE ZEMNERRZRE DT
follows: ORNE
2016 2015
—ZE—XREF —E—FHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Up to 3 months =EANA 470,508 565,916
3 to 6 months =EAZEXEHA 37,871 45,933
Over 6 months NEALAE 61,964 58,925
Total At 570,343 670,774
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26 Trade and other payables (Continued) 26 EF R HMENTRIE(E)

B 5 REMENFBENREENTEE

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are denominated in

the following currencies: sHE -
2016 2015
b 2 PAY:S —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Renminbi ARE 1,201,994 1,237,561
HK$ BT 53,567 53,550
CAD T 72,186 85,309
1,327,747 1,376,420
27 Receipt in advance 27 FEWFIE
2016 2015
ZB-RF —T-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Receipt in advance for sales of HERAR K EMABRER 2
natural gas and other related TaUFRIA
products 1,040,468 953,875
Receipt in advance for connections R E BEE 2 TERGRIE
of gas pipelines 115,727 135,832
1,156,195 1,089,707
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27 Receipt in advance (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, included in receipt in advance for sales
of natural gas was the amount received from customers using
I/C cards amounting to approximately HK$637,431,000 (2015:
HK$606,255,000), in which the movements are as follows:

27 FAWFIE (&

RZZE—RNFE+_A=+—H #HEXRA
RAMBRFBABREERERAICKER
R FRIE %) 637,431,000 8 L (—Z— R F :
606,255,0007% 7T ) + TE U FNIH 2 & &) 10

N

2016 2015
ZE-REF —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January wn—A—H 606,255 534,559
Currency realignment EHEGERE (48,186) (41,982)
Payments received in advance B W FE W R IE 3,178,678 2,237,865
Redemption during the year FRHEM (3,099,316) (2,124,187)
At 31 December ®W+—-—A=+—H 637,431 606,255

28 Borrowings 28 &8
2016 2015
—E-REF —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Bank borrowings, unsecured RITIEE — EIEH 263,872 897,286
Other borrowings, unsecured HipfgE —#iEH 97,035 75,488
Total borrowings EE®E 360,907 972,774

The Group's borrowings are repayable within 1 year.

KEZEREAN—FAEE -
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28 Borrowings (Continued) 28 f8& (&)
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the BEMNREEN T EBEE - WA T3
following currencies and carried at the following interest rates: FZFBR :
2016 2015
—B—XEF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Renminbi ARE 125,036 747,449
CAD T 235,871 225,325
360,907 972,774
At fixed rates (Bl E AR 125,036 704,258
At floating rates EEY IS 235,871 268,516
360,907 972,774
Weighted average effective interest TG EREFE -
rates (per annum):
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 5.7% 6.0%
— Other borrowings —HitfEE 4.2% 2.8%
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(continued) (#&)

29 BEREE

2016 2015

—E—RF —T—AEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHBT

US$ denominated senior notes AETEHEZBERE 5,006,417 4,992,169

On 25 April 2013, the Company issued senior notes, with an aggregate
nominal value of US$350,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,713,000,000)
at par value (the “Senior Notes A”), which bear interest at 5.25%
per annum and the interest is payable semi-annually in arrears. The
net proceeds after deducting the direct issuance costs, amounted to
approximately US$344,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,666,000,000). The
Senior Notes A will mature on 25 April 2018 and are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

On 11 November 2014, the Company issued another senior notes,
with an aggregate nominal value of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,325,000,000) at par value (the “Senior Notes B”), which bear
interest at 5.00% per annum and the interest is payable semiannually
in arrears. The net proceeds after deducting the direct issuance
costs, amounted to approximately US$296,900,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,300,975,000). The Senior Notes B will mature on 7 May 2020
and are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the senior notes amounted
to approximately HK$5,106,281,000 (2015: HK$5,075,793,000). The
effective interest is 5.46% (2015: 5.45%). The fair value of the senior
notes traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the date of the statement of financial position. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The senior notes are
within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

R-ZE—=FEWA-+HAHE AFIREE
%% 17 BR @ 42 {E /5350,000,0003 T (8 &
7 2,713,000,000/8 7T ) K 8 5L ZE & ([ &
HEEA]D BB F525% B AFE
BEFEIN - MBEERTBRB MG
FRIE F FA A #9344,000,0003% T (HHE R
2,666,000,000/87L0) ° BEAEEZBEABR=F
—N\EFMNA-—+HBEEERE B
ke

R=ZZT—NMNE+—A+—H  QAREAE
ZE1TER M 42 E 7% 300,000,000 37T (A%

7 2,325,000,00078 7T ) B B HMNMB & BB
([BEZEHEB]) & EF5.00%: E B A
BEELFIN - MBREERTERBZHN
BRI R EE A #9296,900,000 % 7T (HHER
2,300,975,000/87C) - BAEZEBHR =
—EFRALARBREREBE R LT e

R-ZT—RNE+_A=1+—H ' BLEEE
2 ANFEEHAE5,106,281,0008 L ( = =F
— F % :5,075,793,000 7T ) ° & K& A
K B546% (= F — A F :545%) °
RIEEMSGEEZEBEZRZATER
BEBRAKB 2T BHRETE - REKE
BB IER K SR FHRR AT - &
HE - BREA - 1TEEE - RERBIAE
EMBISHRE TS  MABBKRES

KEETZEBRTIMEBERGZER LS
B ZEEBAEBEIARATEE—EIX -
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30 Deferred income tax 30 EIEFTIBH

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under BEAMGHEAEEERE R =R
the liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted MAEBHBHEBMABEER M REEH
by the statement of financial position date. A& o

EELAEANTRANATSERVREER
BEMNBBERE  MEEMEHE KRR
— KB RIRSEEHRSHEER

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes related to the same fiscal

authority. BEHEH -
2016 2015
—E—XREF —ET—AhEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Deferred tax assets EEFTISIHEE (19,510) (16,735)
Deferred tax liabilities FEFMSHAE 240,801 231,700
Deferred tax liabilities (net) RIEAEH B ECFRE) 221,291 214,965
The net movements in the deferred income tax account is as follows: EEFTSTERE 2 S FEMT ¢
2016 2015
—B-AE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
At 1 January m—H—H 214,965 413,447
Currency realignment B 8,478 (54,533)
Credited to consolidated REREEB=mNETA
profit and loss (Note 13) (MF7E13) (2,152) (143,949)
At 31 December W+—-—A=+—H 221,291 214,965
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30 Deferred income tax (Continued) 30 BB (&)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to FRELEMSHEERAE (BRI
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the SERER 2 EESRIRSHAT) 2 B BT ¢

year are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets EEFSHEE
Asset retirement obligation Tax losses Total
BERERE REER &it
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

2R3 “T-nf  ZB-RF  CEZ-1F ZB-RE  CT-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TEL TiEgn THL TiEgn TEL

At 1 January w—A—8 (26,550) (20,294) (39,419) (41,989) (65,969) (62,283)
Effect of change in tax rate hxggo a2 - (1,482) - (1,751) - (3,233)
(Credited)/charged to consolidated GIA)/fhEARH

profit or loss (1,888) (8,888) (50,440) 2,419 (52,328) (6,469)
Currency alignment EERE (916) 4114 (4,276) 1,902 (5,192) 6,016
At 31 December R=A=1+-H (29,354) (26,550) (94,135) (39,419) (123,489) (65,969)
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTEHAE

Accelerated tax depreciation

and depletion Others Total
MBBEHE R Efty At
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

¥-~F ZFRF ZRnF 0 ZERF ZR3F 0 ZERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TATL TER TATL TER TAL

At 1 January R—A—H 249,856 392,508 31,078 83,222 280,934 475,730
Effect of change in tax rate hxggoz2 - 28,987 - 4,375 - 33,362
Charged/(credited) to consolidated Mk /GtA) &A%

profit or loss 45,460 (115,723) 4,716 (51,886) 50,176 (167,609)
Currency alignment EHHRE 13,910 (55,916) (240) (4,633) 13,670 (60,549)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 309,226 249,856 35,554 31,078 344,780 280,934
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30 Deferred income tax (Continued)

31

During 2016, deferred income tax liabilities to the extent of
approximately HK$1,240,000 have not been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries because the Board considers
that the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Unremitted earnings totaled
approximately HK$1,800,281,000 (2015: HK$1,399,947,000) as at 31
December 2016 and HK$7,396,000 has been recognised as deferred
tax liability for the withholding tax.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
had unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$76,424,000 (2015:
HK$69,094,000) to carry forward against future taxable income. All the
tax losses will be expired within the next 5 years.

Assets retirement obligation

The movements in assets retirement obligation are as below:

30

31

e IR R R

(continued) (4&)

IESEPRSHE (&)

RZE—R"F BEEFRSHARL
1,240,000 & 7T 3 4% i 3R /% T 0 B I E b
M WRIBRARINEERBAAZ
RELAEF RAESRRAEE LR
EENEAEEEGH AL EREEAA
A EE R ARKER - RZF—X
F+_A=1+—HB AEHEAEEL
/#1,800,281,000/% ;o( — & — A F:
1,399,947,0007%8 7T ) £ 7,396,000 7T 2 5t
AR ERAECHIBAE -

EEFRSHEEAEBNBRKE N DEESB
ARARERRAMNERSER - B
BERAEMRER - R - RF+=
A=1t—R SEZAERIBHBABEDH
76,424,000/ (== —HF : 69,094,000
BT B ERKERTBALE - B
HIBB BN TERFAER

BEREEE

BERBEAEZESHNT :

2016 2015

—EB—RE —E—F4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

At 1 January n—A—H 98,326 81,166
Currency realignment B 3,400 (17,592)
Acquisition of businesses (Note 33) WekE 7% (M 33) 4,065 8,924
Accretion (Note 10) AN (fFEE10) 2,295 2,044
Site restoration expenditure Sk E Sz (8,207) =
Provision for the year FNEE 8,844 23,784
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 108,723 98,326

Note:

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in Canada, the Group is
obliged to accrue the cost for land reclamation and site closures for the Group’s
ownership interest in oil and natural gas assets including well sites and gathering
systems. The provision for asset retirement obligation has been determined by
the directors based on their best estimates in accordance with the relevant rules
and regulations.

RENEAEREMRUZER  KFEEERT
AEBMRNABMERAREBE (BREAHRE
RE A8 #3528 K% B8 B 95 S SRS
EREERBEAENBRBCHESTUES
REGGRERRBEERMRAERETE -
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32 Share capital, share option and share award 32 BAKRERE RETHE
schemes
(@) Share capital (a) W&
Number of
shares Amount
RHEHE &5
‘000 HK$°000
T2 FET
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—HF—A—H 5,299,576 52,996
Bonus issued of shares ATAREETT 529,608 5,296
Repurchased of shares (Note) B [ A {n (FfaE) (3,500) (35)
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 RIE—RFRZZT—RF
+=A=+—8 5,825,684 58,257
Note: FiaE -
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company repurchased BE-_ZT—AF+-A=1+—HILFE "
a total of 3,500,000 of its own shares on the Stock Exchange at a price NEI R R FTEIE A ££ 3,500,000 R H B &
ranging from HK$1.01 to HK$1.02 per share. BR5 - BRBERNRER1.01 BT 1.02
BT e
No repurchased of shares during the year ended 31 December 2016. REBEZT—X"F+A=1+—HLFE
BB B E R IR -
Number of Aggregate
ordinary shares of consideration
Month of repurchase HK$0.10 each Highest Lowest paid
ElfE A 4 BREE0I0BIHNEEREE =1 =4 ENRELE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHIT FHET FHET
January 2015 3,500,000 1.02 1.01 3,538,200

—ZT—hF—A
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32 RAKRBIRE RETE ()

32 Share capital, share option and share award
schemes (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (b) BARRESHE

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme") pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders on
23 November 2011.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its discretion
offer options to any eligible participant who is an employee,
executive or officer of the Company or its subsidiaries (including
executive and non-executive directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants or advisers who
will provide or have provided services to the Company or its
subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 10% of the issued
shares of the Company from time to time.

The maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in any 12
month-period shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in
issue on the date of offer of an option.

The offer of a grant of options may be accepted within 21 days
after the date of the offer, with a consideration of HK$1 for the
grant thereof. Exercise period in respect of the options granted
shall be determined by the Board and in any event such period
of time shall not exceed a period of 10 years commencing on
the date upon which such option is deemed to be granted and
accepted.

BERER-—E——F+—F=—+=
ARBZRER  ArRIRMNBRET
2| (B ATl -

REBRETS EZRAUNGRE
BRETENAERS2EE 88K
2EERNBXENBARZEER
TTRABSEEBE (BEARSEM
BRAZAITRIFATES) - URE
A&k B L RARLEMB R ER
HERTS 2 HRER ~ EXEER KRR o

RIBRE I AR R 8 R A BB A a et B4R
HeBERE SRk 2BROHBE ERAR
AN 2 B BTN Z10% °

REFR+ZEARE BLaERKRS
HEZREBLELRISBEEBERERE
ZBHEBBETRNEBZ1% -

ERBREZATTRBRERS
BiEFF 21 BAREMN 1 BTz RERE
MEREET ZBIE - BRELT
EHRMEERRE  MEEMBER
T ARSRNSEESE B ERER
BRAREREZN 2 BEET T -
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32 Share capital, share option and share award 32 BAKREERE REGHE (&)

schemes (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) HERREESTEI(EF)

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an eligible
participant under the Existing Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the official closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer of an option; (b) the average
of the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of an option; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

The Share Option Scheme was valid for 10 years from 23
November 2011.

On 22 January 2016, in order to motivate and reward the
Company’s staff, the Company had granted to certain eligible
participants of the Company share options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
in share capital of the Company. The share options shall be
exercisable in the following periods:

—  30% of the share options are exercisable on 22 January
2018;

-  30% of the share options are exercisable on 22 January
2019; and

—  the remaining share options are exercisable on 22 January
2020

EERERNBRREXEARBRE
AERETRERSEEZSNER
BEETEE  EEEABERTXE
RABERATZERE : (a) BEKE
REEARNDRB RIS BET A
SIZIERKHE - () EREREEEMR
RERMAEZZBRORBEIME
HEREPM 2 ERWTHE TSR
K (o) BinEE

EREFEAR =T ——F+— A
“tH=HRERERETE -

R-ZZE—XR"FEF—A=-+=-H' BH
BRERHATNEL ARDHER
TEEAK2HEEREIRBES &
100,000,000 A ERAF SREE
0.01 BTz LBRHBAKE - BARE
AR 5 EARTTE

- 30%HERER_Z—/\F—A
—+-HAFITE

- 30%HMEBRER-F-NAF—A
“tTZBRATIE: &

- ERERER-_Z_ZTF—A
—+=-RAFITE

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2016



-[l

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
trE SRR M

(continued) (#)

32 Share capital, share option and share award 32 RAKRIEBRE REGTE (F)
schemes (Continued)
(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) HEERRHEESHEI(E)
(i)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of the (i) BRERENZE MINEFEITHEE
share options are as follows: R
2016
—EB-RE
Number of
Exercise price option
THEE BREHE
HK$ ‘000
BT T
Outstanding at 1 January W—A—BHEKTE = =
Granted during the year FARDY 0.46 100,000
Forfeited [EheL = =
Exercised 2171 - =
Outstanding at 31 December RTZA=+—HEK{TE 0.46 100,000
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32 Share capital, share option and share award

schemes (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued)

(i)  The following table discloses details of the Company'’s share
options held by employees for the year ended 31 December

32 RARBRE REE (F)

(b) fBARAEHEI(H)

(iy TREBEERBE_T—XF
TZHA=T—BLFERFAF

2016: MENRHE 2 515
Number of option (‘000)
BEREHE (THh)
Outstanding
Exercise Outstanding Granted  Exercised  Forfeited at31
price per Exercisable  at 1 January during during during  December
Dateofgrant  share period 2016 the year the year the year 2016
R=B-7E RZB-7~E
g -B-B TZA=t-H
RURS  EE i HAE  FARY  FRTE FARM HAGR
HKS
B
Employees 22 January 2016 0.46 22 January 2018 to 22 January 2026 = 30,000 = = 30,000
€8 Z2—5-A=tZH - \§-A=tZHZE
ZBoRE-ATCH
22 January 2016 046 22 January 2019 to 22 January 2026 - 30,000 - - 30,000
Z2E-AZtZH B NE-AZTZRE
2B E-ATCH
22 January 2016 046 22 January 2020 to 22 January 2026 - 40,000 - - 40,000
ZE- F-AtZA “E-TE-A-t-AZ
ZBoRE-ATCH
Total @t - 100,000 - - 100,000
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32 Share capital, share option and share award
schemes (Continued)

(b)

(0

Share option scheme (Continued)

The fair value of the options granted during the year ended 31
December 2016 determined using the binomial option pricing
model was approximately HK$0.127, HK$0.148 and HK$0.171
per share respectively. The significant inputs into the model were
share price of HK$0.455 as at the grant date, exercise price
as shown above, volatility of 40.99%, 40.97% and 42.56%,
expected life of options of eight, seven and six years, and
annual risk-free interest rate of 0.993%, 1.056% and 1.184%
respectively. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns is based on the historical volatility of
the Company’s share price over a period of eight, seven and six
years before the date when the options were granted.

Share award scheme

On 4 November 2011, the Board approved the adoption of a
share award scheme (the “Restricted Share Award Scheme”) with
the objective to recognise the contributions by eligible employees
within the Group and to give incentives in order to retain them
for their continuing operation and development and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the rules relating to the Restricted Share Award
Scheme (“Scheme Rules”), shares are comprised of (i) shares
subscribed for or purchased by the Company and delivered to the
Trustee appointed by the Company (Note 38(c)) subsequently; or
(ii) the Trustee out of cash arranged to be paid by the Company
out of the Company’s funds to the Trustee and be held on trust
for the relevant eligible grantees until such shares are vested with
the relevant eligible grantees in accordance with the Scheme
Rules (“Restricted Shares”). The Board of Directors implements
the Restricted Share Award Scheme in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme Rules including providing necessary funds to the
Trustee to purchase or subscribe for shares up to 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

e IR R R

(continued) (#)

32 RARBRE RE:E (E)

(b)

(c)

BRESE (E)

FAZEXNHEEEER  REEZ
T A"F+-A=t—HLEFEERSD
HWEREEEEATES NN AER
0.127787T ~ 0.148B 7T 0. 1718 7T »
FABEAANNERSIEAREF LB
Z{HfE0.45587T « ERATRITEE -

B 540.99% - 40.97% K 42.56%
ZRE - BRESHANE - £tFR
NEZTBRTFRA KD R A0.993% -
1.056% & 1.184% 2 R\ K o #%7
T8 HA AR B Bl ) M) IR 2E = T 2 AR IR D
EERRRRBRERLAHZAIN
G F NG HRE 2 B R RIE o

IR 42 R Bt &I

R-F——%+—HA@A EFR/E
e A BR AR — TR R AT 1 ([ PR I ME AR
D REE D IERRBUEFEES
BEREEBZERE ﬁ%@%%WM
HRAMBAREREE  SREE
HERBPRBSBAT

R R 51 14 AR {0 22 B 5t 81 5 BE AR A
(TFFEIRAND - BB () 2R RE
FEEWEREAZ T RARZHENTIE
A (HIFE38(c)) 2 Bt ¢ k(i) | FEA
NEBRAREE RN THEFEA
ZRTRBXBELREHELAER
EBEANAEET A 2B (TR
D))  EEZEFRMHRETER
AEEBREREERARARL -&
£ RS RET 88 RIE MR B 1A
HB:tE - EERAXEAREREE
T L/(ﬁ%)\&hﬁ%%%ﬁ ATRZ
EBEITIRA 10% 2 &KH
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32 Share capital, share option and share award
schemes (Continued)

(c)

Share award scheme (Continued)

Under the Restricted Share Award Scheme, the Restricted Shares
are granted to eligible employees of the Company or any one
of its subsidiaries for no consideration but subject to certain
conditions (including but not limited to, lock-up period) to be
decided by the Board at the time of grant of the Restricted Shares
under the Restricted Share Award Scheme. The Restricted Share
Award Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from the date of
adoption.

The Restricted Share Award Scheme operates in parallel with
the Share Option Scheme. All options granted under the Share
Option Scheme continue to be valid and exercisable subject to
and in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
respectively.

Pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the Board may, from time to
time, at their absolute discretion select the eligible grantees after
taking into account various factors as they deem appropriate for
participation in the Restricted Share Award Scheme as a grantee
and determines the number of Restricted Shares to be awarded.
The Board shall cause to pay the Trustee the purchase price and
the related expenses from the Company’s resources for the shares
to be purchased by the Trustee.

The Trustee shall hold such Restricted Shares on trust for the
eligible grantees until they are vested. When the relevant eligible
grantee has satisfied all vesting conditions specified by the Board
at the time of making the award and become entitled to the
Restricted Shares, the Trustee shall transfer the relevant Restricted
Shares to that grantee.

For awardees who cease employment with the Group before
vesting, the unvested shares are forfeited. The forfeited shares
are held by the trustee of the Restricted Share Award Scheme
who may award such shares to the awardees as instructed by the
Board.

32 RARBRE REE (F)

(c)

M43 SR B & ()

ARIEPR B 1A 17 B2 B =T &) - BRI 1A
MARERER T RRAEERARA
FRRER—KMERR - BRER
B RRERGIER D BT 81K
BR Al 14 B 1 B ORTE RO 5 TR (2R (B
RRR - ZEEH) o REIERRL 2R
BB RERM B RER - REATEF -

BRIl 1 A £ 2 B AT 81 L R AR St 830
7 REBREASREOAEBR
BEEEAMEATE  EADHE
ST R AR BRAB AR AT &I AU R 3K o

REBEFTERA EXZRATHRER
HMEREBERR/ERS LR
2R R [ RNEIPSE$2 5+ Sl RV
BA - WEE AR 2 RS R B
B - E%%Mﬁﬁ%AW%%AZ%
7 URBZERAZFEAZNEA
EREEER -

RXAABREETARAEBAZA
¥ A 15 B8 R 1 A EREE
BE - SHBEEREARAERES
R e BR B B P A TE 2 — VD R BB iR
- BERESRIIERD - ZFEA
e E% A R BINER D TARA -

KRB TEXEREBEZZRA
REBIRMD AT IR - SRUB D B R
B BB EIREARE - MR
AARBEZRETERZFHN T
KEA o
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32 Share capital, share option and share award 32 BAKRERE RETHE (F)
schemes (Continued)
(c) Share award scheme (Continued) (c) REIREE (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2016, 1,980,000 restricted HE-_Z—R"FE+-_A=+—HItHF
shares have been awarded to the directors and employees E - EREZTNREERNSEBREMR
for their services rendered to the Group, and all of them are 7% 228 1,980,000 A B I 14 A 0 T 18
immediately vested. 5 BFAZERMBEERE -
Details of the Awarded Shares awarded during the year FARHEBROOFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016: BHE_Z—RF+_-_A=+—HLHF
E
Number of Fair value

Date of award shares awarded per share Vesting period
REBH RERGEHE BB AFE SEH

HK$

BT
Employees
(==
21 April 2016 1,080,000 0.55 vested immediately on 21 April 2016
—E—REFMA=+—H RZZ—RFHA=+—HEREE
12 May 2016 900,000 0.54 vested immediately on 12 May 2016
—E—-RFRA+T=H RZZ—R"FRA+TZRAARGE
During the year ended 31 December 2015: HE-_T—AF+-A=+—HIF

E
Number of Fair value

Date of award shares awarded per share Vesting period
R B RERGEHE BHAFE BEH

HK$

AT
Directors of the Company
NAEES
28 July 2015 20,000,000 0.66 vested immediately on 28 July 2015
—ZE-hFtA=+N\HB REZZE—RF+ A=+ N\BREEB
Employees
EE
28 July 2015 3,000,000 0.66 vested immediately on 28 July 2015
—E-RFtA=+N\H REZZ—RF+ A=+ N\BRREEB

FHRREBEERAT 2016FFR
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32 Share capital, share option and share award 32 RAREBRE REGTE (F)

schemes (Continued)
(c) Share award scheme (Continued) ()

Details of the Awarded Shares awarded during the year
(Continued)

Movement in the number of shares awarded for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

B A7 SR M=t 8 ()
FRFHRBA D 2 1 (F)
ERLROHBERBE_FT—AFK

—AF+-A=t+—-ALFEZ
g

Number of Awarded Shares

SRR EE

2016 2015

—E-RF —ThF

Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BEERTE 2,050,000 5,030,000
Awarded B 1,980,000 23,000,000
Forfeited 221 = (1,000,000)
Vested =l (2,510,000) (24,980,000)
Outstanding at 31 December R+ A=+—HREKRTE 1,520,000 2,050,000

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Trustee acquired
under the Award Scheme 57,340,000 (2015: 178,580,000)
ordinary shares of the Company through purchases on the open
market with a price range of HK$0.46 to HK$0.59 per share at a
total cost (including related transaction costs) of HK$31,875,000
(2015: HK$143,163,000) which was credited to shares held
for share award scheme account of the Company as an equity
component of the Company. As at 31 December 2016, the
total number of shares in the reserve was 637,629,221 (2015:
582,799,000).

RBE-_E—A"F+=-_A=+—8
LEFE  ZEARBREEEZERN
T3 #%0.46 7 7T £ 0.59 7% 7T & B 1§
£ AR ™% E A AR S57,340,000 %
(ZZ — # % :178,580,000 % ) &
AR BRAN(BEEERZZKAR)
#%31,875,000% ;o( = T — A F:
143,163,000/ 7t ) + B & A QA &
RO RETEFEENROES -
EBRRNBRARD - R=ZF—~
F+ZA=+—H HEEROEK
5637,629221/0%( = & — & F:
582,799,000 f%) °
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33 Acquisition of businesses

(@) Acquisition in 2016

Effective from 9 August 2016, the Group acquired 100% working
interests in a business engaging in exploitation and production of
crude oil and natural gas in Blue Rapids area from an independent
third party at a consideration of CAD7,471,000 (approximately
HK$44,079,000). During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
above acquisition was completed and the Group commenced
to account for the business combination from the effective
date when the Group gained control over the business. On
the date of acquisition agreement, no license was obtained for
one uncompleted well. Therefore, no consideration and value
were assigned to the well. At the effective acquisition date, the
Group applied for a license for the well with the government
and used it in production. A gain on bargain purchase amounted
to approximately HK$10,803,000 was attributable to the well.
Details of net assets acquired and gain on bargain purchase are as
follows:

e IR R R

(continued) (#)

33. BB

(a)

ZE-RFWE

BE-Z—AFENANBEE £EEB
YREBHE =) WEE —EEBlue
Rapids b [& 1 = #) 5 & FEFofR kK
AR ENEBHEFTEES  REA
7,471,000407C(4944,079,000%8 7T ) °
REBEE=_ZT—X"F+-_A=+—H1
FE FHRESHEETKEERB
43 A ER (RIS EES E 2 b M
TR ) RIS RS HEARR - RUER
HEEE . —EEH ARG EAERER -
At ZBHELAEERENRE
B RERKERY  SERZEHF
METEREERI AREE - AZE
Fr M %45 4 (B UK B8 W25 49 10,803,000
B BB EEFAERZBHRBIK
BT

HK$°000

F#xT

Total cash consideration ®wIRSRE 44,079

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets ~ FTUEE Al P & = R FTAE B &R
acquired and liabilities assumed BREREH

Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) Mz - BB RERAE (dEE16) 58,947
Asset retirement obligation (Note 31) B ETREEAIE (F5E31) (4,065)

Total identifiable net assets AR FEERE 54,882
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 8) EEREE WS (EES) (10,803)
FHRREBEERAT 20165FF3R
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(continued) (#&)

33 Acquisition of businesses (Continued)

(b) Acquisitions in 2015

33. WiE X (&)

Effective from 6 January, 20 August and 20 October 2015, the
Group acquired 100% working interests in business engaging in
exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas in the
areas of Pembina, Cynthia and Brazeau from independent third
parties at a consideration of CAD14,047,000, CAD52,598,000
and CAD10,632,000, respectively (approximately HK$85,687,000,
HK$319,018,000 and HK$64,855,000, respectively). During
the year ended 31 December 2015, the above acquisitions
were completed and the Group commenced to account for the
business combination from the effective dates when the Group
gained control over the businesses. Details of net assets acquired
and gain on bargain purchase are as follows:

(b)

—ER-aFWRBEE

BE-_ZEZ—RF—AXB - NAZ+
Ak+AZ+RHE SERBIE
= 7 Uk B& £ Pembina * Cynthia &
Brazeauft = H) R & B 5 MR MR A
ROCENEHBAEER  REH
Bl &14,047,000 00 7T * 52,598,000
N ot X% 10,632,000 00 7o ( 2 Bl 49 A&
85,687,0007% JT ~ 319,018,000/% 7T
164,855,000 7) c BHE=-ZZ—H
F+ZA=+—HIFE LMk
FHEETHKASEEE XA (AIEE
BERHZECEREIER) Fn g
BEHAR BUBEEFERZEE
W IR FFIB AT ¢

Pembina Cynthia Brazeau
area area area Total
Pembina#t®  Cynthiait®  Brazeauit & @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TAT TAT
Total cash consideration BRERE 85,687 319,018 64,855 469,560
Recognised amounts of identifiable PR AT R B B
assets acquired and liabilities R EAEN
assumed EHEREHE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16)  #13 5= K& (st 16) 90,390 323,239 24,144 437,773
Exploration and evaluation assets PRk EE (Mt 17)
(Note 17) - - 46,262 46,262
Asset retirement obligation BERERE (31
(Note 31) (4,703) (4,221) - (8,924)
Total identifiable net assets AR EEEFA 85,687 319,018 70,406 475,111
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 8) # B (st e) - = (5.551) (5.551)
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33 Acquisition of businesses (Continued) 33. (XG0 (#E)
(c) Acquisition projects’ financial performance () WIBIBHEMNBERRA
The respective acquisition projects’ financial performance are as ZUGBETE B MBS RIBE ST ¢
follows:
2016 2015
“E-RE ik
Blue Rapids Pembina Cynthia Brazeau
area area area area
Blue Rapids Pembina Cynthia Brazeau
& R e e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAL TAL TAL

Revenue contributed by acquired business since BREE B ELA SRR
the date of the acquisition SHERNERE 5310 25,010 13,420 183

Profit contributed by acquired business since BB R LARFEE

the date of the acquisition FHEERIAET 3,540 16,470 7320 183
Pro forma revenue if the acquisition fiEER—A—A
closed on 1 January ERMEEEEE 7,670 25,010 21,960 1,220
Pro forma profit i the acquisition mEER—A—A
closed on 1 January ERROEERT] 5,310 16,470 12,220 1,220
34 Disposal of a subsidiary 34 HE—REKEAR
On 13 January 2016, a subsidiary of the Company, in which 51% RZTE—R"F—A+=8 " Ralf—HK
equity interests held by the Group, entered into a sales and purchase BAr (SEHAES1%RE) B—RB
agreement with an independent third party, pursuant to which the FE=RIVEBEWE Bt BIFE=H
independent third party agreed to purchase, and the Group agreed REEBERR&REAR 234,000,000
to sell its entire 60% equity interests (30.6% effective interests) in (#7280,800,000 7% 7T ) B8 B AR )| A1 d 15
SR PmiEE AR AR AR (“R)IIFJH") at cash consideration of HRRERAT (TR H]) HEENZEE
RMB234,000,000 (approximately HK$280,800,000). 60% %1 (30.6% BB #Ewm) » A AlR

BREMRELE A -

The Group received the total consideration of RMB234,000,000 R EAEENMBAT - SEFEB—
(approximately HK$280,800,000) during the year ended 31 December METEMBARI AL ZEGNE - B#E
2016. On 17 March 2016, the Group has completed the disposal —E-R"F+ZA=+—HLEEFE &
of RJIIFJH and recognised a gain on disposal of approximately | Yz B 42 X (B A R # 234,000,000 7T (49
HK$124,199,000. 280,800,000 L) c R=ZZT—<F = A

+£8 SEEEKLER)|FHLER
HEUREE#4) 124,199,000 7T °

FHRREBEERAT 2016FFHR
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(continued) (#&)

34 Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued)

The following table summarises the consideration received for the
disposal of a subsidiary and the amounts of the identifiable assets and

34 HE—FENRBLE (&)

SR E B — F B A R B R
BEUMREEARZEHENEREER

liabilities disposed of at the disposal date: BfELE:
2016
—E—XF
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration received BUIRERE 280,800
Less: Assets and liabilities disposed of: W BEREEERAE
— Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) — W% - BB KA (FizE16) 116,429
— Land use rights (Note 18) — 3B R4 (PfIRE 18) 1,998
— Intangible assets (Note 19) — | EE (H:E19) 22,154
— Inventories —FE 23,252
— Deposits, trade and other receivables —&e  BHREMERFIR 55,253
— Cash and cash equivalents —ReRASFMEIER 43,764
— Trade and other payables —E G REMENFIE (8,219)
— Receipt in advance —FAWFRIE (15,645)
— Non-controlling interests — AR R (86,841)
Net asset value BEFE 152,145
Less: Release of exchange reserve upon B R E—RENEARRER
disposal of a subsidiary i s B3 4,456
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 8) & — B A FUk s (FTES) 124,199

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is AR E—BERBARNEARSRE
as follows: ST :
2016
—E—XREF
HK$'000
FHT
Cash consideration received BUIRERE 280,800
Less: Cash and cash equivalents included in B HE B AR EF AR
the disposal of a subsidiary ReRALEFMEIER (48,020)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included ~ FtAREEFBRETENIRE &
in cash flows from investing activities ReFEERRAFE 232,780

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2016
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Banking facilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had aggregate banking facilities
of approximately HK$4,660,600,000 (2015: HK$4,380,000,000), of
which approximately HK$4,360,888,000 (2015: HK$3,307,763,000)
was unutilised. The Group’s unused banking facilities to the extent
of HK$774,999,000 (2015: HK$619,999,000) are secured by certain
financial assets (Notes 21 and 24).

Commitments

(a) Operating leases
The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms

ranging from 1 year to 20 years.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

35

36

e IR R R

(continued) (#)

RITRLE

RZZE—R"FE+_A=+—H  £EIET
EEZIRITRE B4 5 4,660,600,000 7%
7T( ==& — A4 :4,380,000,000/8 78 ) °
H 1 #74,360,888,0008 L( — F — A
% :3,307,763,000% 7T ) M AR E A o &
E A& #774,999,000 L ( = — A F :
619,999,000 % 7T ) K SR1TREE LAE T 81 75
BEAE (MFE21F124) -

IR

(a) WEMAE
EERBCERETHRELRI N
AME - MEMENBBERERNT1
3520 % 2 T -

W=B—AE+=A=+—A %8
IRRT 440 5 TR B ) R 4

follows: REERE R RLERAT ¢
2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—FRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Land and buildings expiring: R TI BB 2| B + 30 REF -
Within one year —FR 13,541 15,293
After one year but within —FRERFENRN
five years 28,987 29,056
After five years hEE 31,894 39,951
74,422 84,300

FHRREBEERAT 2016FFHR
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(b) Capital commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments outstanding
not provided for at the date of statement of financial position:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (#&)

(b) BEAENE

SERFHBMREK B BAE AT RER
R RBITEANALE

2016 2015
ZEB—RF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAxT
Contracted but not provided for: 2 FT4MBAREEA
Property, plant and equipment M - BE K& 185,818 199,091

37 Related party transactions

As at 31 December 2016, the Company was indirectly owned by Sino
Best International Group Limited (“Sino Best”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) which in turn was wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Chairman and executive
director of the Company, as to approximately 24.5%. The remaining
77.5% of the Company’s shares were widely held. Mr. Xu Tie-liang and
other directors of the Company are considered to be related as they are
members of the key management personnel of the Company.

Transactions with key management personnel

The directors of the Company are considered as key management
personnel of the Group. The remuneration of the key management
personnel is determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends. Details of the
remuneration paid to them are set out in Note 12.

37 BEALTRS

RZZE—RE+-_A=+—H  ARIHF
ZEBREESRAR ([FHRER]) (REB
HBRHS ((EBERRES ) Tz
WA AARIERERBITEFTHRR L
S EB=ER)AEEBN245% - A7
H#R775% BROWEZRHE - KR EE
MAREMEEHEAREEEEASM
WRARRWEEAL -

HFTEEBEABNRS

RAEERER/EETEREEAR - &
ERABZME I HFHEE L EEE
AIAL 2 RERTEBERETE - T
FEANLZHEFHIEHNMIE 12
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38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and 38 FEMBLARAKZEFEREE

controlled structured entities B2FHE
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a) EEMELAFBUT :
Nominal value of Percentage of
Place of incorporation issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name and kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BEfT
HRARLHE RAHEE,/ NEE
£B HEEERELY afMER REED TEXH
Directly Indirectly
B# Ef:3
Profaith Group Limited BVI, Wholly foreign-owned Uss$1 100.0% - Investment holding
enterprise
REEARES IEEE 1% REER
¥
All Praise Investment Limited BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$1 100.0% - Investment holding
enterprise
REEARAES IEEE E REER
%
China Qil And Gas Group Limited  BVI, Wholly foreign-owned Us$1 100.0% - Investment holding
enterprise
REBERRES IEEE (B RERR
%
China Oil And Gas Management ~ Hong Kong, Wholly foreign- HK$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Limited owned enterprise
HRRRERERAR BE  IEEELE 187 RERR
Alta Financial Holdings Limited BVI, Wholly foreign-owned Us$1,000 = 100.0%  Investment holding
enterprise
ExeREEERAT EEERRES IEEE 1,0005%7T RERR
%
Zhongda Industrial Group Inc BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$10,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
enterprise
PATEEEBRAR EEERRES  IEEE 10,0007 RERR
%
China Qil And Gas Group Hong Kong, Wholly foreign- HK$1 = 100.0%  Investment holding
(Asia) Limited owned enterprise
HERRER (TN ERAA B IEEELE 1757 RERR
Hong Kong China Oil And Gas Hong Kong, Wholly foreign- HK$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Group Limited owned enterprise
BETARAEEERAT BE HEBELE 187 RERR

FHRREEER AT 20165FF3f
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38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and 38 FEMBARIRZIEFIEREE
controlled structured entities (Continued) RB2FE(E
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a) ETEMBARFEWOT : (&)
(Continued)
Nominal value of Percentage of
Place of incorporation issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name and kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BT
HRAREE BAEE, DR
£ ERERER AMER REESL E £
Directly Indirectly
B# &
Accelstar Pacific Limited BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$50,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
enterprise
RREARAES NEEE 50,0007 REER
%
Plentigreat Holdings Limited BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$10,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
enterprise
RBARRES IEBE 10,000%7¢ RAER
%
Vast China Group Limited BVI, Wholly foreign-owned Us$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
enterprise
RBERRNS NEEE (B RERER
%
Sino Invent Holdings Limited BVI, Wholly foreign-owned Us$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
enterprise
KEBERRNS IEEE (s RERR
%
TR RMRIRAEEERAT  PRC, Wholly foreign-owned RMB1,000,000,000 - 51.0%  Investment holding and trading
("CCNG") enterprise of natural gas
HHRRRRRESEARAR B HEBELE ARE REERRARREER
(THhhz]) 1,000,000,000 &
AERRRRERETAH PRC, Limited liability company RMB65,874,000 - 40.8%()  Trading of natural gas, gas

pipeline construction and
operation of natural gas

stations
HE - EREERA AR 65,874,000 AREE  AAREERE
RARARITE
SHEFRREBRETR PRC, Limited liability company RMB40,000,000 - 40.8%()  Gas pipeline construction
BREFAR
HE - BREFAH AR 40,000,000 70 AAREERE
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38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities (Continued)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued) (#)

38 TEMBLARAIRZEHERE

BEZe1E ()

(a) EEMBEARAFIBWE : (&)

(Continued)
Nominal value of Percentage of
Place of incorporation issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name and kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
28T
Rl e L Ve RAHEE, DR
B AERREL SHER REEDL TEER
Directly Indirectly
B# i}
BT HRERARHE PRC, Limited liability company RMB20,000,000 - 40.8%()  Trading of natural gas
BRAR
hE - EREEAT AR 20,000,00070 AAREE
AERREEER AT PRC, Limited liability company RMB900,000 - 40.8%()  Trading of natural gas-related
equipment
hE - EREEAT ARH900,00070 AAREBRBEEE
BEPARAERELRHF PRC, Limited liability company RMB100,000,000 - 30.6%()  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
- BREEAT AR 100,000,00070 AAREERAARESR
e
BN AR ERETAR PRC, Limited liability company RMB50,000,000 = 40.8%(i)  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
HE - EREELR AR 50,000,0007 IARBEERAAREE
e g
BERPAMRFEREELA PRC, Limited liability company RMB25,000,000 - 50.5%  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
e - BREEAR ARH 25,000,000 AAREBRARRER
B
HERRRRERETAR PRC, Limited liability company RMB27,000,000 - 30.6%()  Natural gas transmission
through pipeline
hE - BREEAF ARH 27,000,000 BERAREX
N Eosa b A PRC, Limited liability company RMB 12,000,000 - 51.0%  Production and trading of
BRAR liquefied natural gas
e - BRELAF AR#12,000,0007 BIERAREERER
NP BRRERERELT PRC, Limited liability company RMB 15,000,000 - 51.0%  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
HE - EREALR AR 15,000,0007 IARBERAAREE
e
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38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities (Continued)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

38 TEMBARIKRZEFERE
BoHE (A

(a) EEMBRRFEWT : (&)

(Continued)
Nominal value of Percentage of
Place of incorporation issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name and kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BRfT
EMKLLY BAEE/ DR
£8 ERERER aMER REFDL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B i
AR AR AR PRC, Limited liability company RMB30,000,000 - 51.0%  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
e FREERF AR#30,000,00070 AAREBERAARERE
3
ML EERRR ER AR PRC, Limited liability company RMB 12,000,000 - 40.8%()  Trading of natural gas
E - ARAERF ARH 12,000,007 FAREE
HmR R OR8) BB AR PRC, Limited liability company RMB75,000,000 - 80.4%  Transportation services
hE - BREARF ARH75,000,00070 ERR%
SETAEEREAERDLA PRC, Limited liability company RMB20,000,000 - 51.0%  Natural gas transmission
through pipeline
HEl - BREAAR AR#20,000,0007C EBARRER
M BRERRARBRAT PRC, Limited liability company US$11,700,000 - 454%()  Gas pipeline design and
construction, natural gas
transmission through
pipeline
e FREERF 11,700,000 %7 RAREERT RS -
EBRAREA
PEPARRBERETAA PRC, Limited liability company RMB20,000,000 - 35.7%(i)  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
HE - ARAEERF AR 20,000,000 ARREERAAREE
B
s g () #a B BB AT PRC, Limited liability company RMB71,000,000 - 51.0%  Investment holding
HE - BRELAF ARH71,000,0007C REZR
WHHRARBBREELDH PRC, Limited liability company RMB67,910,000 - 35.7%(i)  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
HEl - BREARA AR#67,910,0007C AAREBERAARERE
fec
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38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities (Continued)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

e

B RS ERAR FEE

(continued) (#)

38 TEMBLARAIRZEHERE

ReZwis (&)

(a) EEMBEARAFIBWE : (&)

(Continued)
Nominal value of Percentage of
Place of incorporation issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name and kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
2R
Bl AE L Ve RAHEE, DR
B HERREL aHER REED TEXH
Directly Indirectly
B# il
itk 2R AREB A PRC, Limited liability company RMB2,000,000 - 35.7%()  Trading of natural gas
PE - AREELF ARH2,000,0007C ARREE
REMRAARREREMLAR  PRC, Limited liability company RMB75,000,000 - 35.7%()  Trading of natural gas and gas
pipeline construction
hE - BREERT ARH 75,000,000 AAREBERAAREE
B
EERRTPREEMAERALA  PRC, Limited liability company RMB50,000,000 = 408%()  Gas pipeline design and
construction
- BREEAT AR 50,000,000 AAREBR N2
HRZERRERAR PRC, Wholly foreign-owned HK$187,500,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding,
enterprise construction of natural
gas stations and trading of
natural gas
hE - SNEEELE 187,500,000 7 REER - RARIRE
RAARER
T HREARAR] PRC, Sino-foreign equity joint RMB18,000,000 - 804%  Trading of natural gas and gas
venture pipeline construction
HE - PORERELE ARH 18,000,000 7T AAREERAARER
BE
PR REEEBRAR PRC, Wholly foreign-owned US$75,000,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
(RIMBAMR (R ) RE enterprise
BRAR)
HE - EBELE 75,000,000 % 7T REER
ERERREREERAA PRC, Limited liability company US$26,981,000 = 100.0% Provision for finance
hE - AREELF 26,981,000 RERE
MR REREEAA PRC, Sino-foreign equity joint RMB40,000,000 - 38.8%(i)  Trading of natural gas and gas
venture pipeline construction
hE - PORERELE ARH 40,000,000 T ARREERAARER
B
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e M RAR M

(continued) (#&)

38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities (Continued)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

38 TEMBLARIRZEHERE

BB (F

(a) EEMBRRFEWT : (&)

(Continued)
Nominal value of Percentage of
Place of incorporation issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name and kind of legal entity registered capital to the Company Principal activities
BT
HRARLEE BAEE DR
a2 ERERER aMER REESL TRER
Directly Indirectly
B i
BT IEERAR PRC, Sino-foreign equity joint RMB26,000,000 - 60.4%  Trading of natural gas and gas
BRAR venture pipeline construction
hE - AR ERERER ARH 26,000,007 FAREERAARER
e
HATHRRERETAR PRC, Sino-foreign equity joint RMB15,000,000 - 75.0%  Trading of natural gas and gas
venture pipeline construction
HE - PAGERERE AR 15,000,0007 AAREERAARER
fedc
SHTRELH PRC, Sino-foreign equity joint RMB284,400,000 - 51.0%  Trading of natural gas and gas
venture pipeline construction
HE - SARERERE AR 284,400,0007 RAREERANREE
fe
Baccalieu Energy Inc. Canada CAD 141,040,000 - 100.0%  Exploitation and distribution of
crude oil and natural gas
JIIEYN 141,040,000 17T RERD B RARR
Notes: BiRE -
(i) The Group holds controlling interests in these subsidiaries through a () EEEBAEES1.0%ESZHHBER

(iii)

51.0% owned subsidiary, CCNG. Therefore the Group has control
over these entities and they are considered as subsidiaries of the
Company.

The Group holds controlling interests in this subsidiary through
CCNG and a wholly owned subsidiary, Hong Kong China Oil and
Gas Group Limited (“HKCOGG"). Therefore the Group has control
over this entity and it is considered as subsidiary of the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

(i)

(iii)

B R IR A % S B A R
@ o Bt KEEEZSERMNE
e MZEEERERSARNMER
7 o

SEEBPHPRRZ2EMBARE
A HRREEBRAR ([FEF
MR DB EZME AR ZERER - B
It SEEAEZEREGE  MaE
BREARAINMBRR

E=RA - ERAIARMBRRE
BEYEAFANEAREEEEEFE
BERED - EEZRE - e EMKE
RAZHBEEEHRBILE °
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(continued) (#)

38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and 38 FEMBLARAKZEFEREE
controlled structured entities (Continued) B2 E (&)

(b) Set out below are the summarised consolidated financial (b) TREFINFHARRENBAT (EE
information of CCNG and its subsidiaries that have non- HEEBMEBEAZFERER) RS
controlling interests that are material to the Group. The BHEENME  THRERAARBH
information below is the amount before inter-company SHAl 2 &8 o

eliminations.

2016 2015

—EB—RE —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHT

Total assets BEE 8,361,900 9,949,640

Total liabilities RSN (4,880,836) (6,638,138)

Net assets BEFE 3,481,064 3,311,502

Revenue = & 5,126,691 6,009,394

Profit for the year FRE A 456,831 298,146

Other comprehensive loss Hih 2 mEE (266,990) (115,983)

Total comprehensive income ZEK BT 189,841 182,163
Dividend paid to non-controlling St {-HA% B F IE1E kA S

interests 59,427 43,205

FHRREBER AR 20165F £
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities (Continued)

(b) Set out below are the summarised consolidated financial
information of CCNG and its subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interests that are material to the Group. The
information below is the amount before inter-company
eliminations. (Continued)

38 TEMB AT RZTIES

BB (F

|EBE

(b) TR#EIIPMPRRENBEAR (R
HEEMSBEAZFERER)RE
MBEERBE THRERBQARABY

SHAI 2 &% - ()

CCNG CCNG
b Lk B R
2016 2015
—E—XREF —T—AEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Net cash generated from KEREBEE RS FE
operating activities 880,631 667,951
Net cash used in investing KRB EBMA AT
activities (96,940) (302,799)
Net cash used in financing BEEBIFTA 2R eFRE
activities (924,844) (80,775)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash REMREHEEB (L),
and cash equivalents EhnFER (141,153) 284,377
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BzBE&KReFEER
at 1 January 1,316,869 1,084,013
Effect of foreign exchange fERE e
rate changes (134,722) (51,521)
Cash and cash equivalents RT+ZA=+—HzHRek
at 31 December ReFEAR 1,040,994 1,316,869
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(continued) (#)

38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and 38 FEMBLARAKZEFEREE
controlled structured entities (Continued) RR2FE (&)
(c) Details of the controlled structured entity are as follows: (c) SEHAEBERFELT !
The Company controls a structured entity which operates in Hong AAEH—BEEBELCNEBE
Kong, particulars of which are as follows: B HEBaT
Structured entities Principal activities
HEER FTEEK
Best Thinker Limited (“Trustee”) Purchases, administers and holds the Company’s shares for the Restricted Share

Award Scheme for the benefit of eligible employees of the Group

Best Thinker Limited ([ #EA ) REBEAERESFEMBHIERG ZEAEEA - EERFEARRS
As the Trustee is set up solely for the purpose of purchasing, HARXFEA T B R BEBR Hl 1% A% (7 22 &
administering and holding the Company’s shares for the sTEl(PHEE32(c) BEA - BEREFAR
Restricted Share Award Scheme (Note 32(c)), the Company AP MR E @ AR BEEHSZTA
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of B BF I % B ISR - N A A R PR
the Trustee and it can derive benefits from the services of the MROHHES TRHREXIEREERFAR
employees who have been awarded the Restricted Shares through RENRBEESZE - XFEANEE
their continued employment with the Group. The assets and REBEEERERAREEBFEER
liabilities of the Trustee are included in the consolidated statement AR EUBRAERF - WHZTEAR
of financial position from its adoption and the Company’s shares B A B RRAD 1E R — B0 IE B /£ 42
held by the Trustee are presented as a deduction in equity as mP 2R - IHEI BRGD EBET EIRE
“shares held for share award scheme”. A& -
39 Approval of consolidated financial statements 39 #LEFREMEERK
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised EERR T tF=A=t+NLAMERK
for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2017. T AR S B ISk o
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e M RAR M

(continued) (#&)

40 Statement of financial position of the Company

40 N RIS AR R ER

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
FiaE FET FH&T
Non-current assets IERBEE
Intangible assets mAE 1,702 1,702
Interests in subsidiaries R B A AR 5,437,320 5,745,289
Available-for-sale financial assets A EM IS EE 20,050 20,050
5,459,072 5,767,041
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables E h FEUGRIE 66,588 25,109
Cash and cash equivalents ReRALEFMEIER 102,584 111,583
169,172 136,692
Current liabilities mEAaE
Other payables Ho At JE T FRIE 43,944 43,943
Net current assets neLEFE 125228 92,749
Total assets less current liabilities REERDAR 5,584,300 5,859,790
Non-current liabilities EREAE
Senior notes BEZRE 5,006,417 4,992,169
Net assets BE TR 577,883 867,621
Equity M
Equity attributable to owners NCIE 2SNy £
of the Company
Share capital [N 32 58,257 58,257
Reserves ] 41 519,626 809,364
Total equity e HREE 577,883 867,621

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by
the Board of Directors on 29 March 2017 and was signed on its behalf.

Xu Tie-liang
Director

Guan Yijun
Director

ARAMBRARER B —-—LF=H
TTNABEEFERUAETAUATERTKRS

FE o

FFERR
EZE

BsE
BF

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
trE SRR M

(continued) (#)

41 Reserves of the Company

41 D EHE

Shares and
Capital  warrants held Exchange (Note (a))
Share  redemption forshare  fluctuation ~ Contributed ~ Accumulated
premium reserve award scheme reserve surplus losses Total
Al
b ]
Ex  FBRAR (M (a)
RHEE REGfE AnEE EXRDRE E N it ER 4%
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEn Tin T T T TR TEn
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-HF-F-H 32,960 963 (150,875) - 1,520,328 (153,819) 1,249,557
Bonus issue of shares EHL (4,878) - #18) - - - (529)
Equity-settled share-based payments NiEREE AR BEROMR - - 18,827 - - - 18,827
Exchange differences on translating HEBNEBNELZE
foreign operations - - - (16,836) - - (16,836)
Shares purchased for share award scheme AR EEEEE R - - (143,163) - - = (143163)
Repurchased of shares (Note 32(a)) FEIR(A (F3 32(a) (3,504) 35 - - - (39) (3,504)
Loss for the year EMER - - - - - 29021 (290,221)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RF+-A=1-A 24,578 998 (275,629) (16,836) 1,520,328 (444,075) 809,364
Equity-settled share-based payments NEREZNRABER MR - - 1,798 - - = 1,798
Exchange differences on translating HEBNEEERES
foreign operations - - - (706) - - (706)
Shares purchased for share award scheme AR EEHEEERD - - (31,875) - - = (31,875)
Loss for the year ENEE - - - - - (258955 (258955
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—"F+-A=1+-A 24,578 998 (305,706) (17,542) 1,520,328 (703,030) 519,626
Note: 5 -
(@) The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the (@) RRAZBARKRIEEBR-—NAN=ZFHEE

net assets value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group's
reorganisation in 1993 over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof. Under the Companies Act of Bermuda 1981
(as amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
the shareholders in certain circumstances which the Company is able to

satisfy.

MM EHBLARCEEFEBL AR
REEmMETROZABEZSE - RIB
—AN-—FEREQRRE(BIAR) A

AZBABRBER TIHERTA

5 I F

R HEBAIRARIARBENS B ULE B o

FHRREBEERAT 2016FFHR
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFEEHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for UTERERBEAEVBFEE 2 XEREERS
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial & DHEFEEHE KBV BEHRERL TUE
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. ¥iEE oM -

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLFE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RE “T—RF —T—F —T—=F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT T T FAT
Results %45
Revenue ] 6,446,452 7,373,902 7,697,811 6,439,825 4,889,428
Profit before taxation BRI RE A 842,129 50,190 854,163 1,178,540 935,786
Taxation HIE (184,461) (20,857) (217,565) (240,945) (201,600)
Profit for the year FE R A 657,668 29,333 636,598 937,595 734,186
Attributable to: LA RESS ¢
Owners of the Company UNTEZ 2PN 311,791 (183,831) 308,650 401,494 365,705
Non-controlling interests FEE R RS 345,877 213,164 327,948 536,101 368,481
657,668 29,333 636,598 937,595 734,186
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RE —T—Ah4%F —ZT—mF —T—=4F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FHT FHT FET
Assets and liabilities BEKEE
Total assets BEE 13,603,839 14,087,638 15,467,449 12,156,658 9,188,494
Total liabilities BEE 8,352,885 (8,887,384) (9,374,700) (6,330,511) (4,161,664)
Total equity BT 5,250,954 5,200,254 6,092,749 5,826,147 5,026,830
Non-controlling interests FEE RS (2,420,523)  (2,423,190) (2,491,642) (2,278,767) (1,847,039)
Equity attributable to owners RAEBA
of the Company fEh R 2,830,431 2,777,064 3,601,107 3,547,380 3,179,791
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